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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

.
7f ﬂ’% ﬂ 152
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS Bi&Ex
The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results of U TAAEBR T HBFE 2 EEZEEE
the Group for the respective years as hereunder stated. EHLE o
For the year ended 31 December
BZE+t-A=t—-HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EZEFE OZE-AF ZE-NF ZE—+tF ZZT-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FET FET FAT FET
Revenue U % 80,022 145,846 180,048 273,347 555,386
Profit/(loss) attributable FBRARBEBAZ
to the owners wF (&8
of the Company (11,487) (825,678)  (2,199,094) 82,274 321,907
Dividends g = - - - -
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B EMRRBE

The following

dates as hereunder stated.

is a summary of the audited consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group as at the respective

UTRASERTIEBER 2 EEREEW

BARRBRBEE -

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EoEE ZE-hEF ZE-N\FE E—+F —T—NF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAET FEL FHETT FAET
Plant and equipment B 5 K 5% 1,370 339 1,019 1,748 2,908
Investment properties BEME 30,523 - - - -
Goodwill EES = - - 2182663 2,182,663
Right-of-use assets FRHEEE 1,156 1,172 - - -
Interest in joint ventures E’Gé%ﬁ%Z%m 3,504 1,598 - - -
Deposits, prepayments e BARER
and other receivables H e 1A
(non-current portions) GEREE ) 62,691 38 94 19,689 865
Equity investments designated ¥ AR A FEE B
at fair value through other HE2EKEARZ
comprehensive income WA IR E 73,345 603,385 369,660 - -
Financial assets at amortised 1% % 5 Ak A A BE 2
cost TREE = 59,755 157,295 - -
Available-for-sale investments A it 1 & #% & - - - 731,435 718,465
Loan and interest receivables [& U & 2 & F & 167,440 154,196 907,098 1,117,669 878,079
Trade receivables JIE UL B 2R - 55,788 43,750 - -
Financial assets at fair value ¥ AFEFBER
through profit or loss ARZemEE - - 45,677 - -
Other current assets HMmeEE 138,211 352,895 182,487 252,238 358,679
Current liabilities mEaE (21,752) (261,797 (140,309) (125,176) (60,512)
Deferred tax liabilities BLEREAE (1,207) - - (34) (78)
Other non-current liabilites ~ HM 3R A& (395) - - - -
Representing: 5
Share capital [N 3,870 3,870 3,870 3,870 3,870
Reserves =] 424,962 938,687 1,537,537 4,152,763 4,059,704
Non-controlling interests FEERER 26,054 24,812 25,364 23,599 17,495
Shareholders’ equity Be WA= 454,886 967,369 1,666,771 4,180,232 4,081,069
4 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “Zhong Ji
Longevity Science” or the "Group”), | am delighted to present
the results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
(the “reporting year”) as well as its future development
strategies.

2020 was an exceptional year for the world. While the outbreak
of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19" or “pandemic”) struck
a devastating blow to the globe, the accompanying instability and
rapidly changing market environment have become the new
normal. Nonetheless, in the midst of every crisis lie great
opportunities. With increasing public awareness of health issues
and aging population in various societies, professional services on
extending human life span, enhancing quality of life and high-end
medical care hold the keys to unlock new blue oceans. While
redoubling its efforts in operating its existing business, the Group
grasped the huge potential in the longevity science medical
sector and seized on the improved cognizance of health matters
during the reporting year, thus extending its business to the
development and sales of Nicotinamide mononucleotide (NMN)
longevity biological products with great breakthroughs.

During the reporting year, the Group’s annual results were
primarily contributed by the business of money lending,
securities and other investments, as financial and
investment advisory. Before recovering from trade protectionism
and geopolitical tensions, the global economy was crushed by
COVID-19, poor investment sentiment and other unfavourable
factors, and suffered its biggest shock since the 1930s. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
approximately HK$80,022,000, and loss for the year was
approximately HK$10,700,000. On a positive note, thanks to the
tremendous support of all shareholders and staff members, the
Group successfully achieved strategic business transformation
during the reporting year and outlined a blueprint for the
applications of longevity science for the health and longevity of
mankind. | am delighted to see that the Group's keen efforts
devoted in the past years have borne fruits.

as well

revenue was
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
ERWE

Over the years, the Group has continuously pushed forward
business diversification. In 2020, the Group invested in longevity
science research and recruited an elite team of international
biotech and medical talents, including seasoned executives from
the field of advanced medical treatment and biotechnology and,
most notably, Academician Randy Wayne Schekman, a Nobel
laureate in Physiology or Medicine, as the Honorary Chairman
and Chief Scientist of the Group. The inception and participation
of experts with brilliant achievements in different fields will
immensely strengthen the research and development (R&D)
capability of Zhong Ji Longevity Science’s research team, thereby
enabling the Group to achieve breakthrough in the development
of efficacious longevity biological products in future. During the
reporting year, the Group leased the premises of a dietary
supplement manufacturer with total area of 36,000 square feet
that possess certificates for drug manufacture, healthcare
product processing and organic food processing in California, the
United States. In 2021, the Group has developed a clear strategic
plan to further refine the global layout of its longevity science
business by conducting mergers and acquisitions of advanced
medical treatment and testing projects while delivering quality
longevity biological products. It entered into an agreement on 8
January 2021 to acquire two medical testing centres which
provide a total of 19 kinds of cell, health index and disease
detection tests; entered into a memorandum of understanding
(MoU) with a potential seller on 23 February 2021 in relation to
the acquisition of a world's leading international autoimmune cell
bank; and formed a strategic partnership with Thermo Fisher
Scientific (Hong Kong) Limited, a forerunner in the field of life
sciences, on 3 March 2021; and entered into an investment
cooperation framework agreement with Hubei Mailyard Share Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 600107.SH) on 14 March 2021 to establish a
joint venture company focusing on advanced medical services
such as cancer prevention and early screening, longevity medical
examination and cell management and so on. These exercises
will enable the Group to shift business focus to the R&D,
production and sales of NMN longevity biological products, and
further enhance the Group’s industry chain, thereby establishing
a world's leading ecosystem platform in longevity science.
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In March 2021, the Group officially changed its name to Zhong Ji
Longevity Science Group Limited, marking a significant milestone
in our business transformation journey. The Group has set its
sight on developing longevity science business with unwavering
commitment to exploring new opportunities. We expect that the
new company name will better represent the Group's strategic
development and business direction, and define it with a more
distinctive corporate and brand identity.

The Group sees huge potential in the longevity science medical
sector with the aging domestic population and gradual increase in
the penetration of health supplement products in the country.
Research estimates that 1% of the Chinese population means a
RMB30.4 billion’s worth health supplement user market for NMN
products. Complemented by continuous promotion of longevity
biological products, the industry is expected to reach RMB100
billion in scale in the long run. Therefore, the Group is confident
in its business operations following further growth and
development of the longevity science medical sector. Looking
ahead, the Board is committed to accomplishing the vision of
“helping people live longer and healthier lives”, leading the Group
to give full play to its strength as a forerunner in longevity
science and capturing more opportunities in the industry. We will
allocate more resources to the establishment of a full value chain
for NMN longevity biological products by capitalising on its
longevity science technology of longevity biological products, cell
and gene therapies, as well as advanced medical technologies.
The Group is determined to expand its share and build a
reputable brand in the market of longevity biological products
through launching more products via different channels across
the world. At the same time, we will join hands with our
partners to navigate the Group’s new journey in longevity science
and contribute to human health.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board and the management,
| would like to express my sincere gratitude to all shareholders,
investors and customers for their trust and steadfast support, as
well as our members of staff for their loyalty, hard work and
professionalism. As always, we will advance together as one to
deliver long-term and solid returns to our shareholders.

YAN Li
Chairman
30 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R R o

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), is
focusing on expanding its business into longevity science
business. Currently, in addition to closely managing its existing
principal activities of loan facilitation services business, money
lending business, securities and investment business, financial
and investment advisory and property investment, the Group
devotes itself to the research and development (“R&D"”) and
production of longevity biological products, as the
development of medical service business including cell and gene
therapy and detection test.

as well

In the year of 2020, the Group was principally engaged in money
lending, securities and other investments, financial and
investment advisory, as well as property investment. While
operating its finance-related business, the Group also relentlessly
pursued opportunities to diversify its business. Leveraging the
management’s expertise and technical know-how in the
biotechnology industry, the Group set its sights on the longevity
science medical industry. As part of its vision of “helping people
live longer and healthier lives”, the Group strives to deliver
innovative life management solutions across four aspects,
including R&D, production and sale of longevity biological
products, cell and gene therapy, advanced medical testing and
life management, as customised and
membership services. In 2020, the Group successfully achieved
strategic transformation of its business by diversifying into the
longevity science industry, and enjoyed wide recognition in
society. The Group seeks to contribute to the improvement of
human health through its longevity science technology, namely
longevity biological products, cell and gene therapy, as well as
advanced medical technology.

as well innovative

The report is presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is

the same as the functional currency of the Group.
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In the year of 2020, while the market had not recovered from the
trade protectionism and geopolitical tensions, the global economy
was further weakened by the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease
2019 (“COVID-19" or “pandemic”). Public health and social
distancing restrictions as well as lockdowns in various countries
caused a large-scale suspension of economic activities, which
plunged the global economy into a severe contraction. For the
year ended 31 December 2020 (“reporting year”), the business
of money lending, securities and other investments as well as
financial and investment advisory remained as the primary
contributor to the Group’s annual results. Impeded by
unfavourable market factors, the Group subsequently recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$80,022,000 (2019:
HK$145,846,000). Nevertheless, the Group managed to recover
certain debts that had been made provisions in the year ended
31 December 2019 and loss for the year narrowed to
approximately HK$10,700,000 (2019: HK$825,969,000). Basic and
diluted loss per share were approximately HK0.30 cents (2019:
HK21.33 cents).

As at 31 December 2020, the consolidated net assets of the
Group were approximately HK$454,886,000 (2019:
HK$967,369,000).

With the non-performance of this business due to the tightening
regulatory measures and sharp decrease in demand, no revenue
was recorded for this business during the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: HK$16,000). Segmental profit of
HK$6,250,000 was recognised (2019: HK$15,000) which was
arisen from reversal of impairment of trade receivables of
HK$6,250,000. With the difficulties encountered in this business
segment which are hard to resolve, the Group will diversify its
efforts and resources to other business segments for better
development.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE N w~RDNT

Since obtaining the Money Lenders License under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in
2011, Joy Wealth Finance Limited (“Joy Wealth”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has provided a wide
variety of loans with an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$2,536,000,000 (2019: HK$2,5636,000,000). Interest rates
ranged between 10% and 15% per annum during the current
year (2019: 10%-15%). For the reporting year, the interest
income recorded by Joy Wealth was approximately
HK$48,081,000 (2019: HK$85,292,000) on the loan and interest
receivables. The Money Lenders License was renewed and
granted to Joy Wealth on 23 July 2020 to continue its business
as a money lender to 7 April 2021. Details on the loan and
interest receivables are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the reporting year, the pandemic brought unprecedented
pressure to the operations of micro, small and medium
enterprises and individual industrial and commercial households
in the country, which indirectly led to a continuous increase in
corporate debt defaults. As of the end of November 2020, the
corporate debt defaults in China reached a record high of
RMB232.4 billion. Coupled with the tightening of policies by the
Chinese government, the Group’s money lending business faced
a challenging environment. During the reporting vyear, a
segmental revenue of approximately HK$61,154,000 (2019:
HK$121,973,000) was recorded.
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In respect of the default loan and interest receivables, the Group
has appointed lawyers to issue legal letters to the borrowers and
guarantors demanding for immediate payment of outstanding
loans and interests. Apart from taking legal actions, the Group
also actively negotiated with and sent demand letters to the
borrowers and guarantors in order to retrieve the outstanding
loan and interest receivables. During the reporting year, the
Group recovered certain debts amounting to approximately
HK$59,799,000 (2019: Nil), which were made provisions in the
year ended 31 December 2019, via legal court and arbitration
proceedings as well as negotiations of the repayment with
borrowers and guarantors in the form of seizing or/and selling the
collaterals. Therefore, the segment achieved a business
turnaround with profit of approximately HK$35,573,000 (2019:
segment loss of HK$815,636,000).

Taking into account the challenging business outlook and the
potential impact of COVID-19 on borrowers, the latest financial
position of borrowers and the possibility of realising the loan and
interest receivables from the borrowers, the Group took prudent
approach to make impairment provisions for the loan and interest
receivables of approximately HK$76,885,000 (2019:
HK$920,774,000) for the reporting year to better respond to the
rapidly changing business environment.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held equity securities listed
on the Stock Exchange for long term investment. However, Hong
Kong economy was weakened by the macro environment and
COVID-19. With poor investment sentiment during the reporting
year, the Group's investment in the listed securities led to a net
fair value loss of approximately HK$510,750,000 (2019: net fair
value gain of HK$234,767,000) recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The net fair value loss
recognised as other comprehensive income for the year was due
to the decrease in the market value of certain listed equity
investment during the reporting year. Significant investments in
listed securities are discussed as below.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The major balance of the aforementioned listed securities
represented the Group’s investment in 5,426,900,000 shares of
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (“Ilmperial Pacific”,
a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code: 1076), representing approximately 3.8% of the
issued share capital of Imperial Pacific as at 31 December 2020.
Investment cost of the share interest in Imperial Pacific was
approximately HK$76,490,000. Imperial Pacific, through its
subsidiaries, is mainly engaged in delivering high-end leisure and
entertainment business, including the development and operation
of a hotel and casino resort on the Island of Saipan.

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the shares of Imperial
Pacific held by the Group amounted to HK$54,269,000 (2019:
approximately HK$558,971,000), representing 74.0% (2019:
92.6%) of the Group’s total investment in listed securities and
approximately 11.3% (2019: 45.5%) of the Group's total assets.
Meanwhile, there was neither disposal nor addition of shares of
Imperial Pacific during the reporting year (2019: Nil). The net fair
value loss recognised as other comprehensive income for the
investment in shares of Imperial Pacific was approximately
HK$504,702,000 (2019: net fair value gain of HK$271,345,000).
According to the latest interim report of Imperial Pacific, revenue
of approximately HK$26,672,000 and a net loss of approximately
HK$797,924,000 for the six months period ended 30 June 2020
were recorded. No dividend income was received from this
investment during the reporting year (2019: Nil).

The Group also held an investment in 72,500,000 shares of
Capital Environment Holdings Limited (“Capital Environment”, a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code: 3989), representing approximately 0.5% of the
issued share capital of Capital Environment as at 31 December
2020. Investment cost of the shares of Capital Environment was
approximately HK$25,793,000. Capital Environment is a leading
provider of comprehensive waste management solutions and
environmental infrastructure services in China.
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As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the shares of Capital
Environment held by the Group amounted to HK$8,700,000
(2019: approximately HK$10,368,000), representing approximately
11.9% (2019: 1.7%) of the Group's total investment in listed
securities and approximately 1.8% (2019: 0.8%) of the Group's
total assets. There was neither disposal nor addition of shares of
Capital Environment during the reporting year (2019: Nil). The net
fair value loss recognised as other comprehensive income for the
investment in shares of Capital Environment during the reporting
year was approximately HK$1,668,000 (2019: net fair value gain
of HK$2,175,000). According to the latest interim report of Capital
Environment, it recorded revenue of approximately
RMB3,320,911,000 and net profit of approximately
RMB223,039,000 for the six months period ended 30 June
2020. No dividend income was received from this investment
during the reporting year (2019: Nil).

The Group regularly monitors its investment performance and
make appropriate investment decisions regularly. In addition, the
Group would allocate part of its idle resources from time to time
to purchase principal-guaranteed wealth management products to
increase its overall return.

Sky State Holdings Limited, through its wholly-owned subsidiary
established in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC"), is
principally engaged in the provision of short to medium-term
financing as well as related financial management and consulting
services since October 2012. During the reporting year, its
segmental revenue was approximately HK$13,151,000 (2019:
HK$8,941,000). However, the segment recorded a loss of
approximately HK$48,579,000 (2019: HK$1,969,000) due to the
provision of impairment of certain trade and other receivables of
the segment during the reporting year owing to slow repayment
from debtors impacted by COVID-19.
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The Group started the property investment business during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and the properties held by the
Group are held in the location of Mainland China and the Island
of Saipan. As all the properties were just acquired during the
year, they were vacant and not yet generated any revenue to the
Group. Segmental profit of approximately HK$5,708,000 (2019:
Nil) was recorded which mainly came from the increase in fair
value of investment properties of approximately HK$5,716,000
(2019: Nil). The Group will continue to monitor the market
condition and will find suitable tenants which can contribute
stable rental income to the Group or to dispose the investment
properties for capturing profitable capital appreciation.

The aging population has brought about dramatic changes in
economy, society as well as lives of people across the globe.
This, coupled with the pandemic, has fuelled growing health
consciousness among consumers with a pursuit of long healthy
lives through health supplements and longevity products. Global
anti-aging market registered an increase of 8.3% year-on-year
and reached US$190 billion in 2019. The market in Mainland
China was also in line with this growing trend as high-end
medical services and health supplement products have become
favoured by more consumers. While this pandemic of the
century has increased public awareness of health, longevity and
medical-related the Group has discovered this huge
potential and invested resources in mapping out its blueprint in
the longevity science sector, and subsequently diversed its
business into this sector during the reporting year. Riding on the
improved cognisance of health matters, the Group is committed
to establishing a leading ecosystem platform in longevity science
to pilot the blue ocean.

issues,
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During the reporting year, the Group pushed forward the
diversification into longevity science business in various aspects.
Regarding its management and R&D team, the Group recruited a
seasoned team of biotechnology and management talents. The
Group is pleased to have appointed Academician Randy Wayne
Schekman, a winner of Nobel Prize in Physiology or Medicine, as
the Honorary Chairman and Chief Scientist of the Group. In
addition, Nobel Prize winner Professor Hartmut Michel, the
“Father” of Stem Cell Biology in Cancer Therapy Professor Irving
Weissman, Chairman of Foundation for the Accreditation of
Cellular Therapy (FACT) Professor Abba Chedi Zubair, as well as
other esteemed biotechnology experts also held important
positions in the Group. The appointment of these experts who
have brilliant achievements in their respective fields of
biotechnology will strengthen the research capacity of the
Group’s R&D team. Complemented by the experience and
insights of the management team in longevity science sector, the
Group is expected to accelerate in its future business
development and growth.

In respect of the R&D, production and sale of longevity biological
products, the Group primarily focused its investment in the R&D
and production of its flagship Nicotinamide Mononucleotide
(NMN) product “ZJ1” during the reporting year. In terms of
equipment and facilities, Perpetual Master Limited (“Perpetual
Master”), the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has leased
a 36,000 square foot production plant in California, the United
States, for the R&D and production of NMN longevity biological
products. With certifications of cGMP, FDA and NSF of the
United States, the production plant is certificated for drug
manufacturing, healthcare product processing and organic food
processing in California, thereby lending constant supports to the
production and technology of the Group’s flagship products. In
terms of R&D, the raw materials used in the Group’s NMN
products have passed the toxicity test and are certificated by
FDA and PDR of the United States. During the reporting year, the
Group’s R&D team put forward the development progress of
“ZJ1" to the fifth generation, which is expected to intelligently
maintain the dynamic equilibrium within the cells, delivering solid
protection in health and longevity for people pursuing high-quality
life worldwide.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In terms of advanced medical testing and life management,
Blooming Faith Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, completed the acquisition of two testing centres in
January 2021, namely Irving Weissman International Advanced
Medical Testing Centre and Asian Advanced Medical Testing
Centre, in order to better equip the Group to execute its
business plan for cell and gene therapy and testing. The testing
centres boast a combined of 19 categories of cell, health index
and disease testing platforms, ranging from circulating tumor cell
blood test, cell culture, biological age detection, automatic blood
testing, to auto-immune testing. These acquisitions are believed
to lay a solid foundation in fields of advanced medical technology
and life management for the Group, which will in turn generate
stable income stream in the long run.

Regarding the R&D and transformation of cell and gene therapy,
the Group has also stepped up its efforts in expanding related
operations by exploring collaboration opportunities with potential
platforms. To better serve the medical needs of its customers,
Perpetual Master entered into a non-legally binding memorandum
of understanding (MOU) with China International Osteoarticular
Medical Group in February 2021 in relation to the acquisition of
the Asian Integrated Cell Laboratory, one of the largest
international auto-immune cell bank in the world.

The Group entered into another MOU in relation to forming a
strategic partnership with Thermo Fisher Scientific (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Thermo Fisher”), a forerunner in the field of life
sciences. Thermo Fisher will prioritise the Group in the provision
of its latest life sciences technology, software and solutions, so
as to propel the Group’s development in longevity science and
medical diagnosis, enhancing the productivity and R&D capability
of the Group's laboratory.

These strategic initiatives mark the very first step in the Group's
development of its longevity science business and were made to
further optimise its value chain. Looking ahead, the Group will
continue its investment and expansion in the segment. We
believe that the longevity science business will gradually anchor
the revenue growth of the Group and become a growth driver in
the future.
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In 2021, the outlook of global economy may remain difficult, but
there are encouraging signs that a corner has been turned. The
International Monetary Fund (IMF) estimates that the global
economy is projected to grow 5.5% in 2021, reflecting the fiscal
policy support in various economies and the positive effects on
economy that come upon with the onset of vaccination.
Meanwhile, the growth rate of gross domestic product (GDP) in
China is estimated to reach 8.1%, demonstrating a robust
recovery of the nation’s economy. With the persistent challenge
of population aging in China, demand for services and products in
health and longevity related areas is set to increase. Additionally,
given the growing middle-class population and urbanisation, the
prospects for mid to high-end consumption have become more
promising. Correspondingly, the longevity science and high-end
medical service sectors will benefit from consumption upgrades
and embrace a vast room for growth ahead.

Research report predicts that, supported by the continuous
promotion of longevity biological products, the NMN market size
is expected to reach RMB100 billion in the long term, while the
current NMN market to every 1% of the population of health
supplement product users in China is RMB30.4 billion. The
market for the Group's flagship NMN product is undergoing rapid
expansion. The management of the Group and its research team
are pushing forward its R&D in an orderly manner. With the
fifth-generation of NMN in seaweed capsules already launched in
2021, the Group is expected to achieve breakthroughs in this
field and eventually realises the establishment of a full industry
chain for NMN longevity biological products. Moreover, the
Group will focus on the development and related applications of
cell and gene therapy, and the provision of cell testing, cell
banking and storage, optimisation as well as cell medical
services. The Group plans to establish a global association for life
sciences and health, and provide the world’s leading advanced
medical services for its members in the long run. By providing
international standard-setting customised medical services for its
members, the Group could seize the industry opportunities and
fundamentally protect the health and longevity of its customers.

The Group’s board lot size for trading in the shares have been
changed from 40,000 Shares to 10,000 Shares since March
2021. The Group believes that the reduction in board lot size will
facilitate the trading and liquidity of the shares, which will enable
the Group to broaden its shareholders’ base and attract more
investors to join its new journey of longevity science. The Group
will remain cautiously optimistic, and conform to its future
development plans in exploring new project opportunities in an
organised manner. Leveraging its competitive edge in longevity
science, the Group will capture the market opportunities ahead,
thereby achieving its long-term business goal.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEES®ET

TECF RHREEBANTREARE  HE
EREE EREEESASTET  SERM
MEBERRIHARBEBECEEGIRIREE
CTE - FRREEERERSE%  MP R
BEA4EEBERERLEESI%  KEHBRSE
BoBEETRAAOEZLCLEESE HRELE
ERBERRERER 2E KB HEEM - L
PEREZHEN  WWELOEREA - FEm
HEBAEEBHE RENEBRewEBERE
RRERFBEEAGR 2D  DRERZBRE
] o

MERFEER  BAFEBI%REDRADLE
FINMNT 5 2= A A RE304E 7T+ B AR K
EEAYRHRTEHHERE TEX¥EREELEETE
AR o REBHEEEBNMNZ IS IE R R IR IR
BRPER AEBEEEBRETZRABEKIE
EFHEENZE  FARNMNEZHIBEDR
TECFRE WHEBEERNZEFERR
B BRKZEINMNESAYRBEEEE - It
Gy AEBBENEREREEL  EREET
EREHERA: RARNREARRKA  FF - &
ERAREERE EEmMEASERIER
Aol EZREe BARHEERBLNLHESR
BRSG  WHAEBLNBEBREEREE T RIGE
MEERY  HRBRALREZFERERSE B
BITEKS -

AEER - -_—F=-ABRHZEFEEEN
F40,0000% ¥ 22 A10,0008% - HE{51L B 5 HBIK
ERHpzrBE KHBEAREER FES
BREESLEAEB RSN BERHMLE - &
EEBRIFBELEBOERE Rz RKE
RAEEEEFRERERTER HETZERKES

MBS BFEY RENSME ERE
WEHARE -
17



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had recorded net current
assets of approximately HK$156,120,000 (2019:
HK$299,308,000); and cash and cash equivalent of approximately
HK$40,797,000 (2019: HK$154,958,000). The Group did not enter
into financial instruments for hedging purpose.

There was no change to the authorised and issued share capital
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2020, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 3,870,102,650 with par value of HK$0.001 each
(2019: 3,870,102,650 shares with par value of HK$0.001 each).

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, there was no significant investment, acquisition and
disposals that should be notified to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The performance and prospect of the significant investments of
the Group for the current year under review were discussed
under the sections of “Securities and Other Investment
Business"” above.

Details of segment information of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 35 employees which
were mainly stationed in Hong Kong and the PRC. In-house
training programs were provided for its employees to enhance
their skills and job knowledge. The management of the Company
would continue to foster close co-operation among the
employees.

The remuneration policies of the Company aim at ensuring that
remuneration levels are appropriate and in line with the
Company's target, mission and business performance. To do so,
the Company considers various relevant factors such as the
remuneration levels of its market competitors, market practices,
job duties, responsibilities and scope, financial and non-financial
performance, as well as the suitability of performance-based
remuneration arrangements.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not pledge any assets
to banks or other financial institutions nor did the Group have any
corporate guarantee given to any entity (2019: Nil).

It is the Group's corporate mission to continue to explore ways
to improve its financial performance, to diversify its operations
into new and more profitable businesses and to broaden the
sources of revenue within acceptable risk level. Hence, the
Company does not rule out the possibility of investing in or
changing to other profitable business as long as it is in the
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Also,
as part of its the Company
performance of its existing investment portfolio and evaluates the
investment potentials of other investment opportunities available
to the Company from time to time. Subject to the results of such
reviews, the Company may make suitable investment decisions
according to the then circumstance and information available
which may involve the disposal of the whole or part of its
existing investment portfolio and/or change of the asset
allocation of its investment portfolio and/or expanding its
investment portfolio with a view of realising and/or optimising
the expected return and minimising the risks. Meanwhile, the
Company does not preclude the possibility that the Company
may implement debt and/or equity fund raising plan(s) to satisfy
the financing needs arising out of any business development of
the Group as well as to improve its financial position in the event
that suitable fund raising opportunities arise.

routine exercise, reviews the

As at the date of this Report, the Company had not entered into
any agreement, arrangement, understanding, intention or
negotiation that should be disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group has adopted a treasury policy on 24 May 2011 in
relation to the Group's investments in securities of other listed
companies on the Stock Exchange. The objective of the policy is
to enable the Group to control and govern the possible future
securities investments (if any, which may or may not occur).

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2020 (defined
as the Group's total interest-bearing borrowings divided by the
Group's total equity) was approximately 1.6% (2019: 0.7%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Business transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group has not
implemented any foreign currency hedging policy at the moment.
However, in the view of the fluctuation of Renminbi in recent
years, continuous monitoring on the foreign exchange exposure is
carried out and the management will consider hedging the
foreign exchange exposure if it has material impact on the
Group.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided for in its financial statements
(2019: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2019: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DIVIDEND
The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yan Li (“Mr. Yan"), aged 49, joined the Company as an
executive Director in November 2020 and was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Board in December 2020. He received the
award of International Honorary Fellow of Greenville University in
the United States in 2020, was the vice president of Shenzhen
Non-Governmental Organization Federation and the vice president
of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Yan has over 8
years' experience in the management and administration in the
fields of advanced medical and biological technology. In 2014, he
founded Zhong Ji 1 International Medical Group (HK) Ltd. ("HK
Zhong Ji 1”) and is currently a director and the chief executive
officer of HK Zhong Ji 1. HK Zhong Ji 1 is dedicated to integrate
leading resources about the health of knee joint around the globe
and establish the world’'s leading international advanced medical
transformation platform through cell testing, cell storage and
enhancement, cell and gene therapies and the research and
development, transformation and sale of biotechnology products.
The Asian Integrated Cell Laboratory under HK Zhong Ji 1 is the
world’s leading autoimmune cell bank. Currently, Mr. Yan also
holds directorships in the Company's subsidiaries.

Mr. Yan holds, through his wholly and beneficially owned
company, 90.76% shareholding interest in HK Zhong Ji 1, which
in turn holds convertible notes issued by the Company in a
principal amount of HK$1,840,000,000, the conversion rights of
which, if exercised in full, are convertible into 9,200,000,000
Shares.

Mr. Yeung Siu Keung (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 37, joined the Group
as a project manager since 16 December 2019 and was
appointed as an executive Director on 17 December 2019. Mr.
Yeung is also an authorised representative of the Company.

Mr. Yeung obtained a Bachelor Degree of Commerce in
Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University in July 2008.
He was admitted as a certified public accountant of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in January 2012. He was
an independent non-executive director of Huarong International
Financial Holdings Limited, the issued shares of which are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 993),
from December 2012 to May 2017 and a company secretary of
Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited, the issued shares of which
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1246), from May 2015 to August 2017.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EXLaREEERE

Ms. Cao Xie Qiong (“Ms. Cao Xie"”), aged 52, joined the
Company as an executive Director in December 2020. Ms. Cao
Xie holds a Master of Business Administration from the Business
School of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
and is an honorary professor of the College of Business & Public
Management of Wenzhou-Kean University. She is a founding
member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association and a member of the Zhejiang Provincial Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. She
was a tourism ambassador for Zhejiang Province, a tourism
spokesperson of Anhui Province, an overseas promotion
ambassador for the Expo in Shanghai, a host at TVB in Hong
Kong as well as a film and TV producer. She invested in the food
and beverage industry in 2011 and was the brand director and
group vice president of two listed companies. She entered the
advanced biomedical technology sector in 2017 and is currently
the executive chairperson of the Weissman Cancer Prevention
Foundation.

Ms. Yu Yang (“Ms. Yu"), aged 37, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 6 October 2017. She served as the chief
executive officer of the Group from 20 January 2016 to 6
October 2017.

Ms. Yu previously served as the managing director of Greater
China at Eternal Capital, a family fund, and was responsible for
the overall operation, management and supervision of the
investment business of the company in China, as well as listing
projects covering real estate, finance, agriculture, husbandry and
high-tech industries. She also worked in Sino Group, which is
one of the top four real estate developers in Hong Kong. She
graduated from the University of Cambridge, the United Kingdom
and holds a master's degree in management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Choi Ngai Wah (“Ms. Choi"), aged 63, join the Company as
a non-executive Director in December 2020. She is currently the
director of Intretech (HK) Co., Limited, the chairperson and chief
executive officer of Overseas Chinese Leaders Union, the chief
executive officer (Hong Kong) of Asia Fortune Forum, the
chairperson of the Hong Kong charitable foundation of the China
Foundation of Culture and Arts for Children, the executive
chairperson of Hong Kong Chinese Industry & Commerce
Association, the chief executive officer of China One Country
Two Systems for Promoting Peaceful Reunification Council, the
chairperson of Minnan Normal University Alumni Association
(GHM), vice chairperson of the Hong Kong General Store and
Retail Industry Association and the deputy director of Blue Valley
Research Institute.

Ms. Ho Man Wai (“Ms. Ho"), aged 33, joined the Company as
an independent non-executive Director in March 2021. She is
also the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each
of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Board. Ms. Ho graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2010 with a bachelor's degree in business
administration in accountancy, and is a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Ho is currently a senior manager of Nortex
(HK) CPA Limited, and was previously the financial controller of a
listed company in Hong Kong.

Ms. Wang Weixia ("Ms. Wang"”), aged 39, joined the Company
as an independent non-executive Director in March 2021. She is
also the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member
of each of the audit committee and the nomination committee of
the Board. Ms. Wang graduated from Qingdao Agricultural
University with a degree in accounting in 2004 and joined the
legal profession in 2006. She is a partner of Guangdong Zhuojian
Law Firm since 2013. She is an independent director of Guizhou
Dongfeng Antimony Industry Co., Ltd. (E M EIE# E R MHAERE R
A]) since 2015 an independent director of Shenzhen L&A Design
Co., Ltd. ORINBERFTRMHBBERAF]), a company listed on
ChiNext I\/Iarket of Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
300949) since January 2016 and was an independent director of
Guangzhou Anbiping Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. (& /M
TN BEREROERA a company listed on the Sci-Tech
innovation board of Shangha| Stock Exchange (stock code:
688393) from 2015 to 2020. Ms. Wang has been engaged in
corporate counseling, corporate governance, private equity
investment funds, corporate investment and financing, mergers
and acquisitions and other legal practices for many years with
extensive experience in non-litigation and litigation legal
practices.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EELaREEERE

Mr. Mak Ping Leung (alias Mr. Mak Wah Cheung, “"Mr. Mak"),
aged 71, joined the Company as an independent non-executive
Director in December 2020. He is also a member of each of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Board.

Mr. Mak graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1973
with a bachelor's degree in arts. After his graduation, Mr. Mak
joined Wen Wei Po in Hong Kong as a reporter and was the
Bureau Chief of the European Bureau of Wen Wei Po in London
from 1981 to 1985. He and his partners jointly established Hong
Kong Economic Times in 1988 and acted as the managing
director and an executive director of Hong Kong Economic Times
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 423), from April 2005 to April 2020.
He was also the publisher of Hong Kong Economic Times and
Sky Post published by Hong Kong Economic Times Holdings
Limited. Mr. Mak was elected as one of the Ten Outstanding
Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1988 and won the Outstanding
Entrepreneurship Award granted by Enterprise Asia in 2012. He
was an honorary advisor of Hong Kong Institute of Marketing
from 2014 to 2018 and has been appointed as an advisor of
Hong Kong Association of Media Veterans since 2011. Mr. Mak
was an adjunct professor of the School of Journalism and
Communication, The Chinese University of Hong Kong and the
School of Communication, Hong Kong Baptist University,
respectively. Mr. Mak is currently an independent non-executive
director of Tai Hing Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6811) and an
independent non-executive director of Clifford Modern Living
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 3686).

Mr. To Langa Samuelson (“Mr. To"), aged 36, joined the Company
as an independent non-executive Director in March 2015. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Board. Mr.
To is a solicitor practicing in Hong Kong and a member of The
Law Society of Hong Kong. He obtained his Bachelor Degree in
Laws and the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. To has extensive experience in law
in Hong Kong, particularly in civil and insurance-related matters.
Mr. To is currently the consultant of Rita Law & Co..
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Academician Randy Wayne Schekman (“Academician
Schekman”), is a profound cell biologist. He received a BA in
Molecular Sciences from the University of California, Los Angeles
in 1971 and received a doctorate in biochemistry in 1975 from
Stanford University for research on DNA replication. He has been
a member of the National Academy of Sciences since 1992, and
was elected the President of the American Society for Cell
Biology in 1999. He was the founding director of the Stem Cell
Center of the University of California, Berkeley in 2015. He was
former editor-in-chief of Proceedings of the National Academy of
Sciences. In 2011, he was announced as the editor-in-chief of
elLife, a high-profile open-access journal published by the Howard
Hughes Medical Institute, the Max Planck Society and the
Wellcome Trust launching in 2012. He shared the 2013 Nobel
Prize for Physiology or Medicine with James Rothman and
Thomas C. Su~dhof and received the Golden Plate Award of the
American Academy of Achievement in 2017. Academician
Schekman is currently the Chairman of Zhong Ji 1 International
Medical Group (USA) and the President of World Life Sciences
and Healthcare Association.

Mr. Chen Youhua (“Mr. Chen"”), holds a Bachelor Degree in
Accountancy from Shandong Economics College, PRC and an
Executive Master Degree of Business Administration from Inner
Mongolia University, PRC. Mr. Chen had been executive directors
of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chen has worked for a
number of companies in PRC, taking the positions of financial
controller, vice president or president in such companies. Mr.
Chen has accumulated over 20 years of working experience in
the fields of financial and corporate management.

Mr. Liu Wai Kin was appointed as the company secretary and an
authorised representative of the Company since July 2019. He is
an associate member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators of the United Kingdom.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EETHE

The Directors present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 29 January 2021 and
with the approval of the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda on
3 March 2021 and the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on
17 March 2021, the name of the Company was changed from
Asia Pacific Silk Road Investment Company Limited to Zhong Ji
Longevity Science Group Limited.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. The address of its registered office is Victoria
Place, b5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street Hamilton, HM 10, Bermuda.
The principal place of business of the Company is Suite Nos.
01-03, 19/F., Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
through its subsidiaries, engaging in the business of longevity
science, money lending, securities investments and investment
advisory. The activities and the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The discussion and analysis of principal activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including financial key
performance indicators, a fair review of the Company’s business,
a description of principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company and future development in the Company’s business,
can be found in “Financial Results”, “Business Review” and
“Outlook” sections under the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.
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It is the Company’s belief that improvements in environmental,
social and governance (“"ESG") matters will enhance the
long-term performance of the Company as well as the benefits of
the Company’'s primary stakeholders, which include the
Shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers and other
business partners. Taking environmental policy as an example,
the Group is committed to build up an environmental-friendly
working environment by promoting energy savings in the offices
and collecting waste papers for recycling. The Group will
continue to make efforts to minimise its operational impact on
the environment and the use of natural resources. An ESG report
will be published separately on the Company’s website to report
the Company’s ESG policies and its compliance with the “comply
or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide
contained in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2020. The said ESG report is expected to be
published on the Company's website no later than the end of
May 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group, to the best of
our knowledge, has complied with the Money Lenders
Ordinance, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing
Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and other relevant laws and
regulations.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 68
and page 69 respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend
payout of the Company must be in accordance with relevant
laws, rules and regulations and subject to the bye-laws of the
Company. Subject to compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and the bye-laws, in deciding whether to propose any
dividend payout, the Board will take into account the Group's
financial results, the earnings and distributable reserves, the
operations and liquidity requirements, the debt ratio and possible
effects on the credit lines, and the development plans of the
Company.
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DONATIONS
There was no donation made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL AND MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE
NOTES

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company and the
Convertible Notes during the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 29 and note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the Share Option Scheme and the Convertible Notes
issued, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Movements in the distributable reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 72.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year
December 2020 and up to the date of this report are:

ended 31

Executive Directors
Mr. YAN Li (Chairman) (appointed on 13 November 2020)

Mr. YEUNG Siu Keung

Ms. CAO XIE Qiong (appointed on 16 December 2020)

Mr. LI Jiuhua (resigned on 10 January 2020 due to his other
business commitments and devote additional time to his family)
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Ms. YU Yang
Ms. CHOI Ngai Wah (appointed on 31 December 2020)

Ms. HO Man Wai (appointed on 16 March 2021)

Ms. WANG Weixia (appointed on 16 March 2021)

Mr. MAK Ping Leung (alias Mr. MAK Wah Cheung) (appointed on
31 December 2020)

Mr. TO Langa Samuelson

Mr. CHAN Wai Dune (appointed on 31 December 2020 and
resigned on 16 March 2021)

Mr. ZHENG Zhen (resigned on 31 December 2020 due to the
pursuit of his personal and other business commitment)

Mr. WONG Man Hong (appointed on 23 June 2020 and resigned
on 31 December 2020 due to the pursuit of his personal and
other business commitment)

Mr. LEE Man To (resigned on 1 June 2020 due to pursue other
business opportunities and interests outside of the Company
and its subsidiaries)

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
21 to 25 of this annual report. Mr. Yan Li holds, through his
wholly and beneficially owned company, 90.76% shareholding
interest in HK Zhong Ji 1, which in turn holds convertible notes
issued by the Company in a principal amount of
HK$1,840,000,000, the conversion rights of which, if exercised in
full, are convertible into 9,200,000,000 Shares. Other than the
aforesaid, none of the Directors has any relationship with the
substantial shareholders as at the date of this report.

In accordance with clause 99 of the Company's Bye-laws, Ms.
Yu Yang and Mr. To Langa Samuelson shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting by rotation. All these two
retiring Directors, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the annual general meeting.

In addition, each of Ms. Cao Xie Qiong, Ms. Choi Ngai Wah, Ms.
Ho Man Wai and Ms. Wang Weixia, who was appointed by the
Board since the last annual general meeting, shall retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to
clause 102(B) of the Company’s Bye-laws and being eligible, has
offered herself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

RHER L
gEELL (R
BT

\—E_FTHF+_A=+—H

MXBZLt(RZE=_—F=R+"BEZT)
TRELXT(RZZBE-_—F=A+BEZMT)
BEMRAEE(XE  BEEXRL)

(RZBE-_FF+_A=+—HEZI)
BRI A
BumEE(R_E_ZEF+_A=+—HEZ

EER-ZZT-_—F=A+XBEI)
HEartEt(BEAREBEAEEEMRN - _F
F+ZA=+—HEE)
BEREREAERZE-EFATZAEZE
REBAREMHEEEMN _T_TF+=
A=+—H#&T)
FEEEE(ASKARBREWE AR AINZ
Hithmg ENamR S F A —B#
)

EEHEFBHNAFHRE21Z258H - Bk
S EREEERMBZARIRERAPE R
90.76% X m - MBABREI1RFTERAAF M
B 1TR 4 58 /51,840,000,0008 T 2 AT AR =
i = @7 FEMBLHBE AL B®RA
9,200,000,0008% f& 7 o B Lt & 5N - AR &
HE HEE=mFTRREETMABER-

BRBAQB ZABAEFIME - KRG L LRI
BAMAEEBREERRAFAS EWERMT -
ﬁhﬂ&i%ﬁWAﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬂkﬁﬂiﬁ
eLESER

AN - RIFARR 2 REIABRIE102(B) 1% - B L
—ERRAFAEUREEEZSEZELERXK
T HEEZL AXBRIRIRELXLTH
REERRBAFRE LEE I?—T B8 BB
EREERRAFASLEXEER

29



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEGHE

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

The Board has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in
information on the Directors since the last published 2020
interim report of the Company and up to the date of this report
were set out below:

(@) Mr. Yan Li was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Board on
16 December 2020 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

(b)  Mr. Mak Ping Leung was appointed as a member of each
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of the Board on 31 December
2020.

() Ms. Ho Man Wai was appointed as the chairman of the audit
committee and a member of each of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the Board on
16 March 2021.

(d)  Ms. Wang Weixia was appointed as the chairman of the
remuneration committee and a member of each of the
audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Board on 16 March 2021.

No transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company, any of its
fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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Other than the section of “Share Options” disclosed below, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2020 was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors
and their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) is considered to have any interests in the businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, other than those
businesses where the Directors were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or the Group.

On 14 December 2020, b /E N+ A%E R AR (Shanghai
Yugong Financial Consulting Company Limited*, the “Lender”),
an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a loan agreement with It R EEEEFEMAEER QA
(Beijing Tailong Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*) (the
“Borrower"”), pursuant to which the Lender has agreed to
provide a loan with principal amount of up to RMB100,000,000
(the “Loan”) to the Borrower for a term of Thirty-six (36) months
at the interest rate of 6.0% per annum (the “Loan Agreement”).

On 30 October 2020, It REZHEERZERER QA (Beijing
Huiju Wealth Management Consulting Company Limited*, the
“Previous Lender"”), an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and the Borrower entered into a loan agreement
pursuant to which the Previous Lender granted to the Borrower a
loan in the principal amount of RMB29,000,000 (the “Previous
Loan”) for a term of three hundred and sixty five (365) days at
the interest rate of 6.0% per annum.

As the Loan and the Previous Loan were granted to the
Borrower within a 12-month period prior to and inclusive of the
date of the Loan Agreement, the Loan and the Previous Loan
shall be aggregated as a series of transactions pursuant to Rule
14.22 of the Listing Rules. As the assets ratio as defined under
Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules in respect of the Loan and the
Previous Loan in aggregate exceeds 8%, the provision of the
Loan and the Previous Loan constitute an advance to an entity.

* For identification purposes only
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On 18 November 2020, Perpetual Master Limited (the
“Distributor”) , a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
entered into a distribution agreement with HK Zhong Ji 1 (the
“Distribution Agreement”), pursuant to which HK Zhong Ji 1
has agreed to grant to the Distributor the non-exclusive right to
distribute and sell health products and the right to use the
trademarks owned by HK Zhong Ji 1. Mr. Yan Li,
Director, through his wholly- and beneficially-owned company,
holds 90.76% shareholding interest in HK Zhong Ji 1. The
transactions contemplated under the Distribution Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company.
The Distribution Agreement was terminated on 10 December
2020.

an executive

Save as disclosed above, there was no connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to date of this
report which was required to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to clause 178 of the Company’'s Bye-Laws, every
Director, secretary and other officers shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of assets of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
he/she may incur or sustain by reason of any act execution of
their duty in their offices.

Such provision was in force during the course of the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 and remained in force as of the
date of this report. The Company has taken out and maintained
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance throughout the year,
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.
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The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
12 June 2012 (the "Adoption Date"”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide incentives to the grantee, including
employee, officer, agent, consultant or representative of the
Group (including any executive or non-executive director of any
member of the Group), to contribute to the Group and to enable
the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and attract resources
that are valuable to the Group. The Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the Adoption Date and will expire on 11 June 2022.

At the annual general meeting held on 2 June 2017, the
Shareholders duly approved the existing scheme mandate limit
under the Share Option Scheme be refreshed and renewed
provided that the total number of shares of the Company which
may be allotted and issued pursuant to the grant or exercises of
the options under the Share Option Scheme (excluding options
previously granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised
under the Share Option Scheme) shall not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at 2 June 2017, that is
387,010,265 shares of the Company. The Directors are
authorised, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, to grant
options under the Share Option Scheme up to the refreshed limit
and to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and
deal with shares of the Company pursuant to the exercise of
such options granted under the Share Option Scheme. The
subscription price will be a price determined by the Board and at
least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of
grant of the option, which must be a business day; (b) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares. The total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of options must not exceed 30%
of the number of shares in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted if such grant would result in the 30% limit being
exceeded. Details were shown in the circular of the Company
dated 28 April 2017.
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The maximum number of shares of the Company (issued and to
be issued) upon exercise of the share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including options exercised, cancelled or outstanding)
to each eligible person in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
unless approval of the Shareholders is obtained. Any grant of
share options to a Director, the chief executive of the Company,
substantial Shareholder, or Controlling Shareholder or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), is subject
to approval by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding independent non-executive Director who is the grantee
of the share options). In addition, where the Board proposes to
grant any share options to a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates, and such share options, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all the share options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the past 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant in excess of 0.1% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue on the date of grant
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company on the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share options is subject to
the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting.

On 31 December 2020, the Company granted an aggregate of
386,800,000 share options to 10 eligible grantees (none of the
grantees nor any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) are Directors, chief executives or substantial
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company)
with an exercise price of HK$0.400 per new share. The period
during which these share options can be exercised is from
31 December 2023 to 30 December 2030. No share options
were exercised, canceled or lapsed during the year. There were
386,800,000 share options outstanding as at 31 December
2020.

Save as disclosed above, there were no share options granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, the chief executive of the Company nor their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interests or
short positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such Directors or the chief
executive of the Company is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company, pursuant to
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Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required to be notified to XA T :
the Company or the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing rules, were as follows:
Number of
Number of underlying Shares Percentage
Name of Director Shares held held (Note 2) Total (Note 2)
Fr#EE B
BB EE Aotk
EEgE iR 8B (Ktit2) e (Bt az2)
Mr. Yan Li - 9,200,000,000 (L) 9,200,000,000 (S) 9,200,000,000 (L)
B kst 9,200,000,000 (S) 237.72% (L) 237.72% (S)
Notes: Bt -
1. Mr. Yan Li holds, through his wholly and beneficially owned company, 1. BYAEBREZEESHBZAREEE AR E

90.76% shareholding interest in Zhong Ji 1 International Medical Group
(Hong Kong) Limited, which in turn holds convertible notes issued by the
Company in a principal amount of HK$1,840,000,000, the conversion rights
of which, if exercised in full, are convertible into 9,200,000,000 shares of
the Company.

2. This represented the approximate percentage of the total number of issued
Shares as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company and/or their
respective close associates had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as being known to the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the interests and short
positions of the substantial Shareholders or other persons (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the
Shares and underlying Shares which have been disclosed to the
Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and have been recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company:

TERRRARG HEBERORESZ

=

=

R-ZZB_ZFFE+_A=1+—H BRARAESFH
%%?TE&/\E\FJ?%D TERRFIHMALRR

AEFHERITRABRIN KRB KARBEKN
THAEREBRE SR BEEHBEXVEBE2RINH
ZIEXEMARRRERE L AREEF LY

BEiEHIEI6HEARAAFECELMoERE R
KRBT
REQAFTEBRZER
Approximate
Number of percentage of
underlying  Total number of issued share

Number of
Shares held in

Shares entitled in

Shares in long

capital of the

long position (L)/ long position (L)/ position (L)/short Company
Name Capacity short position (S) short position (S) position (S) (Note 1)
BALT
Fi % EX BETRAZ
BRL/RAG) HEWL/KRES) HRL/ KRS CEER
8B/ 1% &% RHEE RERHEE RAEZ (K1)
(I) Substantial Shareholders
) TERR
Harmony Delight Holdings Limited Beneficial owner - 10,912,000,000 (L) 10,912,000,000 (L) 281.96%(L)
("Harmony Delight") (Notes 2 and 3)
WRERAERAR (MR E2k3) EREAA
Ma Hongyi (Note 4) Interest of controlled corporation - 10,912,000,000 (L) 10,912,000,000 (L) 281.96%I(L)

BEEWit4) REHARER
Zhong Ji 1 International Medical Group Beneficial owner

{Hong Kong) Limited (“Zhong Ji 1")

(Notes 3 and 5)
EEPRIREREREEARAT

([ &15: ) (W2 35%5)

ERAAA

China International Osteoarticular Medical
Group Limited (Note 6/

Interest of controlled corporation

China International Osteoarticular Medical % 2 | A 51
Group Limited (4/726)
36 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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- 9,200,000,000 (L) 9,200,000,000 (L) 23172% (L)
9,200,000,000 (S} 9,200,000,000 (S) 23172% (S)
- 9,200,000,000 (L) 9,200,000,000 (L) 23172% (L)
9,200,000,000 (S} 9,200,000,000 (S) 23172% (S)



Name

£H/HA

Hong Kong Financial Services Asset
Management L.P.

Hong Kong Financial Services Asset
Management L.P.

Success Seven Limited (Note 7)
Success Seven Limited (f7i£7)

Jiang Jianhui (Note 8/
EEBWHY)

Allied Summit Inc. (Note 9)
Allied Surnmit Inc. (#7529

Su WeiBiao (Note 10)
BER (M0

(Il) Other Persons

() £ At
DeTai Finance Limited
BRUBARAT

Treasure Champion Limited (Note 17
Treasure Champion Limited (#7£71)

DeTai New Energy Group Limited
(Note 12)
BRAERERAERLA N Z1)

Capacity

54

Beneficial owner

EZAAA

Interest of controlled corporation
REHLRER
Beneficial owner

EZAAA

Interest of controlled corporation
REHLRER

Beneficial owner

EZAAA

Interest of controlled corporation
REHLRER

Person having a security interest in shares

BERNEARE AL

Interest of controlled corporation
YDA

Interest of controlled corporation

REHATER

Number of

Number of underlying
Shares held in  Shares entitled in
long position (L)/ long position (L)/
short position (S) short position (S)

ik X
RAEWL/KROG) BEL/KAS)
RH&E RERAEE

2,129,143,068 (L) -

2,129,143,068 (L) -
192,324,703 (L)

2,321,467771(L) -

580,659,755 (L) -

580,659,755 ()

580,659, 755(L)
580,659,765(S)

580,669,765 (L) -

580,659,755 (L) -

580,669,765 (L) -
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Total number of
Shares in long
position (L)/short
position (S)

BEL)/ %A
eS|

2,129,143,068 (L)

2,301,467771 (L)

2,301,467771 (L)
580,659,755 (L)
580,659,755 ()

580,659, 755(L)
580,659,765(S)

580,669,765 (L)

580,659,755 (L)

580,669,765 (L)

EFxEWmE

Approximate
percentage of
issued share
capital of the
Company
(Note 1)
BALT
BETREZ
BOEAL
(&)

56.02% (L)

59.98%(L)

59.98%(L)

15%(L)

16%(S)

15%(L)
15%(S)

15% (L)

16% (L)

15% (L)
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Notes:

Based on a total of 3,870,102,650 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2020.

Harmony Delight held convertible notes with conversion price of HK$0.2 per
Share issued by the Company (the “Convertible Notes”) in the principal
amount of HK$342,400,000.

On 5 November 2020, a mortgage was entered into between Zhong Ji 1 as
mortgagor and Harmony Delight as mortgagee in respect of the Convertible
Notes in the principal amount of HK$1,840,000,000.

Harmony Delight was wholly owned by Mr. Ma Hongyi.

Zhong Ji 1 held the Convertible Notes amount of

HK$1,840,000,000.

in the principal

Zhong Ji 1 was 90.76% owned by China International Osteoarticular Medical
Group Limited, which in turn wholly owned by Mr. Yan Li.

Hong Kong Financial Services Asset Management L.P. was wholly owned
by Success Seven Limited.

Success Seven Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Jiang Jianhui.

On 8 October 2019, Allied Summit Inc. charged 580,659,755 Shares in
favour to DeTai Finance Limited.

Allied Summit Inc. was wholly owned by Mr. Su Weibiao.

DeTai Finance Limited was wholly owned by Treasure Champion Limited.

Treasure Champion Limited was wholly owned by DeTai New Energy Group
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company
had not been notified of any other interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and
the largest customer represented approximately 69% and 25%
respectively (2019: 73% and 23% respectively) of the Group's
total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount
of cost of services attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers and the largest supplier represented approximately 90%
and 41% respectively (2019: 91% and 45% respectively) of the
Group's total cost of services.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers as at 31 December 2020.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for all of its employees in Hong Kong and
defined contribution retirement plans for the Group’s eligible
employees in the PRC. Particulars of the MPF Scheme are set
out in “Other employee benefits” section under note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
As at 31 December 2020, 3,870,102,650 ordinary shares with a
par value of HK$0.001 each were in issue. Details are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the best knowledge of the Directors, the Board
confirmed that the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2020 except the following period:
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On 7 January 2020, immediately upon the close of the general
offer, 954,975,124 Shares, representing approximately 24.68% of
the total number of issued Shares on that date were held by the
public (as defined in the Listing Rules). As such, the minimum
public float requirement of 25% as set out under Rule 8.08(1) of
the Listing Rules was not satisfied. On the same day, the Stock
Exchange has granted the Company a temporary waiver from
strict compliance with Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules for a
period from 2 January 2020 to 2 April 2020.

On 24 March 2020, the offeror disposed 13,000,000 Shares,
967,975,124 Shares were held by the public (as defined under the
Listing Rules), representing approximately 25.01% of the total
issued Shares on that date. Accordingly, the minimum public float
of the Company was restored and the Company is in compliance
with Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules since then.

The Group has not made any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries during the reporting year.

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting date are
set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company's consolidated financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 were audited by
Zenith CPA Limited.

A resolution for reappointment of Zenith CPA Limited as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited

Yan Li
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is committed to uphold a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence
and maximising Shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of Shareholders and comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements (both locally and
internationally), and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provision(s)”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during
the year except for the following deviations:

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same person. The Company’s
chairman was vacant since 10 July 2018. The vacancy of
chairman was filled following the appointment of Mr. Yan Li as
the chairman of the Board on 16 December 2020. In addition,
following the resignation of Mr. Li Jiuhua, the role of the chief
executive was vacant since 10 January 2020. The Board shall
identify suitable candidate to fill the vacancy of chief executive.

Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code stipulates that issuers
should establish a nomination committee which is chaired by the
chairman of the Board or an independent non-executive director.
The chairman of the nomination committee of the Board was
vacant following Mr. Lee Man To's resignation on 1 June 2020.

The Board had used its best endeavours to identify and appoint
a new independent non-executive director and chairman of the
Board committees. Following the appointment of Mr. Wong Man
Hong on 23 June 2020, the Company has complied with Code
Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code.
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As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of three
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. Formal letters of
appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment were executed by all Directors.
Mr. Yan Li and Ms. Cao Xie Qiong were not appointed for a
specific or proposed term; Mr. Yeung Siu Keung, Ms. Choi Ngai
Wah, Ms. Ho Man Wai and Ms. Wang Weixia and Mr. Mak Ping
Leung were appointed for a term of two years; and Ms. Yu Yang
and Mr. To Langa Samuelson were appointed for a term of one
year but all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company.

The key responsibility of the Board is overseeing the business
and how the management serves the interests of the
Shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board assumes
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders, and ensure good
corporate governance and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

The roles of the Board include reviewing and guiding corporate
strategies and policies, monitoring financial and operating
performance and setting appropriate risk management policies.
All Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. To achieve this, the Board has adopted corporate
governance principles aimed at ensuring that the Board is
independent and fully informed on the key strategic issues facing
the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, risk management and
internal control, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing, and coordinating the daily operation of the
Company are delegated to the management.
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The Board has established three board committees, being the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee (collectively the “"Board Committees”) to
oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs. All Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense.

Under the Bye-Laws of the Company, one-third of the Directors,
or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest one-third, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation. They are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting and their re-election is subject to a vote of the
Shareholders. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting at which they retire. Further, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company but shall
be eligible for re-election at the meeting. Separate resolutions are
proposed for the election of each Director.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material relationships with each other. Such balanced Board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists
across the Board.

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in
pages 21 to 25 of this annual report, which demonstrates a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualification.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRS

EEeERU-RHESEZEE  HRAERE
Bg FHZEChRAZES(LBAIES
ZE28)) EBARATRABEEL - - 20E2F
ZESHEREREMERBITERSE  HAlE
HEBEXSRBEUEEEZR  BEAAALARR
HIE o

REBEARAR AR EBERREAFAE
b ER=ZNDz-EFEARAF=Z=0F
B RARBEOI=Z02Z— 2 ABRE)BRER
T AURXRRRARAEREME - REEEHLAS
ERRNZBRRAFAGLETERE - 1o - £
MEZEFNERGEREZR2ESTHEZAR
ATEERRAFAS EESTAERERE
B ARAHRIEEE - REFREBILARE

o

Ll

EEeRBRIEZHABMENS X5 KiE=X
HMBBARE EFGIKREHEATEH  HBR
EFEgA RN BILER -

EEXMEFBHARATFRENEDE RES
BRI FXNE EREEE -

43



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRS

The Company’s chairman was vacant since 10 July 2018. The
vacancy was filled following the appointment of Mr. Yan Li as the
chairman of the Board on 16 December 2020. In addition,
following the resignation of Mr. Li Jiuhua, the role of the chief
executive was vacant since 10 January 2020. The Board shall
identify suitable candidate to fill the vacancy of chief executive.
Further be made in relation to the
appointment of the new chief executive as and when
appropriate.

announcement will

As at the date of this report, the composition of the Board and
the Board Committees are given below and their respective
responsibilities are discussed in this report.

Board of Directors

Exg

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. YAN Li SRy S
Mr. YEUNG Siu Keung 58k A
Ms. CAO XIE Qiong BERut
Non-Executive Directors EBITESE
Ms. YU Yang R+t
Ms. CHOI Ngai Wah BEHEL LT

Independent Non-executive Directors B HTESE

Ms. HO Man Wai A E L+
Ms. WANG Weixia TREXL
Mr. MAK Ping Leung BIRE S A
(alias: Mr. MAK Wah Cheung) (X&B - BEELE)
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson BRI A

An updated list of the Directors, identifying their roles and
functions at the Company, is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules, the Board and the Audit Committee should include at least
three independent non-executive Directors and members
respectively. In compliance with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Board should have at least one-third in number of its
members comprising independent non-executive Directors. At
least one of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise that complies with Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

Following the resignation of Mr. Lee Man To as an independent
non-executive Directors on 1 June 2020, the number of
independent non-executive Directors were reduced from three to
two, which falls below the minimum number required under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. Mr. Lee was also the chairman of
each of the audit committee and the remuneration committee of
the Board and the vacancy thereof resulted in the non-fulfilment
of the requirements under Rules 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing
Rules. As additional time was required by the Company to
identify a suitable candidate, the Company has applied to the
Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has granted to the
Company, a waiver from strict compliance with Rules 3.10(1),
3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

Following the appointment of Mr. Wong Man Hong as an
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of each of
the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board on 23 June 2020, the Company has
complied with (i) Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules in relation to
the composition of the Board; (i) Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
regarding to the composition and the chairman requirement of
the audit committee; and (iii) Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
regarding to the chairman requirement of the remuneration
committee.

The Company has received from all independent non-executive
Directors annual confirmations of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent.
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The number of Board meetings, committees meetings and
general meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2020
and the Directors’ respective attendance record are summarised

as follows:

Number of Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

hE/ AEREREENY
Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Name of Director EEpg Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Exg EnZEE REZEE ¥MzEEe RRABEAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Yan Li (appointed on BUfAE(RZZZ%%

13 November 2020) T-A+=REZH) 9/9 - - - -
Mr. Yeung Siu Keung BhEfi 27127 - - - 10
Ms. Cao Xie Qiong (appointed on E2LUT(N_F_3F

16 December 2020) T-AT/ BEZA) 33 - - - -
Mr. Li Jiuhua (resigned on FNEXE(RZZCE

10 January 2020) —ATREL) 202 - - - -
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Ms. Yu Yang rERT 23127 - - - 11
Ms. Choi Ngai Wah (appointed on EEELT(NZT2FF

31 December 2020) TZA=T-HREZH) - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEES
Mr. Mak Ping Leung ERREE

(alias Mr. Mak Wah Cheung) (R&:EEERHE) - - - - -
Mr. To Langa Samuelson HEBmEE 22/27 3/3 6/6 33 10
Mr. Chan Wai Dune (appointed on BRém (RS

31 December 2020 and resigned on T-AZt-HEZAR

16 March 2021) RZFZ-F=A+/ A

B - - - - -
Mr. Wong Man Hong (resigned on BHRAEN-ZCE

31 December 2020) TZA=T-HEfA) 14/15 10 212 0 -
Mr. Zheng Zhen (resigned on grEEE(R=22%

31 December 2020) TZA=+- HM) 26/27 313 6/6 313 n
Mr. Lee Man To (resigned on 1 June 2020) Z§EE4(R-F-F4%

NA—BET) 9/10 212 212 1 -
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Regular Board meetings are convened and held by the Company,
and the Directors are given adequate notice to attend such
regular Board meetings or other Board meetings. The Directors
are also provided in a timely manner with appropriate information
in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make an
informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors. Minutes of regular Board meetings,
other Board meetings or other committees meetings are
recorded in sufficient details. Draft and final versions of minutes
are circulated to all Directors for comments and records
respectively, within a reasonable time after the Board meetings
or committee meetings are held. Final versions of minutes are
kept by the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

For having a diversified Board which is regarded as an essential
element in the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development, in August 2013, the Board adopted a
Board Diversity Policy with principles as summarised below.

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the
composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the
Board on appointment of new Directors. The Nomination
Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Board. In reviewing and assessing the
composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will
consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity in order to
maintain an appropriate range and balance of talents, skills,
experience and background on the Board. In recommending
candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective
criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service etc.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of the legal action against the Directors and the
Company Secretary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
DEEARE

AR EHABRRETEEESH -
BEZANBAN NWHEZSEHEFS

ﬁ%%ﬁ

Eu#:

HEZE@Z EFTEBERIRELA
LREEZER WEREELHMBERE RETT

EREE 2 HBERBE THESg s  H
= e L BRI e
HELHRSAEEE 2R LB VB REER
IRAEAERESTTERITETTRRTE
BABNBAR>EESEMMETmRLE -
CRLBZBRERRABARRZARKWE (AT
REDET IHAMNEZTRBEITMNEEE
MzeEBEBAEAHER -

R
BEE ®a

EEgNEZTELRERERBRARKEESR

RNERBTE Bt EFE2R_T—=FN\
ARMEFEKRBEZ UK - R0
T~ e

REZEERIMFEEFTE2HEN XHE
THEFNESTERIEZ REZBEETE
BEREFEURETFERS - N kTG
EFEeHEKE REZEEREENETE
yﬁmzm*'uﬁ%i$a%AET%*&

CRBRERERTEZEERERTE R
%A ENZREMAEZEFTER  REZEEHK
EBRHAERAZ LEEBEMAEFENES
bz E  BREETRREFZMER - Fik -
XERBEES B FELR K- A
BRI FRE -

ARRCHEERARWEAIRE Y 2 XRF
RIEHBEERREZHE -
47



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRS

Each newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
operations and businesses of the Group as well as his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

During the year, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Group's business and operation and information which
covered topics including but not limited to the CG Code, the
disclosure and compliance of inside information, updates and
changes in relation to legislative and regulatory requirements in
which the Group conducts its business for their study and
reference. During the vyear, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. All Directors, including the former directors
received regular briefings and updates from the Company
Secretary on the Group's business, operations and corporate
governance matters, studied publications, books and other
reading materials or attended seminars or workshops delivered by
professionals, which are relevant to their duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having
made enquiry to all Directors, they all have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code during the year.

48
2020 Annual Report

ARRABRMETEFRHEEZEAHER - K
BREHAGEZEZEREZHFUAREBRENR
EHRAMEEEERE T AT EEERE -

FA 2REFCTHESERAEEEBLRK
LEZRHMEN UERREHBREEMIENE
B BRETRREBEEEE AT  AEH
ERENRGHREE ULABAEEETER
CUEREBEREENMRED  UHEEHR
k2% - FR 2REFC2EFEIXEER
NIBERERBEFZMBERXE - 2BEF (B
ETEREEMELRMERTABAEE
X 2BREXEARAFEZIENREHER
VEMEENEMBEMBEABE 2T &5
REMHEMHIHFEAERIERERAL
RUEZHAEBIL -

AAREHEMETRANME P2 EHETA
EFETEFRRGNFEETU(REFAU DM
FREFETESRHBRTHEA - 2BEF
PREXEARER  RERFACETHRE
SRS 2 RERE -



As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises of four independent non-executive Directors, Ms.
Wang Weixia (Chairman), Ms. Ho Man Wai, Mr. Mak Ping Leung
(alias: Mr. Mak Wah Cheung) and Mr. To Langa Samuelson.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are:

(@)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration;

(b)  to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management (i.e. the model described in the code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code), including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee should consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;

(c)  to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

(d) to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment
to ensure that such compensation is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for the
Company;
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(e)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that such arrangements are determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that any
compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

(f)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

The remuneration payable to the Directors and senior
management is determined by reference to their experiences and
duties with the Company and the estimated time spent by them
on the Company’'s matters. During the year, 3 meetings were
held to (a) review the Company's policy on remuneration of the
Group; (b) review the performance and recommended the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management to the
Board; and (c) recommend the remuneration of newly appointed
Directors and senior management to the Board.

Details of the Directors’ and the chief executive’'s remuneration
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises of the chairman of the board and four independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Yan Li (Chairman), Ms. Ho Man Wai,
Ms. Wang Weixia, Mr. Mak Ping Leung f(alias: Mr. Mak Wah
Cheung) and Mr. To Langa Samuelson.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are:

(@)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and length of service) of the
Board at least annually; and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to implement the
Company's corporate strategy;

(b)  to consider the skills mix needed in respect of the Directors
and make recommendations to the Board;

(c)  to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies
of the Directors for the Board’s approval. Academic and
professional qualifications, business experience, expertise
and knowledge as well as other requirements under the
Listing Rules will be assessed to determine if the
nomination is suitable;
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(d) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and review the independent non-executive
Directors’ annual confirmations on their independence; and
make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report;

(e) to regularly review the time required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities;

(f)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of the
Directors and succession planning for the Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive;

(g) to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board; and

(h)  to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the Company's constitution or imposed by
legislation.

During the year, 6 meetings were held by the Nomination
Committee to, among other things, (a) review the structure, size
and composition of the Board, (b) make recommendation for
appointment of the Directors, (c) assess the independence of
each of the independent non-executive Directors, and (d) review
the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises of
four independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Ho Man Wai
(Chairman), Ms. Wang Weixia, Mr. Mak Ping Leung (alias: Mr.
Mak Wah Cheung) and Mr. To Langa Samuelson.
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The role and function of the Audit Committee are:

52

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the external auditor before the audit
the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations, and ensure co-ordination where more
than one audit firm is involved;

commences,

to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, external auditor shall include any entity that is
under common control, ownership or management with the
audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third
party having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the
Board, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken; and

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company's relations with the external auditor.
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to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim
report and, if preparation for publication of quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them. In this regard, in reviewing
the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim report
and if prepared for publication, quarterly reports before
submission to the Board, the Audit Committee should focus
particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgemental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumption and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

legal

as regards to (e) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee must liaise with the
Board, the Company’s senior management and the
person appointed as the Company’'s qualified
accountant and the Audit Committee must meet, at
least twice a vyear, with the Company’'s external
auditors; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant
items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in such reports and accounts and must give
due consideration to any matters that have been
raised by the Company's staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or external auditors.

or unusual

(e)
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(m)

54

to review the Group's financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate board risk committee, or by the
Board itself, to review the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

internal audit function exists, to ensure
coordination between the internal and external auditors, and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group,
and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

where an

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in this terms
of reference;

to review the Company's arrangements for its employees
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee shall ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
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()  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board,

n to
professional
management;

review and monitor the training and continuous
development of the Directors and senior

(s)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

review and monitor the code of conduct and
applicable to employees and the

(t)  to develop,
compliance manual
Directors; and

(u)  to review the Company’'s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the half-
yearly and annual financial results and reports as well as the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems and internal audit function. The Audit Committee
also met the external auditor and monitored the re-appointment
of external auditor. Besides, the Audit Committee performed the
corporate governance duties as delegated by the Board as
discussed above.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total remuneration
paid to Zenith CPA Limited was HK$1,400,000 for audit services
and non-audit services provided for the Company. Such total
remuneration included HK$1,400,000 for audit fee, which was
approved by the Board and HK$0 for review of interim results.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group which are
prepared in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards in force, and are published in
a timely manner. The Directors are responsible for selecting and
applying on a consistent basis suitable accounting policies and
ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board understands the importance of presenting a clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s overall performance,
financial positions as well as prospects in a timely manner; and
the Board is pleased to report that, so far, the annual and interim
results of the Group are announced within the prescribed
periods.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in (i) maintaining the
risk management and internal control system for the Group to
safeguard the investments of the Shareholders and assets of the
Group at all times; and (ii) evaluating the effectiveness of such
system. The system of internal control aims to help achieving the
Group’s business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining
proper accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information. However, the design of the system is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets and to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks of failure when business
objectives are being sought.

Described below are the main features of the Group's risk
management and internal control framework:

o The Directors and senior management are committed to
developing and maintaining high professional and ethical
standards and the Group provides sufficient training to
accounting and financial personnel to keep pace with the
growth and/or complexity of the business.
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° Mechanisms are in place to identify and assess the risks of
fraud that affect achievement of the Group's objectives.

o Any risk identified should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board and be investigated. Immediate
action should be taken to mitigate the risk.

° Administrative information system provides necessary
information to an appropriate employee of the Group at the
necessary level of detail on a timely basis.

° Channels are established for employees of the Group to
communicate suspected improprieties upstream through
other than a direct supervisor.

° Policies and procedures are laid down for key business
processes for ensuring management directives are carried
out.

° Control activities include segregation of duties, authorisation,
physical count, access control, documentation and records,
etc.

° Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance is
carried out.

° Professional third party is engaged to assess and comment

on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems.

The management has regular meetings with officers from
different operation divisions to identify significant risks and to
discuss the likelihood of occurrence, the impact of such risks and
risk mitigation strategic. The management then reports to the
Audit Committee and the Board with recommendations and
mitigation measures. The Board is responsible for determining
the risk mitigating strategy.
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The Group has outsourced the internal audit function by engaging
a professional third party to assess and comment on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems during the vyear. There was no significant
deficiencies in risk management and internal controls reported by
such professional third party.

In relation to the handling and dissemination of inside information
under the SFO, the Group has established the policy of
disclosure of inside information as an integrated part of its risk
management and internal control policy to provide guidance for
reporting and disclosure of inside information. Such policy,
together with the "“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by Securities and Futures Commission, are
also distributed across all relevant divisions and employees who
are likely to be in possession of inside information. Under such
policy, the Directors or management shall report any potential
inside information to the Board as soon as possible, so that the
Board can determine whether the matter or its development is
inside information and make disclosure whenever necessary.

The Audit Committee also reviews internal control issues
identified by external auditor, regulatory authorities, the
management and the outsourced internal audit function and
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems at least annually. The
Audit Committee in turn reports any material issues to the

Board.

The Board has conducted review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020, covering all material controls in
the financial, operational and compliance controls. The review
also considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programs and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. The
Board considers the risk management and internal control system
effective and adequate. The Board confirms that the Group has
complied with the Code Provisions on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020.

58
2020 Annual Report

KEBRFAINAR
EEALTHERRE
AREBEM WIRHER
EERRAREERANIPEE

HB xR "’“:ﬁ
BERAMEESER

% E= Eﬁij\j:]r
ZHEEMERRRE

EJEJ“@EE&%W SR MHERIETZARTHER
CAEECHERBEABHER ZBE - E

ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂﬁ‘ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬁzfﬁ*Z%Ei&
EEBEARERRKES - AKERCAHME

AEEEAREEZHEABMANEEY B
BREAHEFMMESHERZBEERMZ
ABBEEREES - REEARK EFLE
BEERERMNESCTERTAECARTHEE
NEEEERETAREEREBRRETARH
B URERTERIFLIE -

%Vé,\EJTA%EﬁEHM\Hﬂ?%IEW ESE R
BIEERRIINEA R EZBEEIR L 2 A AR &
%Iﬁ IE"J\‘!‘¢§EHE$E.HAMEE&W%B

EHERERATAN ERZBEQMEMHE

%A Eﬂiﬁ%lﬁ °

RBE-_FT-_TF+_A=+—HLFE E=F
GERAEECEAREERANLEZE RS 2K

BOETRE BEEE-YEAELET &
EHG - EERMAEE  EFENSRRE

FEBEARE SR AMER RSP RBGE
ZET BETERLEER HBIASNUREE

BRHA -EFERRuAREERAMEE
ﬁnﬁiﬁ& EEeml ARERBEC
TCEFA A=+ -HIEFE—BHEETEEE
aTRINE R EIE R ABE R Z TR



COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Liu Wai Kin (“Mr. Liu") was appointed as the Company
Secretary since 25 July 2019.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Liu has
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge during
the reporting period.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
through general meetings and Shareholders are encouraged to
participate.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

On 30 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy to comply with the updated Listing Rules
and to reflect mostly the current communication practices of the
Company with its Shareholders. Such policy aims to (i) promote
effective communication with Shareholders and other
stakeholders; (ii) encourage Shareholders to engage actively with
the Company; and (iii) enable Shareholders to exercise their rights
as Shareholders effectively. However, the Board will review the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing regulatory
and other requirements.
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The Company established a range of communication channels to
provide its Shareholders and stakeholders with balanced and
understandable information about the Company. These include
annual general meeting, annual report, interim report, various
notices, announcements and circulars. The annual general
meeting and other general meetings of the Company are primary
forum for communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The Company shall provide Shareholders with
relevant information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general
meeting in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules.
The information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
Shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s).

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a special
general meeting shall be convened by the members of the
Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up capital of the
company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company. The requisitionists must
submit their requisition in writing, in which it must state the
objects of the meeting, and be duly signed by the requisitionists,
mailed and deposited at Suite Nos. 01-03, 19/F., Sino Plaza,
255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (attention
of the Company Secretary).

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting for
a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the meeting is given, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date. Any reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to
convene a meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the
Company.
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Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings can be put forward by the members of
the Company holding at the date of the submission of the
proposals not less than one-twentieth (5%) of such of the paid-
up capital of the Company as at the date of the submission
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company;
or not less than 100 Shareholders.

The submission of the proposals must be made within 3
business days after a notice of the Shareholders’ meeting have
been served to all registered Shareholders by the Board. The
proposals must be written and must state the objects of the
proposals, and must be signed by the proposers, and mailed and
deposited at Suite Nos. 01-03, 19/F., Sino Plaza, 255-257
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (attention of the
Company Secretary); and may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more proposers.

The proposals will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the proposals are proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to update the
resolutions by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all registered Shareholders, provided
that the proposers have deposited a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses involved in publishing
supplementary circular and updating related resolutions. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
proposer will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, no
resolution will be updated as requested.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, by email: ir@zhongji.com.hk,
fax: (852) 2526 5733, or mail to Suite Nos. 01-03, 19/F., Sino
Plaza, 2565-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The Company maintains a website at
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/zhongjilongevity, where information of
the Company including the list of Directors, announcements,
circulars and reports released to the Stock Exchange and other
information are posted. Information on the Company's website
will be updated from time to time.

There was no amendment made to the constitutional documents
of the Company during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRS

BEEBRE-NN-FQRAE REXERE
ARARNEXEARAERARAIRR KRG LR
RZARAFHRBANDR -+ DZ— (6% ZA
RAIBRRITDRI00 B R AN IR ARG LB

e
RiFEER °

HERBREFTEHNIEECRREEREARS
BAZ-—EAZEXARNER - EXAAZEEEN
WEVPEZRENEEHRBZARE  HBHFR
KRB RS S 1738255267 5 M E 519
1201-03% - WHAFZBAARME  WAJH—
AZH BEEHBE " BXZERBAREZX
AR -

FHBAERALRRZENELEZE W&
REEABZENEE MRARWELELRE
FERBEEAT KTE2RELERENHA
HME - AEHRZR REFARBFAER
SAFRIE - RAA AR AR A T 3 el ek & &
MEBARABRRMELEZAX -R2 FEHWH
KEZER/RTTERERF  ARZBABERNAE
AR MRBRBTIEEERERHN -

RERABBUTHFABEDERNTZEAR
NACWHATHAARAAINME - BRERE
ir@zhongji.com.hk + 3% {8 & £ (852) 2526 5733 -
I EH SRR E S 4T E255-2575R (5 M E
191 01-03F °

¥iN /N A B E) # s
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/zhongjilongevity +  BA
REARFEN  BEMBIMERZCIESS
B AE BRHEBREAREMER - KA A

AR R BT HE R -
FAMERARNRRBE X EHEMER -

61



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ZHONG JI LONGEVITY
SCIENCE GROUP LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ASIA
PACIFIC SILK ROAD INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhong
Ji Longevity Science Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to 188, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ZHONG JI LONGEVITY
SCIENCE GROUP LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ASIA
PACIFIC SILK ROAD INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying value of the Group’s loan
and interest receivables amounted to HK$167,440,000, the net
loss allowance charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year was HK$17,086,000, and the cumulative
loss allowance of loan and interest receivables carried as at 31
December 2020 was HK$656,119,000. The loss allowance for
impairment of loan and interest receivables to their estimated
recoverable amounts. Significant management judgement and
estimates are required in determining the impairment losses of
loan and interest receivables under the expected credit loss model
in accordance with HKFRS 9. Management applied the general
approach in calculating expected credit losses for the loan and
interest receivables and engaged an external valuer to assess the
credit risk of each borrower and prepare the expected credit loss
calculations. The external valuer applied various elements, which
involved forward-looking information, historical payment records
and realisable value for collaterals held against certain receivables,
in assessing the expected credit losses.

We focused on this area due to significance of the carrying amount
of loan and interest receivables and significant management
judgements were involved in the underlying assumptions of
the impairment assessment, such as specific information on
individual debtors, historical payments records and forward-looking
information in assessing the expected credit loss.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ZHONG JI LONGEVITY
SCIENCE GROUP LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ASIA
PACIFIC SILK ROAD INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

For assessing adequacy of the loss allowance for the impairment
of the loan and interest receivables, our audit procedures
included testing controls on a sample basis over the approval,
recording and monitoring of loan and interest receivables,
understanding and evaluating the Group’'s assessment on the
expected credit loss allowance, assessing the appropriateness of
evaluating the judgements and assumptions used for the
impairment and testing the loan and interest receivables ageing
analysis. We also challenged the information used for
management’s assessment of the expected credit loss allowance
by comparing to supportable evidence about the historical
payment records, subsequent cash collection performance, and
the value of realisable collateral based on available information
provided by the management. We assessed whether the
consolidated financial statements disclosures appropriately reflect
the Group's exposure to credit risk, and reviewed minutes of the
board of directors relating to the recoverability of loan and
interest receivables.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ZHONG JI LONGEVITY
SCIENCE GROUP LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ASIA
PACIFIC SILK ROAD INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Y8 3L 1% A R

BTERSNEBEEARLA (BB D RAR
REFRDE)
(RERZAMHE L ZEHRLE])

EERR

ERARESAARARBEESMASHEMNN
(BAMBHRELE)REFB(RRIGLD)HREER
EMPENRAMBEHRER  AHERBRELR
EMBBRNBRBE I FEARNRFRERME
HNERBRFAMBOABEFNAE

EREEaMBHRRE BRREFAEAR
i EEBEFELENRES YHEBABAT
BPEERECEAHENEER UREAKER
LREHER KRIFE BEAREFAER EX

ARERIELRE  IFNEEMAERENERT

vl

BERREFERRZRBEHM TEITRENE
B EE S5EENMBHREBERE-
HMPWER RUGAMBHRRBRBRELLE

ERNRFRERMEFINERNERRARS
AERRE  YHABERRMEENZBMES
BN BRERRBRE-NAN-FRFIEF0
FEME2BRREBEG - Rtz AREHE
HiB®W - RPAEMABENATEETAE
ALTE ERABEFMEE -

EERERBKTINRE  ETRERR(E
BEENVETHRT  EX-ERERRM
TFHERBRER - BRRAR] AR RFFRER
S MREEBHEMEBIOELLRALE
FEGAMBBRRERERBEMBRRMAEDL
MEERTE - RIBRMBERRAATRBIEERX -

hERBHEREERAT 65
—E-®EEH



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ZHONG JI

LONGEVITY

SCIENCE GROUP LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ASIA
PACIFIC SILK ROAD INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

66

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ZHONG JI LONGEVITY
SCIENCE GROUP LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ASIA
PACIFIC SILK ROAD INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheng Po Yuen.

Zenith CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheng Po Yuen

Practising Certificate Number: P04887
Hong Kong

30 March 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Y8 3L 1% A R

BTERSNEBEEARLA (BB D RAR
REFRDE)
(RERZAMHE L ZEHRLE])

EERR

o B OEEEAERBIEBRTINMEER
ERER BEMNENERSE UWEHEKEA
BHEBREEXRER - RMAE E£EE
AR EBMHIT  BHMPASEHER
EERIHEE -

BREMEREIN  RMIEERXZEQBATE
MEHE BHEZHE BEARAERS £
&R AP B AT P ORI A B R Y A9 ] oK ER
B o

HMPEMEZZE@RIXER SARMEN
EEMBYMENEREREREFR I8
BEATRAENMER RS ERMBIIED
PEBERMNEMER Uk ABHERYBILIED
BEMERBNTESHGEERCEEM)

HEHEZZBEGEBNFTET  HMEERL
FRHANGEMBRERNEFTERER A
MBKEAREBAFTE RAEXRBRMBEETHE
MELEE BRFZXBZEIRIANCHERES
LER REGKFEANBERLT  WREERE
HERMBETEBRTHREKNNAERRE
BEENRIRNEG  RAARETEERSETE
B EH -

HAABYZBMRENETEEABARD
RIT °

HEESHMELMERAR
HEDIAT

R T

WMEFERS : P04887
&3
—E-—F=R=+H

hERBHEREERAT 67
—E-®EEH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

— /_\ 3 \/
,Z\vT\ = 18 fm %
Year ended 31 December 2020
HE—_Z_ZTHE+_-_F=+—HIt&EE

Notes
B i
REVENUE Iy 25 5)
Cost of services Pk %5 A 2
GROSS PROFIT E F
Other income and gains, net H A Y A Rk 2575 58 5
Administrative expenses THHRX
Impairment of financial assets, net B EhE EREFHE
Fair value gains on investment HEMERFEKS 14
properties
Finance costs 81 7 pk AR 6
Share of (loss)/profit of joint FEMEE T E(EIE),/
ventures Al
LOSS BEFORE TAX R B AT s 18 7
Income tax expense g% = 10
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the parent SRAREE A
Non-controlling interests I 2 R B 5
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE SEBRSAREERER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS #EAZEREIE
OF THE PARENT 12

Basic and diluted loss for the year FARAERRBEEERE
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80,022
(7,564)

72,458

1,979
(28,819)
(58,927)

5,716

(426)
(1,153)

(9,172)

(1,528)

(10,700)

(11,487)
787

(10,700)

HK(0.30) cents
(0.30) 7 1Ll

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
F& T

145,846
(6,241)

139,605
15,634
(46,403)
(921,728)

(580)
1,043

(812,429)

(13,540)

(825,969)

(825,678)
(291)

(825,969)

HK(21.33) cents
(21.33)78 1l



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Net other comprehensive income/(loss)
that may be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income:
Changes in fair value

Net other comprehensive (loss)/income
that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
(LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

ARE T HE W

SmA

Year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HILFE
2019
— &
HK$'000
TFHE T
FREE (10,700) (825,969)
Hib2mEUWE A (Ei8)
AREGHEET AR
BRzEMmE2mEmKE
(EB#8) :
BREGINEBRELEZERZS
8,895 (8,200)
AREZHBETSER
BHzHEMmE2mEmWZE (EHE)
FEE 8,895 (8,200)
TeRERBEET»ER
BHzHEMEE(ER),/
U %5
EEARAFESABEMNEE
WmARZBEREE:
N EEE (510,750) 234,767
TeREEHBET»ERE
BRzEMH2E(EER)/
U 2% 75 58 (510,750) 234,767
FRAHMEZE(ER) W
KBHBRHE
(501,855) 226,567
FRAZHERARE
(512,555) (599,402)
BB
IS/NETE7 =N (513,797) (598,850)
FE ¥ B B A 1,242 (552)
(512,555) (599,402)
=P§E.,—%—ﬂﬁi;ﬁl5&/\=1 69
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR e BS AR JL R&

31 December 2020
—E_EF+ZA=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Plant and equipment
Investment properties
Right-of-use assets
Goodwill

Interests in joint ventures

Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at amortised cost

Loan and interest receivables
Deposit and other receivables

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Loan and interest receivables

Trade receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing other borrowing
Lease liabilities

Amounts due to related companies
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

RBEE
5 & &

REME

EREEE

R
RAEELXZHER
EERRATEEA
Htpemlm AR
BARE B
BBERAARZ SR
BE

e B KRR B
&%&EmEWm

FnBEERE

WEEE

& W& R KA B
%u&/ﬁ%/ﬂ\

Be  BARNREREAM
& W K 18

A] g [E B 18
RekREeEED

MEEEBE

REBEE

Hi BN RERESER
Hih st BEE

HE&E

& 1< B Bt % B SR IR

J& 5 B 18

MEBERER
REBEEFE

EERERADARE

ERBEE
EXER ARG
HEARE

ERBBEERLT

EERE
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Notes

ioRz3

13
14
15(a)
16
17

18

19

20
22

20
21

22

23

24
25
15(b)
26

28
15(b)

1,370
30,523
1,156

3,504

73,345

127,779
62,691

300,368

39,661

94,221
3,193
40,797

177,872

5,642
7,487

822
2,540
5,361

21,752

156,120

456,488

1,207
395

1,602

454,886

2019
—NF
HK$'000
TATT
339
1,172

1,598

603,385
B, 7518

1,774
38

668,061

152,422
55,788

197,937

154,958

561,105

246,063
6,712
1,035

173
7,814

261,797

299,308

967,369

967,369



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
fr e AR WK

31 December 2020
—T-EF+=RA=+—H

2020 2019
—E-FF —FNF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
K i FHET FHET
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners FERBLARAEAEARZ
of the parent s

Share capital fi&% 2 29 3,870 3,870
Reserves 1 424,962 938,687
428,832 942,557
Non-controlling interests IF 12 P 2= 26,054 24,812
Total equity T B 454,886 967,369

Yan Li
v
Director

EF

Yeung Siu Keung
B8
Director

EFE

hERSHEBEEFRAT 71
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—H— N7
/ IS lI\I:III\

HE) K

Year ended 31 December 2020

/\\/ \

BE-P-PEI-ASt+—ALFR
Attributable to owners of the parent
RAAES
Equity
Share Exchange component of Non-
Share premium Fair value  Contributed PRC statutory fluctuation  Share option convertible  Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
B 2 f IRBRE  BREEE 3  * BigE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER F#7 F#7 TR Tin F#x TER Tian
At 1 January 2020 R=2-%%-f-8 3870 932,410 349,810 271102 25,966 (22,908) o 1,228,455 (1,852,208 942,551 24,812 967,369
(Loss}fprofit for the year ER(ER)/EFH = = = = = = = - (11,487) (1,487) 787 (10,700)
Other comprehensive incomef(loss) for EREBRERE/ (KE):
the year:
Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ EATEEBLM2ANEARZRE
at fair value through other comprehensive ~ RE2ATEZE
income = = (510,750) S - - - o o (610,750) - (510,750)
Exchange differences on translation REBNEBRELZERZR
of foreign operations o 0 S o - 8,440 o 0 S 8,440 455 8,895
Total comprehensive (loss)fincome for ENRE(FR)/hE8E
the year o o] (510,750) &2 0 8,440 o o] (11,487) (513,797) 1,242 (512,555
Transter of fair value reserve upon disposal ~ RMEERATEEBL
of equity investments at fair value RERBEARZRERER
through other comprehensive income BRATREAR ® - 22,434 - - - - - (22,434) - - -
Transfer of equity component of convertible  NEHTARZHERETEER
notes upon revaluation of the amendments ~ WRREE2EEHH
to terms of convertible notes /note 27) (Wi#2) = = = - - - - 527,401 (527,401) - - -
Appropriation to statutory reserve HEEY¥d-1 ] = = = = 217 = = - (17) - - -
Equity-settled share option arrangements IERREBRERHE = = = = - - 7 - - ] - n
Deregistration of subsidiaries WEADBHER ® @ = o (1.138) ® ® @ 1138 - - -
At 31 December 2020 RZFZTE+ZA=1-A 3870 932,410% (138,506)* 277102% 25,045* (14,468)* n* 1,755,856* (2,412,609)* 428,832 26,054 454,886
Attributable to owners of the parent
RARFAER
Equity
Share Exchange  component of Non-
Share premium Fair value Contributed ~ PRC statutory fluctuation convertiole Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve surplus Teserve Teserve losses Total interests equity
B RiFEER ATERE E4B%  tEEERE  EXRDER 2iEE #it FERES [ 3:0]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TR T TEn TR T TEn T TEn TEn
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-A%-A-B 3,870 932,470 106,072 277,102 25,560 (14,969) 1,228,455 (1,017,183) 1,541,407 25,364 1,566,771
Loss for the year ERER o © - o © = = (825,678) 825,678) (291) (825,969
Other comprehensive incomeflloss) for ~ FREB2EKE/(BHE)
the year.
Changes in fair value of equity investments HATEFBE 2 AN AR RE
at fair value through other REZATEEY
comprehensive income = = 234,767 = = = = = 234,767 = 234,767
Exchange differences on translation BEEARBRELZERZE
of foreign operations - - - - - (7,939) - - (7,939) (261) (8,200)
Total comprehensive income/(loss| for FREERE/(BR)EE
the year = = 234,767 - - (7,939) - (825,678 (598,850) (652) (599,402)
Transfer of fair value reserve upon disposal RHERATFEFEL K
of equity investments at fair value 2AREARZRARER
through other comprehensive income ERNTERE = = 8971 = = = = 8.971) = = =
Appropriation to statutory reserve HREERRE o = = = 406 = = 406) - - -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+=A=t-H 3870 932,470 349,810 2771024 25,966* (22,908)* 1,228 455* (1,852,208)* 942,557 24812 967,369
= These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of — * ZEREEREREVBMRABRERAZGEEEMBERE

HK$424,962,000 (2019: HK$938,687,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,\\/T\ EE 7 //ZI'\_L = EE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-TF+_A=+—HBLFE

2019
—E-NF
Notes HK$'000
B 7 FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING &K EZBHvBERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax B B Bl & 1R (9.172) (812,429)
Adjustments for: M SEEL A
Bank interest income RIT A B A 5 (1,059) (957)
Finance costs Bl & B A 6 426 580
Dividend income @RI @N 5 (5,717) (14,916)
Depreciation of plant and equipment MERRZREITE 7 383 899
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEFRE 7 1,627 2,699
Equity-settled share option expense DAKEZS 45 & 7 BE PG #E
F < 7 72 -
Impairment of loan and interest EWE S RF ERE
receivables, net b=l 7 17,086 920,774
Impairment of trade receivables, net & Y BR R (B JF 58 7 5,556 673
Impairment of other receivables H g U 3k I8 R (B 7 36,285 281
Share of loss/(profit) of EhEELEEER
joint ventures (& 7) 1,153 (1,043)
Gain on a bargain purchase EEBERKZE 5 - (13,991)
Fair value gain on financial assets at ?ﬁ AT EEBEZ AR
fair value through profit or loss ZEMEEZAYE
Wz 5 = (314)
Fair value gains on KEMFE 2 A FERZ
investment properties (5,716) =
Loss on disposal of plant HERmEREEEEB
and equipment 5] = 257
40,924 82,513
Increase in loan and JE U B 3k R F) B N
interest receivables (124,432) (192,417)
Decrease in trade receivables JE L BR FOR = 51,789
Decrease in other receivables o e U 5k I8 R 4,778 24,465
(Decrease)/increase in other payables E b fERI KB & E:H & B
and accruals CR ) /30 (116,073) 23,057
Increase in amounts due to JfE 1~ B8 Bt~ |) FRIE HE N
related companies 2,367 -
Cash used in operations REPA RS (192,436) (10,593)
Income tax paid, net B AR FE (6,188) (7,233)
Interest element on lease liabilities HEABBEZFBEILE (79) (100)
Net cash flows used in KEEEBAH 2
operating activities RemE FE (198,703) (17,926)
¢§E%ﬂm§ﬁl‘§“=] 73
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Z? E/Eu G /m = 2%

Year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—RHLFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of subsidiaries

Interest received

Capital injection to joint ventures

Dividends received from financial
assets at amortised costs

Dividends received from financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Redemption of financial assets at
amortised costs

Redemption of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Purchases of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Purchases of investment properties

Purchases of plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of equity
investments at fair value through

REFHZRERE

Y B B 8 2 A

EEED
é**ﬁ%&éﬁ

BRI EBHKAARRZ
ETMEEZIBE

BEREAFEEERR

ARZEBMEEZRE
ERREHEKAARZ
CRMEE
EOZAFEBERIER
ARZE®BEE
BEERAFESBER
ARCZeREE
BEREME
BERELEE

HERDTEEB
Hit 2 WS AR Z

other comprehensive income A% & FT 15 3R

Net cash flows from investing WEEHEEZ
activities HemE F{

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEITBHZ2EESRE
ACTIVITIES

Repayment of other borrowings BEEMES

Principal portion of lease payments HMERB 2RI H

Interest paid Eﬁ ﬂ/u

Net cash used in financing activites ®IEEBEA 2R FHE
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Notes

iog3

1,059
(2,867)

6,065

42
59,566
16,863

(16,863)
(4,530)
13 (1,350)

19,290

77,275

(1,433)

(1,433)

2019
VIS
HK$'000

TAET

5,079
957
(579)

16,287

72
95,743

45,991

1,042

164,592

(155,570)
(2,833)
(1,917)

(160,320)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-TF+_A=+—HBLLFE

2019
—E-NF
Notes HK$'000
/oka FET
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH REREEZEBY
EQUIVALENTS wmAEE (122,861) (13,654)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUz2HReRBEEEY
beginning of year 154,958 179,705
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEEE R B E) s &
changes, net R 8,700 (11,093)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT Xz RERBELZEY
END OF YEAR 40,797 154,958
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HeRBESEEYHE R
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2
Cash and bank balances e MIRT1THE &% 23 35,317 43,245
Non-pledged time deposits with RESEREHRE RN
original maturity of less than three —EAZELDHTE
months when acquired TR 23 5,480 111,713
Cash and cash equivalents as MBKABRKRAIRE R
stated in the statement of financial HeEEY
position 40,797 154,958
FERESREBREEFRRAT 75
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

& B 7% i R BT 5

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_R=+—H

76

With effect from 3 March 2021, the English name of the
Company was changed from Asia Pacific Silk Road
Investment Company Limited to Zhong Ji Longevity Science
Group Limited and the Chinese name RERSRIZE£E A
R /2 B was adopted as the secondary name of the
Company to replace the previous Chinese name 3B A # &

BREBRRQA

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
registered address of the Company is located at Victoria
Place, bth Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
was located at Office A, 3/F, Man Lok Building, 93 Bonham
Strand, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong and has been changed to
Suites 1901-03, 19/F, Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong with effect from 8
February 2021.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

° Money lending

° Securities and other investments
° Financial and investment advisory
° Property investment

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company and ultimate holding company of the Company is
Hong Kong Financial Services Asset Management L.P., an
exempted limited partnership incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2020 Annual Report

RRAF 2 BRXEZTEE H[Asia Pacific Silk
Road Investment Company Limited] & 244
[Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group
Limited] * A X ERBIFERSHNELEE
ERABIEEEMER/RARRBE AT

MR BEZAXERIERGERER
AR HZEZ—F=A=A8EXR -

Ziﬂﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁtﬁfﬂﬂ&iZEﬁﬁéﬁﬁ
Al-HEBROREBBAERIMERA

(TBER AT £ o ZlS"TZazﬂﬂimiltz%
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda ° "RQ &2 T &
EEME N BB BRI R A3 B
EEARNEIEAZ  WEERABBIREE
& T $13B255-257 5% {5 M E %1948 1901-03
E BT —F_ANBRBER-

REERFAREUNTETZER:

°
i3

\
/

s JFHFLEMEKE

s TREKREWXH

s YERE

%%é’i’% ARAZEEREBR AR RRE
ERABRRHASERESEMR L 2 EHR R

ﬁlﬁé}%p Hong Kong Financial Serwces
Asset Management L.P. °



Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Name

8

Best Harvest Asia Limited

EBEMERAA

Joy Wealth Finance Limited
EMYBERRAR

Shanghai Yugong Financial Consulting Co.,

Limited*!

LEENHMBEAFTRAF

Beijing Huiju Wealth Management
Consultant Company Limited*'

IREFNEEEEABRD

Sky State Holdings Limited
ABEBRERRAA

Tian Xing Ji Yuan (Beijing) Financial
Consultancy Limited*?
AT R) M BEEERQA?

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business
FMEL
GNP

British Virgin Islands
("BVI")/Hong Kong
RBRELEE /BB

Hong Kong

R

People's Republic of
China (the “PRC")

FEARANE
(T E D)
PRC
R
BVI

RRHE
PRC
R

Issued ordinary/
registered share
capital
BRITLE/

= i B A

United States Dollars
(“USD") 1
E

Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$") 1
18T

Renminbi (“RMB")
1,050,000
A R #1,050,0007T

RMB50,000,000
A R #50,000,0007T

UusD1

17T

RMB12,069,500
AR #12,069,5007T

Keen State Global (CNMI) LLC North Mariana Islands  USD100
LEETHES 1003 7T
i The English names of the Chinese entitles are translation of their

Chinese names and are included herein for identification purpose

only.

1. These entities are registered as limited liability companies under PRC
law.

2. These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises

under PRC law.

NOTESTOCONSOUDATH)HNANGALSDHEMENTS

ARABEEWMBRARZF1E

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Company
AAE EL
EREDL
Direct Indirect
HE k=3
100% -
100% -
- 96%
- 96%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Z#E

A BHRNE

31 December 2020
—EFT-A=F—H

-z

L

Principal activities

TEEH

Securities trading

HHEE

Money lending
&8

Money lending
f&E

Money lending
&8

Investment holding

REZR

Provision of financial and
investment consulting services
and property investment

R BRI EBERRS
IRETHERE

Property investment

MERE

RAMGE  TEERAXBREAER AR
EHEBA -

1. ZEERBRETREAZEIMAEREEARA -

2. ZEERRBREBETEARIMAIEBEDLE -

FERSMBREEARRAT 77
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

78

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which have been measured at
fair value. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in the Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2020 Annual Report

ERBIARBZHBRARERN  EFR
B BENBRARAIBEREAEETFNA
EEIBRAGEFEEZEAND - &
ERB HINEMMBARZFREESR
BMERBRITE -

RAVBRRDVERREBSAMOSRM
ZEAMGHREER(BREMBEBMK
BEED  BEGENRRE) BEA
REBARUREBRBGEH 2 KRBT R
BHoBURAFEFEZREMERERAT
BEEBEMmEEKE ARZRARE MR
AFEEBREZEARZIEREEI - KRB
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R KT

31 December 2020
S

RAVBHRREEARF R ENB AR
§:§72¢+ A=+—RIFEZH
B#®K  MEBARBIARAEERMEE
ZHcER(BREEBLEER) - E4A5H
BRSRKEHREKMZE XA RIS
REHRzZAEEH  BAENITEHR
ﬁﬂ%Z%ﬁwaﬁ%@ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁl
EREETRENRZBABEIHCRER
ﬂﬁr$il%ﬁMﬁﬁZTﬂ%°

EARAERAHERBEAIREHRRR
FBURMN AR A¥E  AEEEFAEN
RAHREHERER AR NS EEM
FEHBEERBR B

(a) HEBZREHREMRREFTEAZ
ERES
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MEAREBARRRHEP B HRER 2 RSB
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AZREBRAEEEGSENEEARES
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If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’'s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or accumulated losses, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year's consolidated
financial statements.
Amendments to Definition of a Business
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

HKFRS 16 (early adopted)
Amendments to Definition of Material

HKAS 1 and

HKAS 8
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The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(a)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting
and standard setting, and provides guidance for
preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance,
new guidance on the derecognition of assets and
liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the
roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the
concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive
and introduce an optional fair value concentration test
to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to transactions or other events that occurred on or
after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the
period before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
("RFR"). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the
period of uncertainty before the introduction of the
alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to
investors about their hedging relationships which are
directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as
a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The
practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change; (i) any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii)
there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
with earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. The amendments did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts®

Insurance Contracts® ®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current® ®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKFRS 1,

HKFRSs 2018-2020

HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 412

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
o No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
® As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification

by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the

corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

® As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued
in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to
the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the
acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain
or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.
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Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity's right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period
if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that
are considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements in the period of initial application.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in
profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements in the period of initial application.
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Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract
as well as contract management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted.
Any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity
at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements in the period of initial application.
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Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the
amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements in the period of initial application.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in [lllustrative Example 13

accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives
when applying HKFRS 16.
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A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investments in the joint ventures, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint
ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in
joint ventures.
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Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input
and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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The Group measures its equity investments and financial
assets at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) ~ the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of period of the
lease terms and 20%
Furniture, fittings and 20% to 33%
equipment
Motor vehicle 25%

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.
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The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:
Land and buildings Over the lease terms
Motor vehicles Over the lease terms

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Financial assets are classified at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI| are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.
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All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as revenue or other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration the Group could be required to

repay.

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs"”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposure for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R KT

31 December 2020
S

MHDBREEERTVANKESH B
EERKEAEEAKEAEEEESRSN
BEMEZREETE -

ot

AEBRABEL AR A FEBEBERD
BT ABEZEBIARIBERACEER
BHE - BRHEEFRAZRRANIHAZ
EHRSREASEERRR ZABERS
MMEZEZBRELE  WIRARERN X
MEZHNEMR BHRSRHEELE
Pres i mai B A N IRRER Y 2 &
B ELHRZIEER -

BHEEBERY MERKRER - LA 7H
HE SR A SR A5 & 2 B I B K 1R 1B 0 2 (5 B K
AmE  AEBESRARKI12ME A A A g%
EZENEHMELEZEEBR02[EA
BHEERR)RAACEEHERE -
$h B ) 46 T 38 DA 2R S B R B K0 38 0 2 1=
EgAms  AREARBEBHNBOKRT
FHELAZEEERFRERFAR mT
wREOZER(ZHEHREEBHE) -

23

EERREMAERAKRE S AEIEM -
BETHTGAE AfEEELEZoRT
ARNBEARERRDBERBH LR ZE
WER TEEEHALEBSKN ARG
NAAESZEEMARBBEXIXFZER -
BREELRAELEER -

REREAH  AEEEFERITAZ
=3

hERBHEREERAT 101
—E-®EEH



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

102

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to
adopt the general approach in calculating ECLs with policies
as described above.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include other payables,
interest-bearing other borrowing, lease liabilities and
amounts due to related companies.
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The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing other borrowing are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The component of convertible notes that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible notes, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible notes; and this amount is carried
as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder
of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is
recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.
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Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint venture
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue from the provision of loan facilitation services and
financial and investment consulting services is recognised
at the point in time when relevant services are rendered.
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(@) Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effect interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

(b)  Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including Directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity settled transactions with employees and
non-employees for grants is measured by reference to the
fair value on the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by external valuers using binominal
option pricing model, further details of which given in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified, if the original terms of the award are
met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’'s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs, depending on the
location of the subsidiaries of their payroll costs depending
on the location of the subsidiaries of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R KT

31 December 2020
S

AEBEREBERBEABESAEERN - BE
PIEREBRIIAEHR ZAHEAE SR
KEANAS(REEHE)D - RERES
ArElZ AR HARBIRBEEEAHM 2 —
EADLEE  AREMERIERRNAR -
BB CEEIUBLERES TN
HEAREEZEENFARA - AKERRE
TRt EI BB ERTK  ZEHFAE2H
BEBEMA -

AEBRTEABKEEZHBARZESR
A2MBEMTREERZR —RASF
2 ZEMBRAAARREEHFENAZE
THI LA —RREF S HR - HKE
BORAMBARIFEMEE T @ KA - f#
FRLR G — RN S8R BN ERE
=R o

3
W
=

PERENEREARAT 111
—2-BEFY



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA

B W WK W R

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

112

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is
the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires judgement,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in different
levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date
and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis. Further details of which are
disclosed in notes 20, 21 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR"”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate
of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-
of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services and has five
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  Loan facilitation services: operation of P2P financing
platform under the CAIJIA brand and other loan
facilitation services;

(b)  Money lending: provision of loan financing for interest
income;

(c)  Securities and other investments: holding of equity
investments, investment in short to long-term financial
assets for dividend income;

(d)  Financial and investment advisory: provision of financial
and investment consulting services; and

(e)  Property investment: investment in properties for rental
income and/or for potential capital appreciation.

The Group ceased the principal activity of the loan
facilitation services during the year ended 31 December
2020.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s loss before tax
except that bank interest income, gain on a bargain
purchase, loss on disposal of plant and equipment, share of
(loss)/profit of joint ventures, finance costs as well as head
office and corporate income and expenses are excluded
from such measurement.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these

assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable,

deferred tax

liabilities and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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Financial
Loan Securities and
facilitation Money and other investment Property
Year ended 31 December 2020 services lending investments advisory investment Total
BX EHER SRK
BZE-_E_EE+_A=+-ALEE A IR BE Hit & & REZA MERE oy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT THT FHT THT THT
Segment revenue 2Bl &
Revenue from external REINREP 2 W
customers - 61,154 5,717 13,151 = 80,022
Segment results PHEE 6,250 35,573 4,917 (48,579) 5,708 3,869
Reconciliation: ik
Bank interest income RATHBHRA 1,059
Finance costs B B AR (426)
Share of loss of joint ventures BIEA &M% EE (1,153)
Corporate and other unallocated A &) & E fth & 9 Bt
expenses, net A% F5E (12,521)
Loss before tax B %% A0 5 18 (9,172)
Other segment information: H 5 BEH :
Fair value gains on investment H&MEZ A FE
properties I &5 = = = - (5,716) (5,716)
Depreciation of right-of-use FREBENE
assets - 830 2 750 = 1,582
Depreciation of plant and BELRENE
equipment = 118 1 155 = 274
(Reversal of impairment)/ CHEE
impairment of (R fE#& =),/
financial assets, net BB R (6,250) 17,086 = 48,091 - 58,927
Capital expenditure* =N = - - 1,337 23,988 25,325
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION reESIER (@)
(Continued)
Financial
Loan Securities and
facilitation Money and other investment
Year ended 31 December 2019 services lending investments advisory Total
HE_Z-NFE+-_A=+—HIEE R BE H iR & BEH Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAT FET FHET
Segment revenue 7 WU
Revenue from external customers RENATP 2 W= 16 121,973 14,916 8,941 145,846
Segment results DEEE 15 (815,636) 13,757 (1,969) (803,833)
Reconciliation: #
Bank interest income RITFI B WA 957
Finance costs B B AR (580)
Gain on a bargain purchase HZEBEEk= 13,991
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment & 8 5 & 3% 5 5 18 (257)
Share of profit of a joint venture BiE—E 8t EmF 1,043
Corporate and other unallocated expenses, 7A@} H 4t &k 2 B 5 %
net k] (23,750)
Loss before tax BBt A1 5 1R (812,429)
Other segment information: Hitp BEH :
Fair value gain on financial assets BATEERBEEARZ
at fair value through profit or loss ERMEEZATFERZE = = (314) = (314)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAREENE - 1,973 3 412 2,388
Depreciation of plant and equipment BERZETE - 476 101 86 663
Impairment of financial assets CHEAERE = 920,774 = 954 921,728
Capital expenditure* BERpX” - - - 490 490
= Capital expenditure consists of additions to plant and equipment and o BARYBREAEBREREBEARKEYE -

investment properties including
and liabilities or subsidiaries.

assets from the acquisition of assets
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4. REFTHEH (B

Securities
Loan and Financial and
facilitation Money other investment Property
31 December 2020 services lending investments advisory investment Total
B BER eER
ZE-Ef+ZA=+-AH TR BE Hitt R & REZEH MERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTER TER FTERT FTER TER
Segment assets IBEE = 179,492 103,706 156,368 30,547 470,113
Reconciliation: #hk -
Tax recoverable A] g Bl % 18 3,193
Corporate and other unallocated 2 &) & £ fth & 7 B
assets EE 4,934
Total assets AELE 478,240
Segment liabilities AFBEE - 533 - 12,559 - 13,092
Reconciliation: #hk -
Tax payable e IE 5,361
Deferred tax liabilities REHEEE 1,207
Corporate and other REREMK S
unallocated liabilities =L 3,694
Total liabilities aERR 23,354
Securities
Loan and  Financial and
facilitation Money other investment Property
31 December 2019 services lending investments advisory investment Total
B3 ‘ BHR SBR
—T-AE+=-A=+—8H TR &8 H iR & REEN MERE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTERT FHET FHET FTERT FHET
Segment assets PBEE 44,221 255,059 715,341 211,450 = 1,226,071
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and other unallocated 2 &)} H ftt & 5 B
assets BE 3,095
Total assets EERE 1,229,166
Segment liabilities APHEE 49,727 165,603 = 35,222 - 250,552
Reconciliation: # -
Tax payable e 7R 18 7,814
Corporate and other unallocated 2 &)} H ftt & 9 B
liabilities afE 3,431
Total liabilities afEgs 261,797
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Geographical information

4.

ReEWER (/)

it & & B

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REIREFZW @ ERBEE

2020 2019 2020 2019
—B-%F ZF-NF ZEB-BH T NF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET TER FET
Hong Kong BB 48,081 85,292 136 581
Mainland China FR B A 31,941 60,554 211,887 64,095
The Island of Saipan ES = = 15,000 =
80,022 145,846 227,023 64,676

The revenue information is based on the location of
customers. The non-current assets are based on the
locations of the assets and exclude equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Information about major customers

A summary of revenue earned from each of the individual
customer with its corresponding segment, which
contributed over 10% of the Group's revenue for the year is
set out below:

WHEBHMATPRAEMREKE - ERBE
EREEMEHRRERTEREERR
AYFEEEEMEE KRGS AKRZBEANE
fé o

FREEEFZEH

KEEAREEFRARZEIONNA EZED B
BRIEFzWamB BT :

2020 2019
—8-%F —E-NF

Securities Financial and Securities  Financial and

Money and other investment Money and other investment
lending investments advisory Total lending investments advisory Total

BHER ERMR EHR SRR
BE HttR& RE®HA @t B8 HRE& RERH @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TEx TET FET FET FET FET
Customer A PR 10,455 = = 10,455 = = = =
Customer B RFEZ = = = = 16,300 = = 16,300
Customer C EFR - - 9,282 9,282 = = = =
Customer D EET = 5,678 3,652 9,330 25,926 = 7,981 33,907
Customer E BRI = = = = 224 14,844 = 15,068
Customer F EFE 19,921 = = 19,921 29,800 = = 29,800
30,376 5,678 12,934 48,988 72,250 14,844 7,981 95,075
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An analysis of revenue is as follows: WamzofmmT:
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FE T
Revenue from contract customer REEFEHzZWE
Rendering of loan facilitation with MR R PR
external customers BERHFN - 16
Rendering of financial and investment M N RBP4
consulting services with external Rl R EREE
customers R 75 13,151 8,941
13,151 8,957
Revenue from other sources REHARIRzZWR &
Provision of money lending services RHEEERS 61,154 121,973
Dividend income g B A 5,717 14,916
66,871 136,889
80,022 145,846
Geographical market of revenue from XREEZEF&EHZWHE
contracts with customers Z i i3 TS
Mainland China AR A 13,151 8,957
The performance obligation for rendering of loan REEERFPNMIUAL SR KK E BN
facilitation and financial and investment consulting REZBEHNETNEBERBSIRME 2
services is satisfied at a point in time upon relevant BFE B ETT o

services are rendered.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. W& » Httik ARWK =R FEHE (&)
(Continued)
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Other income and gains, net His g A R &= 558
Bank interest income RIT A B WA 1,059 957
Loss on disposal of LEMERZEEIE
plant and equipment = (257)
Fair value gain on financial assets BEAFTEEBET AR
at fair value through profit or loss cREE AFEKE - 314
Gain on a bargain purchase (note 34) HEBEWE (M F34) - 13,991
Government grants* AT B * 594 -
Others H 326 629
1,979 15,634
i The government grants include subsidies received under the 2 RIS B B IE R B E BT ERNZ MR

PEIGBIWE 2 A - T EAHEZSHAZ
RERGHEXKRER -

Employee Support Scheme of the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. There were no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies relating to the subsidies.

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BEERX
2020 2019
—B-%F ZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T F&ET
Interest on other borrowing HMEERNL 347 480
Interest on lease liabilities (note 15(b)) HEBERMNB (M iF15(0b) 79 100
426 580
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The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging:

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Impairment of loan and interest
receivables, net*

Impairment of trade receivables,
net*

Impairment of other receivables*
Lease payment not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Auditor’'s remuneration

Employee benefit expenses
(excluding directors’ and
chief executive's remuneration)
(note 8)

— Wages and salaries

— Pension scheme contribution

B EEEREITE

EREEENE

J& W B R R BB E
R

& W B SRR (B R

H fth i U7 3K B R (A

TErAHEERE
FTEZHERE

1% 85 A B &

EERMMAX
(TEREEEkES
TBABZHM)
(#7#£8)

— TIEBkE®

— RIRESFH 8

Equity-settled share option expense A RER TEM 2
in respect of share options TR 2 A=
granted to consultants HEEERERX
Foreign exchange differences, net  [& }{ = %8 /% 58
* Items are included in “Impairment of financial assets, net” in the face

of consolidation statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2020
S

AREEZRTATEERIMER AT RIRR E

I

Notes

1 i

13
15(a)

20

21
22

15(c)

2019

—E-NF

HK$'000

FHET

383 899
1,627 2,699
17,086 920,774
5,556 673
36,285 281
1,147 3,086
1,400 1,300
12,395 16,684
1,315 2,992
13,710 19,676
72 -
49 16

HEAGARERZ[EREEREFE] -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE B AR MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERESITHAEHM
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RiE FHAE - FERAEMHE383(1)(a)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), b)) OEMEAERRI(EEEEFEE
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and FOROIF2HBECFRNEEREETH
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about ANBFHBT

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Pension Payment
and benefits scheme in lieu of Total
Fees in kind contribution notice remuneration
E2 e =1 BIRSTE
e REUEA R REAS 0 PR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THERT THERT THERT THERT THERT
2020: ZRIEF:
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Yan Li' B kA = 80 = = 80
Ms. Cao Xie Qiong? Rt - 26 - - 26
Mr. Yeung Siu Keung #5438 %4 - 760 19 - 779
Mr. Li Jiuhua* FHE & = 52 2 552 606
Non-executive directors: JF#I{TE =
Ms. Choi Ngai Wah®  ZEFE 4 45 1 = - - 1
Ms. Yu Yang KL = = = = =
1 918 21 552 1,492
Independent non- BUYERHITES:
executive directors:
Mr. Wong Man Hong® & 8 & 5t &£° 125 - - - 125
Mr. Lee Man To FEEEE 101 - - - 101
Mr. Zheng Zhen® B g ok A8 120 - - - 120
Mr. To Langa BRIk
Samuelson 120 = = = 120
Mr. Chan Wai Dune® PR 4 oy St A ° 1 - - - 1
Mr. Mak Ping Leung® &R %4 1 - - - 1
468 = = = 468
Total st 469 918 21 552 1,960
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Fees
e
HK$'000
T T
2019: —E-hEF:
Executive directors: MITES:
Mr. Li Jiuhua FNELSE =
Mr. Wu Chi Wai'® B E L&D -
Ms. Kuang Jiaying'® BB 3= L0 -
Mr. Yeung Siu Keung? 15 58 ot A3 =
Non-executive directors: 3E $ﬂ TES:
Ms. Gao Zhenyun' BEELZ LN =
Mr. Yao Luo' ﬁJEx%f‘EE” =
Ms. Yu Yang REL T =
Independent non-executive B IEHITEE
directors:
Mr. Wong Chun Hung'® EHEE R AES 150
Mr. Lee Man To’ ZHUE AT 10
Mr. Zheng Zhen Bl 48 %k A4 120
Mr. To Langa Samuelson Mt BA hn 5t A 120
400
Total REt 400

Appointed on 13 November 2020

Appointed on 16 December 2020

Appointed on 17 December 2019

Resigned on 10 January 2020

Appointed on 31 December 2020

Appointed on 23 June 2020 and resigned on 31 December 2020

o o » w N =

7 Appointed on 17 December 2019 and resigned on 1 June 2020

8 Resigned on 31 December 2020

9 Appointed on 31 December 2020 and subsequent resigned on 16 March
2021

0 Appointed on 30 January 2019 and resigned on 29 May 2019

" Re-appointed on 4 January 2019 and resigned on 11 April 2019

2 Resigned on 4 January 2019
3 Resigned on 16 August 2019

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R KT

31 December 2020
S

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total

in kind contribution remuneration

oo R RHKEEE

R EWER K ¥ B 42 58
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA& T FA& T FAT

2,538 18 2,556
464 18 482
27 1 28
31 - 31
3,060 37 3,097
- - 150
- - 10
- - 120
- - 120
= = 400
3,060 37 3,497
! RZEEE+—AT=HEZRTE
? RZF-_ZTFF+_A+BEZE
3 O RZE-AFT-AT+LARERE
¢ R-E_EE-ATHEME
5 R-ZT-THFF-_A=1+—"HEZF
8 R-ZTE_TFAA-T=HEZARR=-Z_ZF
+=ZRA=+—B&&
7T RZE-NAFTZATEHAEBZAERR-ZT_ZF
NA—RHEE
8 RIZE-_FF+_A=+—B#E
Y R-ZZE-TF+-_A=t+—HEZERHEER=
——F=A+ R HEMT
W RZEBE-NF-A=THEZER
RZZE—AFRA=-+ILBHET
" RZE-NF-ANBAEEFEER
REZTE-—NFEWNA+—HEE
2 RZTE-NF-AEBBTE
B ORZZE-AFNATRNEEE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2019:
Nil).

There were no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2019: Nil).

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two directors (2019: one director), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2019:
four) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor
chief executive of the Company are as follows:

FAYEBENRENBILIFRATESTZH
e (ZFT—hF: &) -

FALBIVEZTARSTRABRDE I
BMEXREREETAFTH I ZH(—F—
NE:E) -

= == z=p

ENREREHEETRERAES (-
—hE —REE)(EFMEBRN LY
Hi3E8) « BMTF=2 (=B — A : ME) W3k
AARNEERBETRARL REFHES
ERTHMEEDT

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
F& T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe - R2MEREWREF 1,632 5,800
Performance related bonus RIEEBIET 270 566
Pension scheme contributions RIRE T8I 55 72
1,957 6,438
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest FMNTUTHEZEEENIERERITH
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the ANEZERHFREAHBUOT:
following bands is as follows:
2019
—E-NF
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001/% 7£ 21,000,000/ 7T 3 =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7Tt £1,500,0007% 7T = 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7Tt 22,000,000/ 7T = 3
3 4

There were no non-directors and non-chief executive
highest paid employees being granted share option during
the year (2019: Nil).
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group
did not generate any assessable profit arising in Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$2,286,000). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WA E

31 December 2020
S

10. FiBEBiMAX

HRAEBRRBE-_E-_ETE+-_A=+
—HLEFEYEERBELETMER
oW EAIREBAINESHBECCET—
JL4F 2,286,000/ JT) o H fth i & & R B
A ZHIBEASEEEEREERZ
WITHEGFE -

2020 2019
= —F-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FE T
Current — Hong Kong BNEl — &8

Charge for the year FREZH - 2,303
Overprovision in prior years BAEFEBEREE (20) (17)
(20) 2,286

Current — Elsewhere VAR — E i [=
Charge for the year FREZH 405 9,205
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR = 2,049
405 11,254
Deferred (note 28) iR R ([ 7728) 1,143 -
Total tax charge for the year FRRIEZ B 1,528 13,540
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before
tax at the statutory rate of Hong Kong, where the Company
is headquartered, to the tax expense is as follows:

BARRBEDAEME RS Z ATEMETE
ZHBRBAEEBERZHEAT B IERY
ZHEERMT:

2019

—E-nEF

HK$'000

FET

Loss before tax B B BT ES 18 (9,172) (812,429)
Tax charged at the Hong Kong statutory 1% & i % E i £16.5% T & 2

tax rate of 16.5% A X (1,513) (134,051)

Difference in tax rates of subsidiaries HREMAEZEERLELEZHE AR Z

operating in other jurisdictions BEESHR (28) 3,682

Expenses not deductible for tax DA 10,021 152,176

Income not subject for tax BARBTWA (10,273) (2,516)

Tax losses utilised from previous periods &) /A i@ 1 A i %% 18 /&5 18 (9) (493)

Tax losses not recognised RERRIABE 2,864 2,602
Adjustments in respect of current tax of A i@ £ 2 BN B A% 18 ~ 4 &

previous periods (20) (7,633)

Others Hh 486 (127)

Tax charge for the year FAFIE X H 1,528 13,540

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures amounting to FEREG S ¥ 2 EWGTIE174,0007% 7T
HK$174,000 (2019: HK$24,000) is included in “share of (ZE—NF 24,0008 L) EFT ALK AEE

RAZIEEEERE(ER) M-

Bk

(loss)/profit of joint ventures” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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1.

12.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period (2019: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculations of the basic and diluted loss per share are
based on:

11.

12.

NOTESTOCONSOUDATEDFWANQALSUHEMENTS
e M B WA E

31 December 2020
S

=)

BE_ZT-_Z2F+-A= -1- BIEFERA
W HEFRMBE - BWMEHRA

KN 2 R /)EHEHHXQ(_ —NF:
&) o

EEESERRARZ

&I

YN

AT S5

55
L oA
Sl 2

i REXRL#HBFEHERIERNT I KB

iﬂlﬁ

2020 2019
—E-EF T—NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss: Big:
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders FA 5t & & A% & A & # %
of the parent, used in the basic and BEZEBRIARLERE
diluted loss per share calculations EEFBAZER 11,487 825,678
Number of shares
g gc|
2020 2019
—E-TF —E-hF
Shares: B’
Weighted average number of ordinary shares f 7 5T & & I 5 A ) # 5%
in issue during the year used in the basic EEZFANBEEITEERK
and diluted loss per share calculation hn#E F19 & 3,870,102,000 3,870,102,000

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 does not assume the
impact of the conversion of mandatory convertible notes
and exercise of share options outstanding (2019: the
conversion of mandatory convertible notes) since their
assumed conversion and exercise (2019: conversion) would
result in a decrease in loss per share.

FREBE_T_TFER-_ZF-NAF+_A
St BLEFEZEREFEERE AR
RBREREAREEZRBETRRERR
TEEHATEZBERE(CE-NF: B
BEIETT IR RE) g5 REsRERRD

B BRREBERTE(CE-NEF #iR)
ZEHE -
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B

B 75 R Y R

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

13. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. BMERKE
Furniture,
Leasehold fittings and Motor
31 December 2020 improvements equipment Vehicles Total
HENE B £8
—E-EE4+-A=1-H g1 R#%fE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
At 31 December 2019 and RZT-N&F
at 1 January 2020: +-A=+—-Bk
“Z-F5-A-B:
Cost AR 117 1,750 - 1,867
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (86) (1,442) - (1,528)
Net carrying amount REFE 31 308 - 339
At 1 January 2020, net of A\ZZ-FF5-A-RH"
accumulated depreciation BMKREGTE 31 308 - 339
Additions NE 118 185 1,047 1,350
Depreciation provided during FRFRNE K #7)
the vyear (note 7) (44) (173) (166) (383)
Exchange realignment ER R 6 9 49 64
At 31 December 2020, net R-B-TF
of accumulated +-A=+—-8"
depreciation BMBREFHE 1 329 930 1,370
At 31 December 2020: RZEZZF
+=A=t+-8:
Cost AR 248 2,007 1,105 3,360
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (137) (1,678) (175) (1,990)
Net carrying amount REFE m 329 930 1,370
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Leasehold
31 December 2019 improvements
THEWHE
—E-NFT+ZA=+—H K&
HK$'000
FHET

At 31 December 2018 and R=-ZT— N\

at 1 January 2019: +—A=+—HK
—E-NF—HA—B8:

Cost DN 2,500

Accumulated depreciation 2T E (2,500)

Net carrying amount IR EF 58 -
At 1 January 2019, netof RZT—-AF—HF—H"

accumulated depreciation BRI E -
Acquisition of subsidiaries Ut &t B A & (47 7£34)

(note 34) 121
Disposals o} = =
Depreciation provided during & A sHiR T & (47 :%7)

the year (note 7) (87)
Exchange realignment bE H & (3)
At 31 December 2019, net R-ZT—HF

of accumulated +=—A=+—8"

depreciation LR EINE 31
At 31 December 2019: R-FE—NF

+=—A=+—8:

Cost AN 17

Accumulated depreciation 25T & (86)

Net carrying amount AR ¥ 58 31

e M mRM T

31 December 2020
S

Furniture, fittings

and equipment Total
B KE

N & BEt

HK$'000 HK$'000

FB T FB T

2,178 4,678

(1,159) (3,659)

1,019 1,019

1,019 1,019

369 490

(257) (257)

(812) (899)

(11) (14)

308 339

1,750 1,867

(1,442) (1,528)

308 339
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fin & B 75 o % MY o

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. BEWE

2020

—g-%F

HK$'000

FE T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HzEREEE®E -

Additions (note) NE (K i) 8,988

Acquisition of assets and liabilities (note 33) W EERaE (W iE33) 15,000

Net gain from fair value adjustments AT ERARKZFE 5,716

Exchange realignment bE 5 38 & 819
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—B82

RE 2R 30,523

Note: During the year, the Group had additions of investment properties of
approximately HK$8,988,000 and such additions are comprised from
(i) two properties of approximately HK$4,530,000 newly purchased
by the Group; and (ii) a confiscation of property, which served as
collateral against a loan receivable of the Group for outstanding
amount of approximately HK$4,458,000.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's investment properties consist
of two commercial properties, one residential property in Mainland
China and one leasehold land in the Island of Saipan. The directors
of the Company have determined that the investment properties
consist of three classes of assets, i.e. residential properties,
commercial properties and leasehold land, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property.
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Hat: &R AEBREIRE Y 48,988,000/ 7T -
B4 (i) A5 £ B 3 U0 B8 2 M 1B W) 3 #4,530,000
B RGVEBIEAAEERRAEEERS
EE #74,458,000% t 2 IR qn 2 % -

RZEZZTF+A=+—H FxEEZKE
MEBEMRTIEAN 2 NBEENER—E
TEPEARMRERSZ2—BHRELH - &
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The Group's investment properties in Mainland China were
revalued on 31 December 2020 based on valuations
performed by Royson Valuation Advisory Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, while the
Group's investment properties in the Island of Saipan based
on valuation performed by BMI Appraisals Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer. The properties in
Mainland China were revalued at RMB13,080,000
(equivalent to HK$15,523,000) and the leasehold land in the
Island of Saipan was revalued at US$2,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$15,000,000). Each year, the Group’'s management
decide, to appoint which external valuers to be responsible
for the external valuation of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’'s management has discussion with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
result when the valuations are performed for financial
reporting purpose.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties are as
follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R KT

31 December 2020
S

R-ZZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H AEEX
AR B A 2 1% B Y% T B R E R
HERAB(BLBEXEASERHER)ETT
ZEEEMS MURERSZEEDED
ERFPMARTHERAR(BLEES
B GEMETZHEBEEMN - LR FEH
Wb 2 ¥ 2 T4 A R #13,080,0007T (1%
715,523,000 L) By - MURERS 2
& £ # Jy #%2,000,000% 7t (HH &F B
15,000,000 L) Eff - BF  AEEZE
BEREZIIIEGFEMABSHITAEE
MEZIIIBEHEE - EEEBFEMSH M
% BE CBUHLRELHFBREIZE
KEBZE iir‘aéﬁifaﬁﬁﬂmuw%ﬁﬂﬂw
REMETHERZAERRMGES

AEBREMEZFHFBOT

Attributable
interest of the

Location Use Tenure Group
HEERNAEE

& F & 5 Z S

Units 101 and 102, Block 7, No. 18, Chengshousi Commercial Medium term lease 100%
Middle Road, Fengtai District, Beijing City, Mainland
China

FRIEATEREXKSFTHERISH7IREIE101KX102 B hEAEE

Unit 604, Block 33, Shiyuan Southern District, Shunyi  Residential  Long term lease 100%
District, Beijing City, Mainland China

FEIERMIEEE A E R =339 E6/E 18 T604 F= RAEIHEE

Tract Numbers 22845-6 located in Capitol Hill, the Residential Medium term lease 100%
Island of Saipan

fiz 7 Capitol Hill, the Island of SaipanZ F=E hHEE

It 1% 4% 57 22845-6
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE B AR MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REWHEHE)
Fair value hierarchy AFEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRERASEREMEZLATEAERE
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties: 3

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using

R-B-ZFEF-A=T-AKATIREZAVENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
& BB EATEE EXTABE
hmiZHE BAZE BASE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(5—-#&) (B=&) (B=&) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TER
Recurring fair value BEUHNFEGE:
measurement for:
Commercial properties EEXUES = - 10,005 10,005
Residential property TENE = - 5,518 5,518
Leasehold land HELH = = 15,000 15,000
= = 30,523 30,523
During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value FR AFEFEF—REE_HF 2B
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no EEE EEASERFE=H -

transfers into or out of Level 3.
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14.

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WA E

31 December 2020
S

&)
AFEERE)

RATEIBEERE=B/ANHELIATME
R

Commercial Residential Leasehold
properties property land Total
HEME FEME HELH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THERT TERT THERT
Carrying amount at RZZE-ZZTF—-H—-HZ
1 January 2020 EHeH - - - -
Additions NE 4,530 4,458 = 8,988
Acquisition of assets and WEEERER
liabilities (note 33) (B 7#33) = - 15,000 15,000
Net gain from a fair value RERRBERLATHE
adjustment recognised in the ~ AE ZW & FHE
statement of profit or loss 4,947 769 = 5,716
Exchange realignment EREE: 528 291 - 819
Carrying amount at N_EZFTFETA
31 December 2020 = Y 10,005 5,518 15,000 30,523
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Investment properties Valuation
held by the Group techniques
rEEFRF/REDE it (B £ il

Units 101 and 102, Block 7, Sales comparison

No. 18, Chengshousi method
Middle Road, Fengtai
District, Beijing City,
Mainland China
FEIRMEAE R 4 &t BUE

X EF AP EK185R75% 12
1/Z101 %102

Unit 604, Block 33,

Shiyuan Southern District, method
Shunyi District, Beijing
City, Mainland China

FEIERTIER R 84 &t BUE

A B E33FRE
6E18 70604

Tract Number 22845-6
located in Capitol Hill,
the Island of Saipan

method

i 7 Capitol Hill, the Island 4 & b 8O%
of Saipan Z i % 4% 5%
22845-6

Fair value of the Group’'s investment properties are
generally derived using comparison approach based on
market comparables of similar properties.
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Sales comparison

Sales comparison

BHELT:
Range or
Significant weighted
unobservable inputs average
& [E 3k

BANAEBRE A BB hn#E 15

Estimated market price 50,000—
per square meter 66,000
(RMB)

MErEFRATE
(AR®)

Estimated market price 35,000—
per square meter 37,000
(RMB)

mErE ¥ HATE
(AR®)

Estimated market price 800—

per square meter
(USS$)

fErE I AME
(%7T)

1,200

REMEHEMAGERTEEEZEHAHK

Relationship of
input to fair value
WA R
BN E 2 R

The higher the
market price, the
higher the fair
value

mESS
=

AFE

The higher the
market price, the
higher the fair
value

mE#ES
S

AFE

The higher the
market price, the
higher the fair
value

mESS
BE

AT

REEBREMEZ A TFE-REXREUD
EZMBAELRERNBLEBIEEH -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R KT

31 December 2020
S

The sales comparison method is adopted by making HELBOETDBEBRABIRENEATE
reference to comparable market transactions in the R2EZ0ELBRMBERSGEA - ZAET
assessment of the fair value of the investment properties. LUMERGBEECEMNRREEEZARE
The approach rests on the wide acceptance of the market W URELERXZBH - EERRER
transactions as the best indicator and pre-supposes that SNRBMNRKNEANEREZR HEMER
evidence of relevant transactions in the market place can be SB/EBEANERARBEUDE -

extrapolated to similar properties, subject to allowances for
variable factors, including the transaction date, level of
floor, environmental atmosphere, size of apartment and etc.

The Group has lease contracts for various items of AEERSBEHELT W REFEEURLAR
leasehold land and buildings and motor vehicles which HIEHESY M —MKAE2F - — K
generally have lease terms of 2 years. Generally, the Group MmE  AEBEHWBRHTESRANEE SN
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased ENOHEEEEE -

assets outside the Group.

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use AEBFRBEEECERSERE
assets and the movements are as follows: BN
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
T
At 1 January Kn—H—H 1,172 636
Additions as a result of acquisition of FUWEMHBE QAT MARE
subsidiaries (note 34) (41 z£34) - 2,876
Additions NE 1,546 442
Depreciation charge (note 7) e W (A7) (1,627) (2,699)
Exchange realignment bE 5 38 & 65 (83)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 1,156 1,172
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ARE BT WA MY R

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE®)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEHBAEBAE)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of the Group's lease liabilities AEEHEABE RO R ED
and the movements are as follows: m
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 1,035 636
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 34) Ut & [} B A & (47 7£34) = 2,871
Additions NE 1,546 442
Accretion of interest recognised FRNERE A B (M 7ZE6)
during the year (note 6) 79 100
Payments ES (1,512) (2,933)
Exchange realignment PE W 38 & 69 (81)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,217 1,035
Analysed into: DT
Current portion e E o 822 1,035
Non-current portion ERBEH D 395 -
1,217 1,035
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HEBBEZIBBERASMREE Y
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. I EK M FA0I E -
138 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited

2020 Annual Report



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WA E

31 December 2020
S

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE®E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEEEBEAE)
(c) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (c) REERGEERRERZESBEN
of profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows: N
2020 2019
—ECEE —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGBRE 79 100
Depreciation charge of right-of-use  {FRAEAETE X H
assets 1,627 2,699
Expense relating to short-term leases 55 2 #8 & & % & 78 27
and other leases with remaining Rt+-—A=+—Hs=k
lease terms ended on or before ZHIER 2 EM
31 December (note 7) MEZRZ (K i77) 1,147 3,086
Total amount recognised in profit or NI FER 2 258
loss 2,853 5,885
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note (d) MEZRSRDBEREE MER
35(c) to the consolidated financial statements. =B 5E35(c) W FE o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

140

Total

et

HK$'000

FH T
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, RZZFE—NF—A—H ZE—hF
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 +=—A=+—H —ZE-FHF—A
—BERZE=ZTF+=ZA=1+—H

Cost [N 2,182,663

Accumulated impairment 25 RE (2,182,663)

Net carrying amount R F R =

At initial recognition, the goodwill of HK$2,182,663,000
arose from the acquisition of 96% of the issued share
capital of Katar Global Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“Katar Global Group”) on 20 October 2015. Katar Global
Group is principally engaged in the operation of a peer-to-
peer (the “P2P") online financing platform in PRC, matching
borrowers with private lenders for various financial products
through the Caijia Website under the “CAIJIA" brand.

Goodwill acquired through the above business combinations
is allocated to loan facilitation cash generating unit (the
“Loan Facilitation CGU") for impairment testing.

A full provision for impairment of HK$2,182,663,000 in
respect of goodwill was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2018 due to the excess of the carrying value
of the Loan Facilitation CGU over its recoverable amount
based on the fair value less costs of disposal in Kater
Global Group.
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EOGERERE  R-_ZE—AF+A=-1+8
W B pERER AR AR B E KB AR ([N
ERIRER|) V6% DB TRAEATE
2,182,663,0008 70 > MNERKEBEFE &
R LAT B In | SR hE A & T E 4814% ([P2P)) 48
IREFE UEBYIBUERSESH
ERREERABLAERA-

BRELAEBAMMESZAENREEE
RENBEEFEU(ERPNERASELE
Bl RETRERMNR -

HRERAFERMNERKEER Z HEK
K-BFFENREEEABEMZERESR
AE&E HREBEE-_Z—/\E+_A
T HLEFECHAEERERAER
#52,182,663,0007 7T °



Share of net assets B FEE
Goodwill on acquisition W g 2 2

The Group's loan and interest receivable balances due from
the joint ventures are disclosed in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R KT

31 December 2020
S

2019

—E-NF

HK$'000

FHET

2,921 1,598
583 -
3,504 1,598

AEERKREZLEZERRFE BB
AP mARME20HWE -

AEEREREZHERBWT

Place of Percentage of
Particulars of issued registration and ownership
Name shares held business interest Principal activities
=E FRrERTROFE ZTREXEHYN BEERZEEIL ZEZEHR

Chongging Juguan Business
Information Consulting Co.,
Limited (“Chongqing Juquan”)*

ERERAEEELEABRAR
([EEERD

Wouxi Juguan Outsourcing Service
Co., Limited (“Wuxi Juquan”)*

EHERIINBIRBEERAA
([mEBER] "

Tian Xing Ji Yuan (Tianjin) Service

RMB1,020,000

A K #1,020,0007T
RMB1,020,000
A K ¥1,020,0007T

RMB1,530,000

PRC/ 51%
Mainland China

BB
PRC/ b1*
Mainland China
B R B
PRC/ 51%

Mainland China

Business Information
Consulting

s BRH#
Business Information
Consulting

7 5 {5 B 5

Business Information

Outsourcing Co., Limited

(“Tian Xing Tianjin")*
RITHRT(RZ)RF 5N B

BRAR(RITRED

A [ #1,530,0007TC

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
loss of a joint venture, Chongging Juquan because the
share of loss of the joint venture exceeded the Group's
interest in that joint venture and the Group has no
obligation to take up further losses. The amount of the
Group’s unrecognised share of loss of this joint venture for
the current year and cumulatively were HK$2,127,000
(2019: Nil) and HK$2,127,000 (2019: Nil), respectively.

The Group’s joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

# The English name of the Chinese entitle is translation of the Chinese
name and is included herein for identification purpose only.

Under the joint venture agreement, none of the joint venture partners
has unilateral control over the economic activities of Chongging
Juquan, Wuxi Jugquan and Tian Xing Tianjin and hence, the Group's
interest is accounted for as joint ventures.

FEHEAD

Consulting

ARRREEFBELEERE -

AEBERIIEREEBEAECEEEE
RZEE RRAAEBEZAELEZER
BBAEERZALCEZEZR  MAE
B EREBEE—FPEIE AEBAF
BRI AERELGZEELEEFRES
DRl A&2,127,0008 T (Z T — L6 £)
21270008 L (ZE—NLF: &) o

AEBZAECEEREREAR -

£

RAXH  FEEEZAXEHEREPRXEE
ZEE - EHBER -

*

REGLELENS AEBHBEENSESE
ROEHEKRROREZEBEHEEES
EiEHE A RSBz ER ARINIESZE D
E
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fin & B 75 o % MY o

31 December 2020
—F-F5t+t=-A=+—H
17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

17. R—RBEEEbEERZE

The following table illustrates the summarised financial TERBINEEER  EHERRRITRE
information of Chongaing Juguan, Wuxi Juguan and Tian LHBERERMESTRREZEEZRAE

Xing Tianjin, adjusted for any differences in accounting WHERMBHRE 2 RESBLHER) :
policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

financial statements:

142

Wuxi Tian Xing
Chongqing Juquan Juquan Tianjin
EFER EHER RITRE
2020 2019 2020 2020
— ? — E 7j-|..ﬂ£ — ? — E — ? — E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT
Cash and cash equivalents RehBELEEYD 10,147 328 862 2,567
Other current assets HitmeEE 9,042 22,440 10,791 3,035
Total current assets MEBEELE 19,189 22,768 11,653 5,602
Non-current assets ERBEE 10 27 - -
Goodwill on acquisition of the WEAEDERK 2
joint ventures SRS = = 428 155
Current liabilities REERE (23,370) (19,661) (9,295) (2,233)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BEFH)/BEFE (4,171) 3,134 2,786 3,524
Net (liabilities)/assets, (BEEH)/EE
excluding goodwill FE O TEREDE (4171) 3,134 2,358 3,369
Reconciliation to the Group's HASERAEDE
interest in the joint venture: R
Proportion of the Group's KEERBRELH
ownership 51% 51% 51% 51%
Group's share of net assets of AEBEEALEDE
the joint venture BEFE - 1,598 1,203 1,718
Carrying amount of the REFEESR
investment = 1,598 1,203 1,718
Revenue U 8,801 5,655 7,160 1,249
Tax i E (179) (48) (163) -
(Loss)/profit and total F/HR(ER), & Fl
comprehensive (loss)/ k2E(EB)/ W
income for the year/period B (7,101) 2,789 472 106
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Listed equity investments, at fair value

The above equity investments are investments in
companies listed on the Stock Exchange and were
irrevocably designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year, Group sold certain of its equity
investments as this investment no longer coincided with the
Group’s investment strategy. The fair value on the dates of
sale was HK$19,290,000 (2019: HK$1,042,000) and
accumulated loss recognised in other comprehensive loss of
HK$22,434,000 (2019: HK$8,971,000) was transferred to
accumulated losses.

No dividends were received by the Group from the equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

The Group invested in trust beneficiary rights (the “Trust”).
The Trust include loans provided to individuals in the PRC.
The Group is entitled to an investment income of 12% on
the Trust outstanding balance per annum. The Trust was
fully redeemed during the year.

EHBRARERE - &

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R KT

31 December 2020
S

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
F& T

FE 73,345 603,385

HRASER Ed R R Em AR Z K
ARERSREMERE  MRERESTA
BEEEREAFEEBEMEEK S
N

FAN AEEBLERTRAKRE  FAA
ZBERETBREAEEAZRERE - 1B
HEEHZAFEE19,290,0008 L (=
— L4 1,042,000/ 7T) » A E A 2 M &
BHERZ 2:TE1822,434,00008 T (—F —
L& :8,971,0008 L) B BB = 25 B

B

REBEE_ZT_ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE "
AEBITERECEREATFEEBEEMS
o Was A BR 2 AR B WEE AT A B (=
T-NEF:HE)-

AEEBRENEARXaE((ZRER]D - &
ERERATEZEEAAREZER - &
SEERIZEAIREEERZEESF
REZREWRA - ZEEXACRERNTEE
[B] o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE B AR MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 20. EWERKRFE
2020 2019
—F-8F ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Non-current IR B
Loan and interest receivables FE W E 5K R F B 128,415 33,830
Less: Impairment AR E (636) (32,056)
127,779 1,774
Current w8
Loan and interest receivables FE W B 3k R R B 695,144 1,043,100
Less: Impairment A ORE (655,483) (890,678)
39,661 152,422
167,440 154,196
An ageing analysis of the loan and interest receivables as at ERFEISL B3 2B B E & E A F
the end of the reporting period, based on the BEEAHHBAEARNKEGEZ EREZE
commencement of loan agreement entered and the date of FERBERRZEBDTOT :

interest accrued, and net of provisions, is as follows:

2020 2019

—ECEHF —T—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T & T T T

Within 30 days 30K A 95,424 3,610
31-90 days 31£290K 34,696 20,017
91-180 days 91£180K 1,318 12,859
181-365 days 1812 365K 5,474 24,772
Over 365 days 365K A £ 30,528 92,938
167,440 154,196
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The terms of loan entered with its customers are on credit.
The credit period is generally within four years, extension
can be made after monitoring assessment and further
creditworthiness analysis on the debtors reviewed by senior
management. The loan receivables carried at fixed interest
rate ranging from 6% to 18% (2019: 9% to 18%) per
annum. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s loan and
interest receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group held collateral or other credit
enhancements over its certain of its loan and interest
receivable balances.

Included in the Group's loan and interest receivables are
amounts due from the Group’'s joint ventures of
HK$32,836,000 (2019: HK$19,360,000), which are
unsecured, bearing interest at 12% (2019: 15%) per annum
and repayable in between 2024 to 2025. As at 31
December 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN R R

31 December 2020
S

ANEBMERFAIT 2 ERIERABTE °

AR B E A E g%@£@ﬁﬁ1ﬁ
ANEBETERFERE-— TS EAIMENE
F-RBUERZEEFFENT6EZI18E
(ZE—AF:9EZ18E) - REFEH ¥
HAKE 2 BBMHBEHEFBREEE I
BEEEeTHENARLES  c ARLEX
Bt bA R A £ @ 2 FEURE 3 M F B % K K
ETREF MAGHEEERKRSESH
ZIER - AEBRETRRKEREAELE
BHRIFEEFRRNEMEEMBRE M -

AEBRBEZREFEFBIEREKAER
4 & 1> % FIE32,836,0008 L (Z T — N1
£ :19,360,0008 L) * BREEH - L FF|
RPRE(CE—AF15E)E  WAERC
T_NEFEE_FE_RAFEE -N_ZT_F
FH+_A=Z+—H AEEFTEEEBR
BTN RE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R MY A

31 December 2020
—E-EF+t-A=+-8

Notes:

As at 31 December 2020, the balances included:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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Loan and interest receivables amounting to HK$95,112,000 (2019:
HK$28,512,000), which are secured by share charge of borrowers,
carried at fixed interest rate at 6% (2019: 10% to 15%) per annum;

Loan and interest receivables were fully impaired during the year
(2019: HK$18,109,000), which are secured by convertible notes
issued by a listed company in Hong Kong, carried at fixed interest
rate at 10% per annum;

Loan and interest receivables were fully impaired during the year
(2019: HK$19,049,000), which are secured by securities accounts
held by the borrower, carried at fixed interest rate at 12% per
annum;

Loan and interest receivables amounting to HK$442,000 (2019:
HK$4,525,000), which are secured by financial assets, carried at
fixed interest rate at 15.6% (2019: 15.6%) per annum;

Loan and interest receivables were fully impaired during the year
(2019: HK$7,333,000), which are secured by real estate properties
situated in the PRC, carried at fixed interest rate ranging from
10.8% to 18% (2019: 10.8% to 18%) per annum;

Loan and interest receivables amounting to HK$750,000 (2019:
HK$1,830,000), which are secured by dividend right of a company
registered in the PRC, carried at fixed interest rate at 156% (2019:
15%) per annum. The borrower is the shareholder of the joint
venture held by the Group and the loan will be matured in July
2021;

Loan and interest receivables amounting to HK$2,079,000 (2019: Nil),
which are secured by consumable goods of a borrower, carried at
fixed interest rate at 12% per annum; and

Loan and interest receivables amounting to HK$69,057,000 (2019:
HK$74,838,000), which are unsecured, carried at fixed interest rate
ranging from 6% to 15% (2019: 9% to 18%) per annum.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

“EF+A=+—H #HBEE:

FEUE 3 K F 895,112,000 T (ZE— 4 :
28,512,000/ 7T) * AfE R A 2 IR R ad fE 1K
# BEAEFMNERE(ZZT—NF:10EZE15
EDN

BEREREFNEERFEFNBZHRE(ZST—

£ : 18,109,000/ 7T) LAEE—Faﬁ%E/%LmAn
BOZAAREEBEEERR  BEFFHNEAIO
|E

BURERERMNEBEERFAZHRE(CZET N
119,049,000 7T) * MERAFMBZESR
FHEER BEFEfXEh12E:

fEUE K K& F B442,00008 T (ZF — h F:
4,525,000/ T) L& RMEERER  BEF
FMEAHI56E(ZE—NF:15.6F) :

BREREMNBEERFREHRECZET N
£ :7,333,000/8 L) MURFEZEHEYD
EEETF  BEFHNENTI08ERISE(ZE
—N4E:10.8EE18E) :

fE U & % K F B750,0008 T (=& — h F:
1,830,000 70) * U—HRFHERERZ AR Z
%E%fﬁfﬁﬂivliiﬂ‘ﬁtﬂsr(:%fﬁd
CIBE) c ERARAIEEMBAELEZ
Hﬁ% ERBR_T=_—FtAEH:

fE U & 3k & F B.2,079,0008 T (=T —
B/ UERAZHEREREERR  BEFMNE
B12E &

JiE U & 5k % ) 8.69,057,0005 7T (— B — S ¢
74,838,0007T) * & EER - EEFFEN F6
BEEBE(ZE—NF :9EFI8E)



20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the loan and interest receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the
commencement of loan agreement entered and the date of

20.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WA E

31 December 2020
S

BHRERRFE(E)
ERAFTLER B2 Mk B 8K & A

BURAELERHENAGRER  BRE
REMERBEMRRE DM

interest income accrued, and net of provisions, is as
follows:

2020 2019
= —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Within 30 days 30K A 95,424 3,610
31-90 days 31290k 34,696 20,017
91-180 days 91E180K 1,318 12,859
181-365 days 1812365 5,474 24,772
Over 365 days 365K MA & 30,528 92,938
167,440 154,196

The Group applies the general approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a 12-month basis ECL
for loan and interest receivables. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the allowances will be based on the lifetime ECL.

AEBEA-—RAEUREABHREES
BAERKEREMNE - A EEERA
B LA SR KRG 0B - 1R 2 HITE (S
EEERER -

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of FE U E SR N F) B E B 1R R IR 2 B B an
loan and interest receivables are as follows: N

2020 2019
= —FT-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
At beginning of year RE ] 922,734 60,536
Impairment losses, net (note 7) WEBEFEN L) 17,086 920,774
Amount written off as uncollectible M EE AT AT E 2 & 58 (287,024) (58,576)
Exchange realignment e o 38 & 3,323 =
At end of year RER 656,119 922,734
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE B AR MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. BEWER KRR B (&)
The table below shows the credit quality and maximum TRITERAEEBRTFEETRER K
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's internal credit HARBEER Y BEZEEEEZERZAEER
rating system and period-end stage classification. The B0 - TE3 v oEAREBKAERE -
amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances.
31 December 2020
—E-_ZEF+-A=+—H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 78 HA
FEEE 2HEHEERE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1E R FE2M B E3M R 45t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THER THET FET
Loan and interest receivables & W B 3 & 7l &
Performing (good) (i) B % (R 4F) (i) 164,807 - - 164,807
Performing (bad) (i) B % (R R (i) - 49,753 - 49,753
Non-performing (iii) 8 49 (i) = = 608,999 608,999
Total @5 164,807 49,753 608,999 823,559
31 December 2019
—T-hF+=ZA=+—H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
121E A 78 23
EEEIE = HEEE RIS
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1E R FE2MRER FEIM R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FAT FAT FHE T
Loan and interest receivables & W E &7 8
Performing (good) (i) B & (R &) () 61,878 = = 61,878
Performing (bad) (i) B# (T R) (i) = 1,015,052 = 1,015,052
Non-performing (iii) & £ (iii) - - = =
Total Bt 61,878 1,015,052 - 1,076,930
(i) Performing (good) (i) refer to exposures which credit risk has not (i) BARE) (VEFEHZEERBRE VIR ER
increased significantly since initial recognition. AR fEREZE B -
(ii) Performing loans (bad) refer to exposures which credit risk has (i) BHERTR)EFMASZEERREEEL
increased significantly. Ft oo
(il Non-performing loans refer to exposures with objective evidence of (i) TERABFELREBREZTEZEAR -
impairment.
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20.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and
the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loan and
interest receivables is as follows:

NOTESTOCONSOUDATEDFWANQALSWUEMENTS
e M B WA E

31 December 2020
—TTF+=-R=+—H

20. BERERE (@)

HIRHARE I 2 O IARE B EKE K
EMBEZHERHAEEHEFGENT:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BB B2l R HEIR R mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FH& T FHE T
Gross carrying amount as at R —Z —h 4
1 January 2019 —A—BzKkm|
B 915,098 52,536 = 967,634
New 31 216,638 6,040 = 222,678
Derecognised BIERER (T
(excluding write-off) T s8) (54,423) = = (54,423)
Transfer to Stage 1 RS EIER - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 WS FORKER (1,015,052) 1,015,052 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 RS EIEE - - - -
Write-off i 88 = (58,576) - (58,576)
Acquisition of a subsidiary 4 B — S i B 2 A 582 - - 582
Exchange realignment bE H 8 & (965) = = (965)
At 31 December 2019 RZT—NF
+=-—A= 61,878 1,015,052 - 1,076,930
New 1 153,623 58,698 - 212,321
Derecognised BIEER(TRIE
(excluding write-off) T s8) (43,449) (147,571) - (191,020)
Transfer to Stage 1 S B = = = =
Transfer to Stage 2 BT B ER (2,174) 2,174 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 HE T EIMER (13,959) (878,754) 892,713 -
Write-off I - = (287,024) (287,024)
Exchange realignment P& 5 38 & 8,888 154 3,310 12,352
At 31 December 2020 RZTZTF
+=-—A=+—8H 164,807 49,753 608,999 823,559
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H
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The Group determines the provision for ECL by excising
significant judgements to evaluate the collectability from
individual loan and interest receivables after taking into
account their creditworthiness, whether they have financial
difficulties, experience of default or delinquency in interest
or principal payment, ageing analysis and forecast of future
events and economic conditions which may impact the

recoverability of loan and interest receivables.

ECL allowance as at —NF
1 January 2019 —H—BZEH
EEEBREIE

Net charge of the
impairment
Transfer to Stage 1

BB S F R

BREEFIRR

Transfer to Stage 2 RS FIRER

Transfer to Stage 3 RS EIRE

Write-off T 85

At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=—A=+—

Net charge of the

BB S F R

impairment
Derecognised RIERER
Transfer to Stage 1 RS EIER
Transfer to Stage 2 RS FIRER
Transfer to Stage 3 R EEIRE
Write-off T 85
Exchange realignment bE 5 3 &
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_TF

+-A=+—H
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Stage 1
R 124
HK$'000

FHET

8,000

914,734

(922,114)

620

15,099

(1,076)
(14,039)

33

637

AEEEREAHHETRBEEBRERR
= %LJI%IN‘H&ZTM&%IJ,%\ZEMSZ@'I‘E '
ERAREER LESMBEH - 2
Z’ﬂzfﬂﬂéizﬁﬁﬁ KL B~ BRI
AR BRI BREKE R R F \—M&EIEE
ZAREHREEBRZTEA -

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HE2M B EIMEER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
52,536 = 60,536
6,040 = 920,774
922,114 = =
(58,576) - (58,576)
922,114 - 922,734
61,786 = 76,885
(59,799) = (59,799)
1,076 = =
(878,754) 892,793 =
= (287,024) (287,024)

59 3,231 3,323
46,482 609,000 656,119



The Group has sent numerous demand letters to the
borrowers and guarantors but the loan and interest
receivables were still outstanding and in default position,
the Group will continue to demand repayment from the
borrowers and guarantors. The Group has engaged the
lawyer to issue legal letters to the borrowers and
guarantors demanding for immediate payment of
outstanding loan and interest. The Group has commenced
legal proceeding and issued the Writ of Summons to
several borrowers and guarantors. The Group is currently
seeking advice from the lawyer to proceed with legal
procedures for taking over the ownership of pledged assets
from the borrowers and guarantors.

Due to the default from certain of the borrowers in
repaying the outstanding principal and accrued interest and
having considered the latest financial position of the
borrowers and the possibility of realising the loan and
interest receivables from the borrowers, the Company took
prudent approach to make an impairment provisions for the
loan and interest receivables of HK$17,086,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$920,774,000).

Trade receivables JiE U BR 3k
Impairment A

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally 30 to 90 days (2019:
30 to 90 days) for its trade receivables. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise credit risk and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.
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AEEE ZRABRA RIERAZE LUK
BoHEAARBKERRMNEMAGEER
W BR A B AR BE - AN B S A B 2SR AE K
ARFERANER - AEBIE R FEEAR
ERARERAZLENE  ERAEX
NREEERENE - AEECDRRER
B RAZEERARERARLERS
MReAKBERESRKERMZER  KE
TEREFRERARERAKEME M
BEZHARE-

HRE TERABRREERNS & ETF
BB HRERBERARTHZ T
AR R E R AR EWRE R KRR E ZA
BEME ARRIBEMREBEE T _TF
+=—A=+—H8 1% 517,086,000/t
— T — R4 920,774,000 ) 2 R E
KRR BRI ERE -

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
T T

12,983 62,527
(12,983) (6,739)

- 55,788

AEEBRRFZBEGEREERTEK - &
WER 2R —MK N FI0E0XR(=ZF
—NF :30290K) - AEEHRHEHE KK
Bl EWRTBHEFHRREDT U EER
BRAEZERE meaflEEEe cHEND
s  AEETERERKERE ST
EEMEEBREMEENSREE - B
BRI BTRE °
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An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 EREZHHFAERRNBREER - B
December 2019, based on the invoice date and net of ERR_E—NF+_A=+—B KK
provisions, was as follows: DT :
HK$'000

T T
Within 30 days 30K A 291
Over 365 days 365K A £ 55,497

55,788
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of FEWERBREEBEERE ZESHWOT -

trade receivables are as follows:

2019
—T-NF
HK$'000
TAET
At beginning of year R 4) 6,739 6,250
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BB R A - 113
Impairment losses, net (note 7) WEBEFENZE7) 5,556 673
Amount written off as uncollectible #i$8& T E 2 & %8 - (287)
Exchange realignment bE W 5 & 688 (10)
At end of year RF R 12,983 6,739
The Group applies simplified approach to measuring ANEBBFAAEWKEZERE LS STE
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss HEEER BMEFR2HTEHEBEIK -
allowance for all trade receivables. The Group determines AEBBEBEEZERBEMZ EWEZS
the provision for expected credit losses by grouping M ERE LU E ZATAEE A ETEER =
together trade receivables with similar credit risk BEEBEE 2R RER&ERIE -
characteristics and collectively assessing them for likelihood
of recovery, taking into account prevailing economic
conditions.
The increase in loss allowance for the current year was KREE 7 EREKZENTERBRB L8
mainly due to an increase in trade receivables which were 3658 28 5 EW R IBE N -

past due over 365 days.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. EWERRE)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk REEEBER 2 AEEERKEREER
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a provision AR
matrix:
As at 31 December 2020 R-FE-_FTEF+=-A=+—H
Past due
161 5
Less than 30 to 91 to 181 to Over
Current 30 days 90 days 180 days 365 days 365 days Total
91% 1812 365X
BNHE 2 H30KX 30F90X 181K 365X B E “xE
Expected credit losses rate EHEEBEX 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) #BRHE € %
(FEmT) = = = = = 12,983 12,983
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEHi{z B 518
(F&xT) = = = = = 12,983 12,983
As at 31 December 2019 R=—ZE—-hE+=-A=+—H
Past due
-t
Less than 30 to 91 to 181 to Over
Current 30 days 90 days 180 days 365 days 365 days Total
INME 181& 365K
B A HR30Kk 30E90K 181K 365K LAk B
Expected credit losses rate EHEEBHEX 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 1% 1%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) #ABRHE € %
(F&xT) = 291 = = = 62,236 62,527
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEHI{ZEE1E
(F#&T) = = = = = 6,739 6,739
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2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
T T
Prepayments T 3K 1E 837 765
Deposits e 8,732 1,730
Other receivables H A fE W R I8 186,112 195,917
Impairment BB (38,769) (437)
156,912 197,975

Deposits and other receivables under FRBEEZLDZ
non-current assets portion 12 & I H fth B W3R8 (62,691) (38)
Current assets portion mBEELD 94,221 197,937

The financial assets included in the above balances were
categorised in Stage 1 for the measurement of expected
credit losses. Where applicable, an impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date by considering the
probability of default and the timing and amount of future
cash flows.

Deposits mainly represent rental deposits and deposit paid
for a trust investment. Given the Group has not
experienced any significant credit losses in the past, the
directors of the Company considered that the allowance for
expected credit losses for these deposits are not
significant.

Other receivables mainly represent the receivables from an
independent third party of HK$130,829,000 (2019:
HK$178,282,000) which are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2020 Annual Report

biiERmERceREERAS —HR
UFERHEEEE - ARBRREHRE
BHETRES N (WER) EE2EOMK
RPURARBEERBEHEEHE -

ZerREHERERER-BAEERE
Xffzke ERAKEBETLARREAE
MEREERX ARFAEERRULET
B R 2EHEEBRBRLTEX -

HEMEWREFrEEREK— 2B LE=FH
X 18130,829,0008 t(= & — N F:
178,282,000 L) REER 2B K&



22. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 22.

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in impairment allowance of other
receivables are as follows:
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S

BE - AAREARELMERRE

V=]

(453 )
\ =)/

Hi R BERERE 22T :

2020 2019

—F-FH ZFTNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THT FAETT

At beginning of year R F ) 437 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B B /B A R - 167
Impairment losses (note 7) B EE(HE7) 36,285 281
Exchange realignment e 5 3 2,047 (11)
At end of year RFER 38,769 437

Expected credit losses on the other receivables balances
are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to historical loss record of the Group. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The
loss rate as at 31 December 2020 was 20.8% (2019:
0.2%).

HEWRBEHZEBEREEBERILS
EAEBBAZEBLERERBERZX
fhst - BERSEFAE  UARBEFTRR
SR REER R 2TER(NEA) - R=
T _EF+ A=+ HZEEXE208%
—E—hF:02%)
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Cash and bank balances e RiRITHE S
Time deposits 7E B 17 5K
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in
RMB amounted to HK$19,103,000 (2019: HK$136,937,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’'s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for others currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
period of seven days depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interests at the
respective short term time deposits rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.
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2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
F& T

35,317 43,245
5,480 11,713

40,797 154,958

RBERER  AEBUAREAEZR S
N SR 1T 4 8 LA &2 B3 17 5K A£19,103,000/%8
T (= F — L4 136,937,000 T) ° A R
MATERERAEMER - BIREFHH
R INE B BSR40 - SR RNEE
BHET ASEEARTSRERNSINE
¥R CHRTBARELI B AHMER -

RITRESLEBRITHE R RREZEF
B BHEMERRFAEENEREH
E HFRERLH REBEHEHER
R ERENK B o $R1T 48 88 & H1 17 37 W
RIEHY EBENLBEAEBAEZRTT -



Other payables H & A< 3018
Accruals fEETE R

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of less than one year or on demand. Included
in the above other payables as at 31 December 2019 were
mainly (i) the refundable deposit of HK$85,000,000 offered
by an independent third party for the procurement of
consumable goods; (ii) an interest-free security deposit of
HK$45,035,000 provided by the customers and would be
refunded upon the settlement of debts; (iii) an interest-free
security deposit of HK$80,300,000 provided by the
borrowers of the Group’s loan and interest receivables (the
“Borrowers”) and were used to offset with interest
receivables due from the Borrowers of HK$83,983,000; and
(iv) consideration for acquiring a 100% interest in Sky
States Holding Limited due to the vendor of
HK$25,000,000, which was settled during the year ended
31 December 2020.

The loan was obtained from an independent third party to
the Group and the amount is unsecured, bearing interest at
5% per annum and repayable on 20 December 2021. The
loan is denominated in RMB.

The loan is repayable within one year and classified as
current liabilities.
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2019
—NEF
HK$'000
TATT

2,097 242,853
3,445 3,210

5,542 246,063

HihEMNREARE  FHHRA—FA
HBRER PR —EBE-AFE+-A=+
—HZzHEMWENREBEEEREN—EBL
EZTRRBERERREHEZ2TEDZRS
85,000,000/ 7T : (i) F P IR ¢ I #5 R &
EEBRRE ZFERFEIE 245,035,000
B (A AEEEREZR LT B ZER
ANMERADRETE AR EERERA
# 583,983,000 Lz & BEREBE &
80,300,000 7T & (iv) Bt L HE R FBIE R B
R AAFIO% Em EBNFEHF Z2RKE
25,000,0008 L - LIl A EREEF
—EFF+_A=+—HBLFEEE-

ERXREAKRE-—RBIE=T BER
A mFENREEFR  XAR-_T_—F
TZAZT+BEER -ERXUARBHE-
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The amounts due to related companies were unsecured,
interest-free and had no fixed term of repayment.

In October 2015, the Company issued zero coupon rate
mandatory convertible notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$2,400,000,000 (“MCN"), for the purpose of
satisfying the consideration of HK$2,400,000,000 (subject
to adjustment) pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 20 May 2015 entered into between the Company,
the controlling shareholder of the Company (the “Vendor”)
and the guarantor, to which the Company to acquire 96%
equity interest of the Katar Global Group.

The MCN bear no interest and will mature on 19 October
2020 (the "Maturity Date”). The Company may not redeem
the MCN at its option while the holder of the MCN has the
right to convert their MCN into shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share at any time during the
issue date to the Maturity Date, and the MCN is freely
transferrable by the holder of the MCN provided that they
may not be transferred to any connected person of the
Company without written consent of the Company and
compliance of any applicable Listing Rules. Any outstanding
MCN at the Maturity Date will automatically convert to
shares of the Company.

The summarised information of the MCN is set out as
follows:

20 October 2015
Maturity date 19 October 2020
Original principal amount HK$2,400,000,000
Coupon rate 0%
Conversion price per ordinary share HK$0.2

Issuance date

Further details regarding the principal terms and conditions
of the MCN are contained in the circular of the Company
dated 29 September 2015.
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EAABARRARELRN 258 RERE
EERE -

RZFE—RAFTA ARAETASHER
/2,400,000,0007% JT 2 = 258 il 1% 7T 32 f%
ZE(REAETERER]) UREARD
RIEARRIZERBR(TER) R ERAM
SV A" ZE-—AFERA-tAZER
ek (AR R L U B DN IR ERE B 2 96%
A% # ) € 1~ X {8 2,400,000,0005% 7T (7] F
).

BREERTRBERBENFEEBR_F=_F
FTATABTEHAD R - KRRAFAA
REEREBORGIETTREER - a6
MHAREREEFAABERZTAESH
RHREETAEERERESR2BTH
HARGMEAREREERSARE KD
HaflEr R REREATEAEER
B RRER  EEREARARARE@R
BERETEMERLTRMZERT &
BEETARREMABEAL - REHA
EREARTE 2R ETREZEFED
BRRARARD

mEIER BB RECEMBERINMAT

17 H —E—RF+A=-+H
| H H —E2-FF+A+NAE
R & 58 2,400,000,0007 7T

EEB R 0%
FRERREBRE 0.278 7T
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The MCN was classified under equity and no present value of
the fixed interest payment was represented during the life of
the MCN, therefore, no effective interest for the financial
liability element being calculated. The acquisition of the Katar
Global Group was completed on 20 October 2015 and on the
completion date, the fair value of the MCN was
HK$2,341,896,000, based on valuation performed by BMI
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the MCN with
a nominal value of HK$217,600,000 was converted into
1,088,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share. Immediately after
the conversion, the outstanding principal amount of the
MCN amounted to HK$2,182,400,000, with its fair value
of HK$2,129,564,000 was included in equity component of
convertible notes as at 31 December 2016 and 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
and the Vendor entered into the modification deed dated
27 August 2016 (as amended and supplemented by the
supplemental modification deed dated 4 October 2016 and
the second supplemental modification deed dated 7 June
2017) pursuant to which the Company and the Vendor have
conditionally agreed to amend certain terms of the MCN
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$2,182,400,000
(the “Amended and Restated MCN").

The summarised information of the Amended and Restated
MCN is set out as follows:
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BHEATBRRERENEREBE T L&A
BHEATRRERFHAAN TR ENRK
EYHE RUEFEcREEDLICE
BRE - WEMERKEBR —FEER=_F
—hAFETAZTATK  RBREBILSESER
HMEMPMBRFTEERABETMHE -
RHIMTRREBERTKBHZAFESR
2,341,896,0007 7t °

RBEE-_ZT—XNE+-_A=+—HI*F
€ - ®18217,600,0007% JT 2 58 i 14 7]
KREBERERESRI 2B TE®RA
1,088,000,0008 AR Al & 8 Ik - EpE#E
g AFEATREREBEZAEELRS
%6 /52,182,400,0008 L - MER =T —
FR_F—+tF+_A=+—HZRAFE
2,129,564,0007% T B 5T AR 2 I8 T g 2 #E

/\45 o

REBE=ZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE -
Z'K jgﬁi,\FuTiaﬂﬁﬁ—a /\i/\ﬁ
T tHtHAZEFREBE(KABAE-_T—F
+AEB BT RZERBHAE-T —
+tFNAERZE O TIE] RIBEE]
F#H7R) Bl ARRIEER BHEEHE
BB AL 4% 52,182,400,0007 7T 2 58
SlETTBRREE A THRATEEITRE
FlgEI MR ERE]D -

KASET R E 5 R Hll AT A B4R 2 B R
M

Issuance date ZE1THE 31 August 2017 —E—+tF¥NA=+—8”

Maturity date B H B 20 April 2020 (or, if applicable, :;ﬁ:iﬁi@ﬂ —+H8 =k (miEma)
20 April 2024 pursuant to the MR -_Z-_ZFWA-+HRE
Amended and Restated MCN & (& 5] Rk E 5l 5% Hll Al 2 Ig =
remaining unconverted and Tflﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ
outstanding by reason of & A A-ZT-_WFMA=-+
conversion restriction on 20 =})
April 2020)

Principal amount RN HK$2,182,400,000 2,182,400,0007% 7T

Coupon rate ZEEE X 0% 0%

Conversion price per &I EEMKEIRE HKS$0.2 0.2 7T

ordinary share

Further details regarding the principal terms and conditions
of the Amended and Restated MCN are contained in the
circular of the Company dated 5 July 2017.

BREEITREI RFENRREREER
R MR ZE—FFBHNARR A B
R-E-—ttFLtARBZAX
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The fair value of the Amended and Restated MCN was
HK$1,228,455,000, based on the valuation performed
by BMI Appraisals Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuer. During year ended 31 December 2018, the
board of directors passed a resolution on 16 March 2018
to approve that the difference of HK$901,109,000 between
the fair value of the Amended and Restated MCN and the
fair value of the MCN with outstanding principal amounted
to HK$2,129,564,000, was transferred from the equity
component of convertible notes to accumulated losses. As a
result, the fair value of HK$1,228,455,000 was remained in
equity component of convertible notes as at 31 December
2019 and 2018.

On 20 April 2020, the Amended and Restated MCN was
automatically extended for four years and the maturity date
shall be extended to 20 April 2024. Save for the automatic
extension, all other terms and conditions of the Amended
and Restated MCN remain unchanged. Further details
which are set out in the Company's announcement dated
20 April 2020.

The fair value of the Amended and Restated MCN was
HK$1,755,856,000 based on the valuation performed by
Royson Valuation Advisory Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuer. The difference of
HK$527,401,000 between the fair value of the Amended
and Restated MICN after automatic extension and the fair
value of the Amended and Restated MCN before automatic
extension amounting to HK$1,228,455,000, was transferred
from the equity component of convertible notes to
accumulated losses. As a result, the fair value of
HK$1,755,856,000 was remained in equity component of
convertible notes as at 31 December 2020.
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REBTEEE 2 A FEEEER] RE
RHIMTRRERNEBERT A FE
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The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are
as follows:
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FAREHBREEZEZBHMT:

Fair value
adjustment of
investment
properties
REMEZ
NEEAE
HK$'000
T T
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and R-_ZT—AF—HF—H —ZT—h%F

1 January 2020 +-_A=+—HBKk-_ZE-_ZTF—HF—H =

Deferred tax charged to the statement of FRARBRRNBR ZELERIB (A 22710)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) 1,143
Exchange realignment PE 5 F & 64
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZEF+=RA=+—H 1,207

The Group has tax losses of HK$33,673,000 (2019:
HK$25,105,000) that are available for offsetting against
future profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of
these losses as the utilisation of which is uncertain.

N & B A FIE E54833,673,0008 T (— & —
JL4F : 25,105,000 ) AT AN EELE S
BRRAIZARK &R - AREEZETESAE
N MBERZEEERRERAELHEE
LZEE o

2019
—T-NF
HK$'000
TFHE T
Authorised: EIE
400,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.001 400,000,000,0000% & I&
each M {E0.001% T Z I’k 1% 400,000 400,000
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Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:

A\_T—-NF—A—B8-
“Z-hFE+-A=t+—H-
—TZTF-A—HK
—E-TF+-A=+—H

At 1 January 2019,
31 December 2019,
1 January 2020 and
31 December 2020

During the annual general meeting held on 12 June 2012
(the “AGM"), the shareholders of the Company duly
approved the relevant resolutions to adopt a new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) by
authorising the directors to allot and issue up to the 10
percent of the issued share capital of the Company under
the New Share Option Scheme. The directors or an
authorised committee were authorised, at their/its absolute
discretion, to grant options to any person, subjected to the
selection criteria, being an employee, officer, agent,
consultant or representative of the Group, including any
executive or non-executive directors, in order to provide
incentives to the guarantee to contribute to the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and
attract resources that were valuable to the Group. Under
the New Share Option Scheme, the Company might grant
options to any participant, in the absolute discretion of the
Board, who had made valuable contribution to the business
of the Group. The subscription price would be a price
determined by the Board and at least the highest of (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(c) the nominal value of the shares.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2020 Annual Report

Number Share
of shares Share premium
in issue capital account Total
=% £0)
g7l ¢ BRAE RO EER et
‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET FHET FET
3,870,102 3,870 932,470 936,340
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:
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30. BRESTE(H)

VAT BB B HE 0 & iR RAR R AT &I 7T (8

2020
—BEF

Weighted
average Number
exercise price of options

hn#E ¥
TEE BREHA
HK$ per share ‘000
BRET T 5
At 1 January R—HA—H = =
Granted during the year FRED 0.40 386,800
At 31 December WR+—A=+—H 0.40 386,800

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

R8RS B R R 1T 8 B A 2 1T B R AT
G R U

2020 —EEHF

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHA TEE* TR

‘000 HK$ per share

T 4 BRE T
386,800 0.40 31-12-23 to 30-12-30
—=§+=-HA=t+—HZ
=25+”-A=+H

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company's share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was HK$78,396,000 (HK$0.20 each) (2019: Nil), of which
the Group recognised a share option expense of HK$72,000
(2019: Nil) during the year ended 31 December 2020.

© o MARDAGRAR IR B AT R MR A R A B
W ABRETEEATRE

FRAFELE 2 BRENADFEA78,396,0008
T(BMH0208 T —TE—hE: T) K&
EEEREF72,0008T(ZE—NF: T)
ARE T -_TE+-_A=+—RHIEFE
2 ERERY -
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The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

FARKMZ NG GEZBREZQFE
TTREHBHUA-—BARIMGEE - EHE
EEMB BB IER R MRME - TREIZ
18 2L P 8 A B

Dividend yield (%) % B2 (%) -
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 18 (%) 63.23
Historical volatility (%) ﬁif}i 'FE % 63.23
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.541
Expected life of options (year) Hﬁﬁé T‘E Eﬁ‘i,ﬁﬂ(i) 10
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) InEEEHREERET) 0.39

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options are based on the directors best
estimation. The value of shares options varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. No other
feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

On 31 December 2020, a total of 386,800,000 share
options granted to certain of the consultants of the
Company in respect of their contributions to the Group in
the upcoming three years from the grant date. These share
options vest on 31 December 2023 and have an exercise
price of HK$0.4 per share and an exercise period ranging
from 31 December 2023 to 30 December 2030. The price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant was HK$0.39
per share.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 386,800,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 10.0% of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.
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NRZE_TF+_A=+—0H XxREET
BERRAEERaEL BRI AR =ZEF
J*EZKEIVHHZ”EH%&EA
386,800,00017 fEfixtE - 2 EERENRZ

—=F+=-—RA=+—HHEB - ﬁ@{“fﬁ%

f%0.4% 7T - fﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁ'ﬁ_v__iJr ﬂ_
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E/\\\?EHjEﬁHWHXDLT%Z%HXO.39/ETE°

RATHBRRUEBE - HARBETE T
ff 2 RAREE IR #E 8B 5386,800,00017 °
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31.

32.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 72 of
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’'s PRC statutory reserve represents a portion of
the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which are established
in the PRC has been transferred to reserve fund which are
restricted as to use.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

31.

32.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WA E

31 December 2020
S

fi# ¥

ARERAFERBEEE 2 HELER
HEBRGA B REB2E 2 GA BN
PR

AEBEZzPEEERBEASENHEK
UZHMBRARBSEEBREABRR 2@
2R o

BEEAFEREZE2HNIESR
B 8 2 7]

BEERFEBRESZE 2 AEEWNE QR
(RN

2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NEF
Percentage of equity interest held by EERERRELZ
non-controlling interests: ¥ T ot
Katar Global Group MZERREE 4% 4%
2020 2019
—BR-RF _—F2-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FET
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to DB TIFERER Z
non-controlling interests: FRaF,(EE) :
Katar Global Group MZERKEE 787 (291)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling R EEEBETERER 2
interests at the reporting date: E
Katar Global Group INERKEH 26,054 24,812
FERSHBZEEFRAT 165
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32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
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32. BREAFERERZHIER

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS Ff B~ B (4
(Continued)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TREM EANBRAGT 2 BERBEE -
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts BE2EBANKREMEEARR HEYH
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: Bl Z &%
Katar Global
Group
hn i | R
£H8
HK$'000
T T
2020: —ETF
Revenue g #= 21,292
Total expenses & 8 8 1,605
Profit for the year F N Fl 19,687
Total comprehensive income for the year FARA2EW = LR 31,062
Current assets mEE E 566,559
Non-current assets ERBEE 94,974
Current liabilities mEAE (10,171)
Non-current liabilities FEnEERE =
Net cash flows used in operating activities KEEFHHHA 2B REFE (206,368)
Net cash flows from investing activities REFYHELE 2B EREFHE 64,642
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RekBeEBYRLDFE (141,726)
2019: — N
Revenue I #= 40,142
Total expenses & 48 %8 47,408
Loss for the year FRNEE (7,266)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNEHEEEERE (13,788)
Current assets mEEE 704,054
Non-current assets ERBEE 60,937
Current liabilities mBaE (144,680)
Non-current liabilities EmREBEE =
Net cash flows used in operating activities KL EHHHA 2B REFE (158,156)
Net cash flows from investing activities KEEHEEZREREFR 156,156
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents HekBeEBYRLDFE (2,000)
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On 3 March 2016, 25 May 2016, 27 June 2016, 23 August
2016 and 19 April 2017, the Group entered into loan
agreements with a borrower, a company incorporated in
Bermuda as an investment holding company with limited
liability and the shares of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Borrower”), with
principal amounts of HK$36,000,000, HK$50,000,000,
HK$70,000,000, HK$82,000,000, and HK$60,000,000
respectively. Since all loans were more than a vyear
overdue, the Group had sent numerous demand letters and
engaged legal adviser to issue legal letters to the Borrower
demanding for repayment of outstanding loan principal and
interest. At the same time, the Group continued to
communicate with the Borrower to negotiate the repayment
arrangement.

After further negotiation with the Borrower, the Borrower
entered into a share mortgage in favour of the Group on 27
March 2020 and entire issued share capital of Keen State
Global Limited (“Keen State”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Borrower, was pledged to the Group as security of
the outstanding loan and interest balances in total of
approximately HK$334,903,000. Keen State and its
subsidiary (“Keen State Group”) were engaged in holding
of leasehold land in the Island of Saipan.

The Borrower was still unable to settle the outstanding loan
and interest balance and management of the Group was
doubtful that the outstanding loan could be fully recovered,
the management of the Group considered the exercise of
the abovementioned share mortgage could enable the
Group to acquire a tangible asset which was less costly and
less time-consuming. Therefore, on 4 June 2020, the
Group issued a notice to the Borrower, to exercise the right
under the share mortgage to obtain the entire issued share
capital of Keen State for settling off partial amount of
outstanding loan and interest due from the Borrower at the
consideration of HK$15,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). The
consideration for the Acquisition has been determined by
the Group having taken into account, among other things,
the valuation of the leasehold land held by Keen State
Group as appraised by the independent valuer engaged by
the Group under market comparison approach.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R KT

31 December 2020
S

R-ZEBE—-—RNE=ZA=1 —ZZF—X~EARA
—+HB - —E—ARFANA-t++H =Z
—ANENA+=Z=HER-_ZE—+HFWMA+
hB  AEBHR-ZERAREREZR
R ZERETREERAR  ERAORN
EEBARSGMERAR LT [ERAD
AYZHERBE A5 H A
36,000,000/ T * 50,000,000/ 7T -
70,000,000 7T - 82,000,000/ T &
60,000,000/ 7T - B FTA B2 % A
B—F WMASEEHHZHBREK I
ZEFEERREBERAZLEZZRGEK
BEERAEEZERLAE LB - &t H
B AEBEEHEERAERE  EEHEE
ZHE o

KEERAE—PERRE  BRARZE
“TEFE=ZA "+ +tBAUAREB AT AL
T—RNIEB.  ERAZEERBAR
Keen State Global Limited ([Keen State])
ZERBERTRAEEHRTFAEE A
AEEERASRFBEEH A EL
334,903,000/ 7T 2 £ ° Keen State & H
M B A7 ([Keen State B ) N EIIEH
BEHEELH -

BRADELZENKREEER LT A%
i AEBEEE M HWE K
BEERFR RAETELARGIRIEE
ANEE R AR A RE LB EER
EE -Ait RZZTE-_FTFXAWAH K
EERERABHBN  BRERGIEIBT
FHEFI A B S Keen State® 2D BT -
HIEEURERAZBY RTEREFE
K {8 515,000,000 T (BB E]) - Uk
BEBRENKAEEET  EFEK
(HE A B #E) Keen State 52 B R4 70 & + i
HEKEAEEMZES L GEMBED
S EOEREAE) ©
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At the time of the Acquisition, Keen State did not actively
engage in any business and accordingly, in the opinion of
the directors, the Acquisition does not constitute a
business combination but an acquisition of assets and
liabilities. The Acquisition was completed in June 2020. As
a result, Keen State became a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and its financial results were
consolidated into the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

For accounting purpose, the cost of Acquisition of
HK$15,000,000 has been allocated to the following
identifiable assets and liabilities of Keen State as at the
date of Acquisition as follows:

@Tﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ% -lH:ﬁ%ijJWE%%IE
jfT%ﬁf@%ﬁ&A@? mMBKEEEKRSE

E- - WBEEBER T _TFATK - &
ﬁl: Keen StatefX /AN RZHEEEM
B AR ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁ’t‘l—"%.Z%m
FHMERLEZEEA

BIEE A% - Wi = IE K 415,000,000
BB TH B 2= T %Keen State A U B8
EEHPZABNEERAE:

HK$'000
FE T
Net assets acquired: Fir U B8 5 & EE
Investment property (note 14) "EMEHF14) 15,000
Total identifiable net assets acquired Fr B B R FEEBE 15,000
Satisfied by: SRR
Set-off of loan and interest receivables from the ¥ #4 B WEZ A B R KL F B
Borrower 15,000

As the consideration was satisfied by way of the set-off
and Keen State did not have cash and cash equivalents
balance at the Acquisition date, there was no cash flow
impact in respect of the exercise of share mortgage right
by the Group.
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In 2019, the Group acquired a 100% interest in Sky State
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Sky State
Group”) from an independent third party. The Sky State
Group are principally engaged in the provision of short to
medium-term financing and related financial management
and consulting services in the PRC. The acquisition was
made as part of the Group's strategy to expand its
business segment and generate diversified income. The
purchase consideration for the acquisition of
HK$25,000,000 was settled during the year.

The fair value of assets and liabilities of Sky States Group
as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
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RZB—NF AEEEM—ZBILE=H
WERAERAERAALERBAR (X
HEBED100%EzZ - KRBEEEER A
Bt ERHPEHRENEESRERE R
BHRY c ETKBEBEDNIEALASEE
ﬁ%%’\*B&FEyEMHQJ\ZﬁﬁiZ*

o WeHE =18 ~ 8 B X {825,000,000%
ﬁﬁéim%% o

AABEMEERBERKEEN 2 ATE
m

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

A Uk BB B

BRAZATE

Notes HK$'000

B &+ FET

Plant and equipment % 5B K 7% 15 13 490

Right-of-use assets FREEE 15(a) 2,876

Loan and interest receivables JE W & 5k K& R B 582

Trade and other receivables J?EHQEE/TA&,HJ@FEH& I 284,415

Cash and cash equivalents BekBEeEEY 5,079

Lease liabilities HE&E 15(b) (2,871)

Interest-bearing other borrowings HEMsr 8B E (193,072)

Other payables and accruals HEmERARIENERTER (73,392)

Due to a related company JE A~ — R A B A |) 3k B (180)

Tax payables J& - 75 18 (167)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BEATEZAHANFEERE 23,760

Other payables assigned B E 2 HAb A RE 15,231
Gain on a bargain purchase recognised RixE 18 ﬁni’%WZE@H&U\&me

in other income and gains in the RzEBEBE R
consolidated statement of profit or loss ) (13,991)
Total consideration REHLT 25,000
Satisfied by: AR
Other payables H & < 3OIE 24 25,000

*%E%ﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬂ’\ﬁ 169
—BECBEFR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

170

The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities using the REBEMNAAKTHERBERN KBRS 2R
present value of the remaining lease payments at the date EBEfEc kB HEAE FREEED
of acquisition. The right-of-use assets were measured at an RESEREEBECSBTE °

amount equals to the lease liabilities.

HK$'000
T T
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of EHRWNEAPER 2B SR
acquisition of Sky States Group is as follows: SR
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrIiER e RIRSEZEEY 5,079
Less: Cash paid by the Group B AEEIN RS =
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in 5t AR EEF EHEREZHE X
cash flows from investing activities REeEBYRAFRE 5,079
Since the acquisition, Sky State Group contributed BUWEBEIEINKR  RBEEBAEEHEEZ_ZT—
HK$21,797,000 to the Group's revenue and HK$54,277,000 NF+Z_A=+—"BIEFEXAEBEKFE
to the consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December BA21,797,000% 7T & 4 & & 8 7 Bt
2019. 54,277,000 7T ©
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the HMEHRENEE  IXNERHEZE—_T —
year, the revenue of the Group and the loss of the Group NFE+-_A=+—"HUEFEZRFZRLEIE
for the year ended 31 December 2019 would have been & o Bl A145,992,0007 JT £825,562,000
HK$145,992,000 and HK$825,562,000, respectively. T o
Acquisition-related costs recognised as an expense in the AN HA B FE 22 A B X 2 Uk B 48 8 AN I i~
current period were insignificant. B o
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(ii)

(iii)

During the year the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$1,546,000 (2019: HK$442,000) and
HK$1,546,000 (2019: HK$442,000) respectively,
in respect of lease arrangements for leasehold
land and buildings (2019: leasehold land and
buildings and motor vehicles).

During the year the Group had non cash additions
to investment properties of HK$4,458,000 in
respect of a residential property, and the amount
was settled through set-off of loan and interest
receivables.

During the year the Group had recovered certain loan
and interest receivables and trade receivables of
HK$83,983,000 and HK$50,000,000, respectively,
through set-off of other payables.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ii)

(iii)

e M mRM T

31 December 2020
S

FR - AEBEFHEEEKE
EEBEZHEREAFAEDF B
1,546,000/8 L (Z T — N F:
442,000/ JT) }&1,546,0007%% T
— T — R4 : 442,000 7T) -
TAREE L REF(ZE—
hWE HELHEEFURA
B)zHERH -

FRANEBIERS FR
EEHEEMEZREDE
4,458,000/8 7T * sz BB B
HERERERERNEEE -

TR AEEZBYEAME
< FRIR U B 3 F R U B R K R
B K E KK XD A
83,983,000/8 JT }50,000,000
BT e
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 35. R RERM T (H)

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METEBFELEEGZE

activities

Interest-
bearing
other Lease
borrowing liabilities
Hihst BB E HEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FA&T
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-—NF+=-ZRA=+—8H - -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 BN S B 7 RS 22 A
Bz T E = 636
At 1 January 2019 RZE—hnF—H—H = 636
New leases NHE = 442
Changes from financing cash flows BRERSRE (157,487) (2,833)
Changes from operating cash flows KEIR SR (25,127) =
Interest expenses B X 480 100
Interest paid classified as operating DEAKER SR ZENMNFE
cash flows - (100)
Increase arising from acquisition of W B Y B AR FTEE £ 2 320
subsidiaries 193,072 2,871
Exchange realignment & 5 38 & (4,226) (81)
At 31 December 2019 and R-F-AF+-A=+—HBEK
1 January 2020 —E_ZTH—-H—H 6,712 1,035
New leases FHE — 1,546
Changes from financing cash flow BLEIR o nE = (1,433)
Interest expenses B X 347 79
Interest paid classified as operating DEAKER SR ZEMNFE
cash flows = (79)
Exchange realignment bE X 3 & 428 69
At 31 December 2020 A\_T_TF+_A=+—H 7,487 1,217
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Total cash outflow for leases included in the
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows:

Within operation activities K EEN A
Within financing activities BEEEA

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no capital
expenditure contracted for but not provided for in its
financial statements (2019: Nil).

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

(a)  During the year, loan interest income of HK$2,741,000
(2019: HK$999,000), HK$976,000 (2019: Nil) and
HK$148,000 (2019: Nil) were received from
Chongging Juquan, Wuxi Juquan and Tian Xing Tianjin
respectively, the joint ventures of the Group. Details
are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b)  During the year, a loan interest income of HK$185,000
(2019: HK$129,000) was received from a related
company, EHAUMCEEEZARBTER QA ("E
$ "), a partner of joint ventures in Chongging Juguan
and Wuxi Juquan (2019: a partner of joint venture in
Chongqing Juquan).

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R KT
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S

HAGAESRERZ2HEHERS R
HAREmT

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
F& T

1,226 3,186
1,433 2,833

2,659 6,019

R-E_EF+_A=+—H ' Z"&EBEW
BEFHNERRETERRAIRBEZE
AELX(ZE—NF:£)-

BRAMBREREMMOFR 2RXFI - K
SERFRNEBEBIETUTEARS:

a) FHRNERAEBAGELESZTESEZR -
BHERRRITREERFB WA
2 B2,741,000% T(Z T — L F:
999,000/ L) * 976,000 L (ZZF—
& ) 148,000 T (=ZF — 1L
FoE) - FBERGRAEMBEHRENW
5£20 °

b) FREBWEBAREZUMOCESE
BEAREERAR([EE] - &1F
KEBEEHERREHER Z2BHE(Z
T—NEF  AEKEERERZEBMH)
B R B U 185,000 T (—E— N
129,000/ 7T) °

hERBHEREERAT 173
—E-®EEH



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R MY A

31 December 2020
—T_ZEHF+_RF=+—H

174

Diring the year, cost of services of HK$1,638,000 (c)
(2019: Nil), HK$3,093,000 (2019: Nil), HK$192,000

(2019: Nil) were received from Chongging Juquan,

Wuxi Juguan and Tian Xing Tianjin, respectively.

During the vyear, cost of services of HK$1,068,000 (d)
(2019: Nil) and HK$117,000 (2019: Nil) were received

from &85 and R B L (RFE)RIEERERAH, a

partner of joint ventures in Chongging Juquan and

Wouxi Juquan, respectively.

Outstanding balances with related parties: (e)

(i) The Gorup had outstanding balance due to Zhong
Ji International Medical Group (Hong Kong)
Limited, a related company of which Mr. Yan Li,
an executive director of the Company in
common, of HK$456,000 (2019: Nil) as at the
end of the reporting period. Details are set out
in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(i) The Group had outstanding balances due to
Chongging Juquan, Wuxi Juguan and Tian Xing
Tianjin of HK$807,000 (2019: HK$173,000),
HK$1,132,000 (2019: Nil) and HK$145,000 (2019:
Nil) as at the end of the reporting period.
Details are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the (f)
Group:

In the opinion of the directors, the directors and chief
executive represented the key management personnel
of the Group and details are included in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBERRSENem I A RASEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T

follows:

2020 —EZEF

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive Financial assets

income — Equity at amortised

Financial assets investments cost Total
BAFEEBEM
ZEREARZ
SRMEE RESERFAR

CRMEE - REARE ZERMEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT

Equity investments designated at fair value T AR AFEEBEM

through other comprehensive income 2HEK = ARZBRAE
KE 73.345 - 73.345
Loan and interest receivables W EREAE - 167,440 167,440
Financial assets included in deposits, FFAKS - BERAHRE
prepayments and other receivables R Ho b FE W R IE 2
ETREE = 156,075 156,075
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRLEEY - 40,797 40,797
73.345 364,312 437,657
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost
1% 8 88 R A
cEEE ARZzErEE
HK$'000
T & T
Other payables H Al & 5RIA 1,380
Interest-bearing other borrowing Hivzt BB E 7,487
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,217
Due to related companies F& 1< B8 Bt R B 50 2,540
12,624
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

2019

38. EHESZEMT A

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income — Equity

Financial assets

Financial assets investments  at amortised cost Total
BATEBREM
FERFEARZ
CHEE REHEKAAR
SREE — BRAEKE ZERMEE Mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT FAT
Equity investments designated at fair value 3 EAKRAFEBBEM
through other comprehensive income 2HEK = AR ZRAE
®E 603,385 - 603,385
Financial assets at amortised cost REHERAANRZSREE = 59,755 59,7565
Loan and interest receivables FEW B R A8 = 154,196 154,196
Trade receivables JE W2 BR 3K = 55,788 55,788
Financial assets included in deposits, FPAK S - BRKE
prepayments and other receivables R E A FE W TR IE 2
TREE = 197,210 197,210
Cash and cash equivalents ReRB&EEY = 154,958 154,958
603,385 621,907 1,225,292
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost
i 8 85 B R
SR AE ARZEBBE
HK$'000
T
Other payables H A FE < 0B 242,751
Interest-bearing other borrowing Hstege 6,712
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,035
Due to a related company JE 5 BA Bt A R IR 173
250,671
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Management has assessed the fair values of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities are approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short maturities of
these instruments.

The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the directors and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices.
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ETAREHAIEH -
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A e
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39.

178

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

ERMTREZAFERLXIFERE

(%)

D ER B
TREMAEESRTIAZAFTEAER
Al :

BAVEFAEZEE:

Fair value measurement using

RATIGABB 2R VETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
As at 31 December 2020 markets inputs inputs
& BT % EXATEHE EATTEER
R-BE-ZEF+=HA=+—H HE WARE BWARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—%#&) (BE=E®R) (B=FH) 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET
Equity investments designated 5 E &3 A FE
at fair value through other FREMEE
comprehensive income Was ANBRZ
BRA&KE 73,345 = = 73,345
Fair value measurement using
KRATI@ASER A TEFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
As at 31 December 2019 markets inputs inputs
A BT 5 BRABE EATAHE
RZE-NAF+-_A=+—H wE W A BUR WA BUR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—%H) (BZZFR) (F=ZFHR) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET TAET FTAET
Equity investments designated 1§ A& AF(E
at fair value through other BREMEE
comprehensive income W AR
BAKE 603,385 - - 603,385

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for the financial assets
(2019: Nil).
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The Group's principal financial instruments are used to raise
finance for the Group's operations and investments. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as loan and interest receivables, trade receivables and other
payables which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’'s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, equity price risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-
bearing financial assets and liabilities. Interest-bearing
financial assets are the interest on loan receivables and
deposit with banks. Interests on deposits with banks based
on deposit rates offered by bank while interests on loan
receivables are based on fixed rates. Interest-bearing
financial liabilities are the interest on other borrowings.
Interest on other borrowings are based on fixed rate.
Therefore, changes in interest rate would not affect the
profit or loss of the Group.

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group's listed investments are
listed on the Stock Exchanges and are valued at quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.
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FEBZIESRIADARAERERZ
LEMBRESERES AKEBEELZREE
HWEeMEENEBE NEEHAELEEL
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A °
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AEEEH TSN EEHRABREZIR
AEEZFAEEREERAR TR
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B MEKREFIZEEMNEFE - fHE®
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
5% (2019: 5%) change in the fair values of the listed equity
investments, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts
at the end of the reporting period. For the purpose of this
analysis, for the listed equity investments included in
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the impact is deemed to be on the fair value
reserve (non-recycling).

2020 —B-RF
Equity investments listed in: LA T EH 2 KA
"E:
Hong Kong — BE —
Financial assets at fair value IZAFEBZBEMEME
through other WS AR SREE

comprehensive income

2019 —T-NEF
Equity investments listed in: R LA T A B 2 lRA
®E
Hong Kong — EE —
Financial assets at fair value IRAFEZBEMEE
through other WHmARZEREE

comprehensive income

The Group’s management manages the above exposure by
maintaining a well-diversified investment portfolio.
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TRERETERAREZRFEES% (=
E-NF 5% EIRZGRE (B EM
BHEFTERRAAEARBRZE)  T)
BHREMREESEITE - RADHA -
RAARAFPEEBEBEEKE AKRZ
EMEEZLTHRAREMNS BRAA/R
FEZHERARATFERFEB(CTAED) -

Increase/

Carrying Increase/ decrease
amount of decrease in other
equity in profit components
instruments before tax of equity

BRATHZ BRBiATER HagEmHo
REE®E #m,w #m, L

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
73,345 - 3,667

603,385 - 30,169

AEEEEBERERBEZEZTILZRE
HeEE bdmER -



The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to the loan, interest and
trade receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group has established policies and systems for monitoring
and control of credit risk. The management has delegated
different divisions responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring processes to
ensure that follow up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, management reviews the recoverable
amounts of loan, interest and trade receivables individually
or collectively at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, management considers that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 40% (2019: 33%) and 89%
(2019: 78%) of the Group's largest loan borrower and the
five largest loan borrowers, respectively.

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.
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RERERR - EF$EIEX&£XE%
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EERBEFER -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. i EREEEBEEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) FEERE)
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-FEFf+ZFA=1+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12 B A
FEEE E2HEHEFEEESR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
- FoRR E=RE |ER(9z3 Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FTHERT TR T THET FTHERT
Trade receivables* JE 8 BR SR = = - 12,983 12,983
Loans and interest FE W E R R A A
receivables 164,807 49,753 608,999 = 823,559

Financial assets included AR S - B
in deposits, prepayments I8 K& H i fE UL

and other receivables REZCREE
— Normal** — IE &g = 156,075 = = - 156,075
— Doubtful** — RHER** - 31,933 6,836 = 38,769
Cash and cash equivalents BR& REESEEY 40,797 - - - 40,797
361,679 81,686 615,835 12,983 1,072,183
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—F=-F&t+t=-HA=+—H
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. Bi¥RMEBEEERKE (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

= & Bk ()
R=—F-NF+=A=+—H

Credit risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 78 B
EEEIE > HEMBEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—PEER FERER FE=MEER Kz 4B Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FA&T FAET FE T FH& T
Financial assets at REHEKAANRZ
amortised costs eMEE
— Normal** — [EF** 59,755 = = = 59,755
Trade receivables* FE U BR Fk* = = = 62,527 62,527
Loans and interest FE W E S R F A
receivables 61,878 1,015,052 - - 1,076,930
Financial assets included AARE - B
in deposits, prepayments I K& H i fE UL
and other receivables HREZEBMEE
— Normal** = TIE & =« 197,210 - - - 197,210
— Doubtful** — RE** = 437 = = 437
Cash and cash equivalents H& KB E&EEY 154,958 = = = 154,958
473,801 1,015,489 - 62,527 1,561,817
* For trade receivables to which the Group applied the simplified * HAAREERERGEREZEZBKRERMNES
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix ERBEEEZERNGRE M RERM F218
is disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements. = e
BB The credit quality of the financial assets at amortised costs, financial oG i 2 B A AN BR 2 8 & B A RET A B

B BeRHEMERFEZ S /EE AR 8
BV EENBEREVRERAREREEZRE
ERBAGEEN  AZEeREECEEER
BERIER] BR - SREEZEFRERH
WA BRER]

assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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40.

184

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from these receivables are disclosed in
notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flows are the general sources of
funds to finance the operations of the Group. The Group
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure it
has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial
obligations. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding
by keeping committed credit lines available and sufficient

40.

BEEREEEERBE
EER(E)
AEERZERRREBEEEZ2EFERR 2
E—PEEEREEVERRMEF20R
214 52 -

NEEEAZRERE N ANEB LB
Bez—REZRR - AEBEEHRAE
FEEERN UHERBRHMBERE
THBEE ASEEEFBERAIHY
BzERAREERRAMZBITER R
RHEGzBEEN UENHEERRESFTE -

bank deposits to meet its short term cash requirements. AEBZzRBESRBREREESZ TILA
The Group's liquidity risk management includes diversifying B RIR o
the funding sources.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the $%@?§ ARBBRREBEE D22 BEE
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual WMEHRCEBABERAOT
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2020 —E_EHE
On demand
or within One to
one year two years Total
BRERD
R—FR —EZWMEF o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Other payables H fth JE 1 3R 1,380 - 1,380
Interest-bearing other borrowing Htst2EE 7,833 = 7,833
Lease liabilities HERE 891 401 1,292
Amounts due to related companies FE 1< B8 BSt 2 B 3RIE 2,540 - 2,540
12,644 401 13,045
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2019 —E—NE
On demand or
within one year
BERIN —FA
HK$'000
FE T
Other payables H M JE 5 3B 242,751
Interest-bearing other borrowing Hizt BB E 7,047
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,044
Amounts due to related companies F& 1 B8 B R B 5RO 173
251,015

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
cash and cash equivalents and total equity comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associate with each class of capital,
and take appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital
structure.

AEBEEBHER  UERRAEEETE
BEEAKELE AKEEELERS
RETE ERRESRALR AKE
ZERRBEREFMER -

AEEZEAERBHERFR R kR
TEEYUALERAB(BEEETRAR
ffé ) HELPX.

EEZEHRAENER - (ERILRE TE
— WD EFEREARAREZEHENRN
HEZRER  IRIBETHURERE
BMZzEXRGER -
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(b)

On 8 January 2021, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with Zhong Ji 1 International
Medical Group (Hong Kong) Limited, a related
company of which Mr. Yan Li, an executive director of
the Company is in common, to acquire the Irving
Weissman Advanced Medical Testing Centre and
Asian Advanced Medical Centre as well as their
devices and equipment at a consideration of HKS$T,
which enables the Group to expand into the medical
testing business and generate stable income in the
long run. Further details of which are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 8 January 2021.

On 14 March 2021, the Group entered into an
investment cooperation framework agreement with
Hubei Mailyard Share Co., Ltd. (1t =B I DA R
72 |]), an independent third party, pursuant to which,
both parties will establish a joint venture company in
Xiantao City, Hubei Province, focusing on
commencing advanced medical services such as
cancer prevention and early screening, longevity
medical examination and cell management, as well as
distributing longevity dietary supplements, and
providing longevity management services and
solutions. Further details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 March 2021.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to

conform to the current year's presentation.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2020 Annual Report

(a)

(b)

RZZBE-_—F—ANB AEBER
BRI REREEEEER AR (I
BARRIMITESB I LERERTT
EE BB AR L —EERE -
AR R B8 o U B & B 2 B = B B
SHEBEBRAP LR EMNECERERE

AP O AR EESENRE  BAK
BEEFERERAEY RERASK

BERRERA - E—FFBHNA
ARBHAE-T-_—F—ANBZA

lﬁil: o

R-FB_—F=—A+WA AEEHHRE
BUYE=TTHILEBERNDBR QA
AR EBFEERGZ  Eit
EHERLEUkTRI-—HEaER
A BERFARNDERS RSEER
Al AAREEELEBRERY - &E
ESERMAE RERSEER
% REBANTREER - £—F
HBENARRBEHRRA T —_—F=
AtTHBZRE -

ETHREHEENHE  UNAAEFE
ZE2HNTR -



Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investments in subsidiaries
Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Deposits and prepayments

Due from subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables and accruals

Due to subsidiaries

Amount due to a related company

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
AND NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves (note)

(Capital deficiency)/total equity

Yan Li
5
Director

EF
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RABRBERR 2 MBARRBRE R
T

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
F& T
IRBEE
8 B K& 2% 1 136 232
FREEE - 45
RB AR 2&E 15,288 136,000
EEARAFTEBEA
Hithz2mkz AR 2
f& A 1% & 64,646 593,558
ERBEELE 80,070 729,835
REBEE
e MBI FHIE 656 459
NS NGIE @ 37,732 48,096
HeRREeFEYD 19,545 1,805
MEEERAE 57,933 50,360
REBEE
H b JE T RB K
EErE A 2,017 3,432
FE 1 B BB R R K 1B 320,280 292,844
FE {5 — A B Bt R R SR IB 456 -
XN - 2,430
mBBEEE 322,753 298,706
REBEEFEH (264,820) (248,346)
EERERRBEBR
(BE3H)BE
HE (184,750) 481,489
e
[i& A< 3,870 3,870
1 1% (K7 2E) (188,620) 477,619
(BB, B8 (184,750) 481,489

Yeung Siu Keung
wmL®’
Director

EF
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. &2 T
COMPANY (Continued)

43.

44,

188

2 5 35 AR R (

Note: Bt -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AARZHEBEREDT -
Equity
Share Share  component of
premium Fair value  Contributed option convertible Accumulated Total
account reserve surplus reserve notes losses reserves
R 4B TRREEZ
BER ATERE BE4ER BRERE 350 R BB mEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2019 RZF-NE—A—R 932,470 158,709 277,102 = 1,228,455 (1,771,974) 824,762
Loss for the year FAEE = = = = = (614,783) (614,783)
Other comprehensive FREMZERE
income/(loss) for the (B#) :
year:
Changes in fair value of T*’\Trﬁ}ﬁiﬁﬁ‘r@%ﬁllﬂm
equity investments at fair ARZRATIREZRA
value through other 28 (RiiRk)
comprehensive income,
net of tax - 267,640 - - - - 267,640
Total comprehensive profit/ ~ FRZEEF /(FE) L8
(loss) for the year = 267,640 = = = (614,783) (347,143)
Transfer of fair value reserve RHERAFEEB
upon disposal of equity Hip2E K ARz ]RA
investments at fair value BEAREENTERR
through other
comprehensive income = 8,971 = = = (8,971) =
At 31 December 2019 and ~ R=Z—AF+=A=1—H
1 January 2020 kR=F=-Z&—-f—H 932,470 435,320 277,102 = 1,228,455 (2,395,728) 477,619
Loss for the year FREB = = = = S (156,688) (156,688)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ M i 2 (&)
income for the year: &
Changes in fair value of e R$Tﬁ5iﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁlﬂlm
equity investments at fair ARZBRATIAZAYE
value through other 28 (BRHe)
comprehensive income,
net of tax = (509,623) = = = = (509,623)
Total comprehensive loss FRZAEBELE
for the year - (509,623) = - = (156,688) (666,311)
Transfer of fair value reserve RHEERATFEESR
upon disposal of equity Hih2mE bk AR 2 RA
investments at fair value BREREENTERERE
through other
comprehensive income - 22,434 - - - (22,434) -
Transfer of equity RERTRRERER
component of convertible CHEE SRR S
notes upon revaluation of )
the amendments to terms
of convertible notes = = = = 527,401 (527,401) =
Equity-settled share option ~ MEEZ&EZ BREZH
arrangements = = = 72 = = 72
At 31 December 2020 R=Z-Z+-A=t-H 932,470 (51,869) 277,102 72 1,755,856 (3,102,251) (188,620)
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44. #t g8 ®/EK
The financial statements were approved and authorised for MBERREKBHEESENR_E-_—F=A

issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2021.
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